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Founded in 1899, the Bank of Cyprus Group (the

Group) is the leading financial services group in

Cyprus, with a dynamic presence in Greece and

operations in the United Kingdom, Australia and

the Channel Islands. 

The Group offers a wide range of financial

products and services, which include banking

services, finance, factoring, general and life

insurance, brokerage, investment banking,

mutual fund management and custody services. 

Bank of Cyprus Ltd (the Bank) holds a leading

position in Cyprus. Since 1991, the Bank

commenced its dynamic expansion in Greece.

Today, the Bank of Cyprus Group is the seventh

largest financial services group in the wider

Greek market (based on deposits and advances).

Due to its expansion to countries with

sizeable Cypriot or Greek communities or

business ties, the Bank is well established as

the international bank of the Hellenism. The

Group has an established banking presence in

the United Kingdom. The Group’s international

presence was further enhanced in 2000 with

the operation of a wholly owned subsidiary

bank in Australia. 

The Bank of Cyprus Group currently operates

through a total of 275 banking outlets, of which

178 operate in Cyprus, 82 in Greece, six in the

United Kingdom, eight in Australia and one in

the Channel Islands. Bank of Cyprus also has

Representative Offices in South Africa, Canada,

USA, Russia and Romania. The Group employs

5 703 staff worldwide.

The Bank of Cyprus shares are listed on the

Cyprus Stock Exchange (CSE) and the Athens

Exchange (ATHEX). The Bank is the largest listed

company on the CSE in terms of market

capitalisation. The Bank has a well-diversified

shareholder base and the number of its

shareholders exceeds 69 000.

Our firm commitment continues to be:

the maximisation of shareholder value,

through rational expansion in conjunction

with a coordinated effort to exploit the

opportunities that arise in the evolving

financial environment, in order to achieve

increased profitability and efficiency,

the provision of an upgraded level of customer

service in terms of speed and quality, offering

the best possible solutions to customers’

ever-increasing needs, through innovative

financial products and services, and

the recognition of the value of our human

resources, the further development of their

skills and their continuous education and

training using modern and effective

methods in order to achieve our common

goals and objectives.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

GROUP PROFILE
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BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2003) 2002) 2001)

Key profitability indicators (Cí million)

Net interest income 199) 176) 160)

Profit before provisions 101) 90) 92)

(Loss)/profit after tax (29) (21) 47)

Key balance sheet indicators (Cí million)

Total assets 9 062) 8 126) 7 681)

Shareholders’ funds 523) 506) 541)

Loans and advances to customers 5 689) 5 044) 4 414)

Customer deposits 7 390) 6 836) 6 277)

Per share data (cents)

(Losses)/earnings per share (6,5) (4,9) 10,7)

Dividend per share _) _) 13,0)

Capital adequacy

Tier 1 capital 8,5%) 7,7%) 7,8%)

Total 13,2%) 11,6%) 11,9%)

Number of employees 5 703) 5 518) 5 312)

Credit rating (31/03/2004) Long term) Short term

Moody’s ∞3) P-2)

Fitch Ratings ∞-) F-2)

Contribution to indices

CSE General Index

FTSE/CySE Index )

FTSE-Med 100 Index )
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Our vision is to be the preferred financial services organisation in Cyprus, Greece, the Hellenic

community of the United Kingdom and wherever there are Greeks across the world, where:

our customers experience the highest quality of service, and

our people feel proud to belong,

thus strengthening the Group’s position, and maximising the value created for 

our shareholders and society.

OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Our efforts to implement our vision focus on the following set priorities:

the strengthening of our leading position in Cyprus,

the improvement of our profitability,

our dynamic expansion in Greece and our establishment as the Bank that offers 

the best customer service,

the strengthening of our leading position in the Cypriot and Greek communities

of the United Kingdom, and

our establishment as the Bank of the Hellenism in Australia.
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Our main strategic objectives are:

the organic expansion of the Group,

the continuous improvement of our

products and services in all areas of activity

and the enhancement of our performance in

order to offer better customer service and to

increase the Group’s long term profitability,

the utilisation of technology across the

whole range of our services with 

flexibility, and

the further training and development of

our staff.

In Cyprus,  
where the core of our operations is based,

we aim at:

reducing the level of non-performing loans,

increasing the profitability of our operations,

maintaining our leading market position in

banking (deposits and advances), 

strengthening our market share in the Group’s

other areas of activity, with particular emphasis

on exploiting cross-selling opportunities, and

attracting customers that are now entering the

market, as well as small and medium sized

enterprises (SMEs).

In Greece, 
the focus of our dynamic expansion, we aim at:

growing our customer base with a parallel

increase in our market share to around 5% in

deposits and advances by the end of 2007,

steadily approaching the size of the largest

Greek banking groups,

maintaining a balance between our rate of

expansion, profitability and liquidity, 

sustaining the flexibility of our organisational

structure in order to offer specialised

products for all sectors where our customers

operate and to promptly respond to

emerging opportunities, and 

increasing our loan portfolio, with emphasis

on the consumer and SME sectors.

In the United Kingdom, 
we aim at:

maintaining our leading market position in

the Cypriot and Greek communities,

further developing our services to

businesses with Cypriot or Greek ties,

particularly focussing on the Retail and 

SME sectors,

maximising our efficiency and containing

our costs, and

increasing our revenues.

In Australia, 
we aim at:

attracting new, high quality customers,

providing a high level of customer service

and enriching the range of products and

services offered, to cover the banking needs

of, primarily, the Cypriot and Greek

communities, and

further improving our infrastructure.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES



At Group level:
we are implementing international best

practices for the monitoring and control of

credit and other risks. The Group is fully aware

of the guidelines of the Basle Committee

(Basle II) and of the European Union directives

(CAD 3) and, in co-operation with the Central

Bank of Cyprus, is preparing to adopt

contemporary risk monitoring and

measurement methods for all types of risk, and

we complement our branch network with a

full range of alternative distribution channels

in the main markets where we operate.

In Cyprus:
we are taking measures for the collection of

overdue accounts and the strengthening of

the collateral held,

we are implementing (since 2002) a

programme for the containment of operating

costs and the control of recruitments,

we are continuously adjusting and improving

our pricing policy in banking,

we are achieving the best returns and

profitability in the insurance sector, during a

difficult year for this sector, and

we are introducing innovative products and

services in the various areas of our activity, in

order to better serve our customers.

In Greece:
we are expanding our branch network, aiming

to reach 120 branches by the end of 2005,

whilst also achieving the maturity of our

existing branches, thus increasing our

productivity,

we are sustaining the quality of our customer

service at a high level, despite the rapid

expansion rate of our operations,

we are establishing a flexible organisational

structure, which enables us to focus on each

individual line of business (Consumer, SME

and Corporate), in order to safeguard the best

possible level of service in each market

segment and to efficiently exploit the growth

opportunities of each sector, and

we are dynamically penetrating the leasing,

factoring and insurance markets and we are

utilising the Bank’s branches as sales points

for the whole range of products offered by

the Group.

In the United Kingdom:
we are simplifying procedures and controlling

staff and other costs,

we are further developing our operations

through our co-operation with other

reputable British financial institutions,

we are strengthening our ties with the Group,

thus taking advantage of the available

synergies. To this end, we are planning the

merger of the operations of our subsidiary,

Bank of Cyprus (London), with those of the

Bank of Cyprus branch in the United Kingdom,

we are placing particular emphasis on building

a personal relationship with our customers, and

we are restructuring our branch network in

order to better serve our customers.

In Australia:
we are operating an eight-branch network,

with presence in the largest cities,

we are improving our infrastructure and we

are appointing experienced personnel both at

head office and at branch level, 

we are successfully penetrating the local

Cypriot and Greek communities, attracting a

high quality client base, thus creating a

balanced client portfolio, and

we are expanding the range of our products

and services.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

THE IMPLEMENTATION OF OUR OBJECTIVES

6
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The past three years have been

particularly difficult for banks in Cyprus,

as their profitability was adversely

affected by a number of factors, which

were primarily exogenous.

The reduction in interest rates both

internationally and in Cyprus, in the

context of the alignment of Cyprus with

the European acquis communautaire, led

to a significant loss of interest income.

The new, stricter Central Bank of

Cyprus rules regarding interest income

suspension on overdue accounts, the

level of which was in any case adversely

affected by the economic slowdown and

the continuing stagnation of the Cyprus

stock market, resulted in further revenue

reductions for banks.

According to the new Central Bank of

Cyprus regulations, in addition to

suspending interest income on loans for

which the Group has made a provision,

banks also suspend interest income on all

loans which are more than nine months

in arrear (six months as from 1 January

2004) and are not fully secured,

regardless of whether these amounts are

collectible or not. The Group’s

suspended net interest income has

increased from Cí20,3 million for 2002 to

Cí32,3 million for 2003. The Group’s core

profit before suspension of interest

income for 2003 has recorded a 21%

increase compared to 2002. 

In this difficult operating environment,

the main targets set by the Bank of Cyprus

Group were the safeguarding of its

profitability and to revert to dividend

payment as soon as possible.

In addition, the Group’s objectives of

maintaining its leading market share in

Cyprus, continuing its dynamic expansion

in Greece whilst achieving increased

profitability and further establishing itself

in the countries with Hellenic communities,

remained unchanged.

The Group adopted a series of measures

in order to improve its profitability, which

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

Our primary objectives

are to safeguard the

Group’s profitability

and to revert to

dividend payment as

soon as possible.

At 31 December 2003,

the Group’s capital

base reached 

Cí864,1 million,

recording a 25%

increase compared to

the previous year.

The prospect of EU

accession, which 

will materialise on 

1 May 2004, presents

new opportunities for

development, which

were not visible in

the past.

S.A. Triantafyllides

Bank of Cyprus Group Chairman
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

were focussed on three key pillars:

1 Increase of net interest margin

Despite the difficult economic

environment, we succeeded in further

improving net interest margin.

2 Management of overdue accounts

We improved our position with regards

to non-performing loans, either through

normalisation, or by strengthening the

security held, or, where necessary,

through increased provisions for bad

and doubtful debts.

3 Cost control

The cost control efforts continued in

2003, by freezing new recruitments in

Cyprus and containing other operating

expenses. In addition, we drastically

reduced the costs of subsidiary

companies, such as CISCO and BOC

Ventures, which had been unprofitable.

The expansion of our branch network in

Greece gave a new impetus to the

development of our financial footings in

Greece and, by extension, the increase in

the profitability of Bank of Cyprus Greece.

As a result of the above factors and

the actions taken, the Group’s core profit

for 2003 amounted to Cí100,6 million,

compared to Cí89,7 million in 2002,

registering a 12% increase. The

contribution of the Group’s Greek

operations to 2003 Group core profit

reached Cí41,8 million, representing a

42% share. The core profit of the Group’s

Greek operations increased by 26%

against that of 2002.

The Group’s core profit is considered

satisfactory under the circumstances and

forms a sound base for increased

profitability in future years.

The level of provisions for bad and

doubtful debts for 2003 was significantly

increased as a result of the continued

slowdown in the local and European

economies, especially in the tourism

sector, the extended stagnation of the

Cyprus stockmarket and the introduction

of new, stricter rules regarding interest

income suspension.

The Group recorded a loss after

provisions for bad and doubtful debts,

impairment of investments and tax of

Cí28,8 million for 2003, compared to a

loss of Cí21,4 million for 2002. 

The Group’s results for 2003 do not

allow the payment of a dividend for the

year. We are aware of the importance of

dividend payment for our shareholders

and we are taking all necessary actions

to revert to the payment of dividend as

soon as possible.

As a result of the action taken for the

collection of overdue accounts and/or

the strengthening of the collateral held,

it is anticipated that the Group’s

provision charges for 2004 will revert to

normal levels. This, in conjunction with

the anticipated increase in core

profitability, will have a positive impact

on the Group’s results for 2004.

The Group has recognised the

importance of sound corporate

governance, defined more broadly than

the narrow context of the regulations,

extending to best practices in the

European Union (EU) and the USA. 

To this end, we decided to appoint an

international firm of consultants to

review the Group’s corporate

governance policy and practice, and 

to recommend specific measures 

for improvement.

Despite the problems the Group has

faced over the past three years, it
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succeeded at maintaining and even

strengthening its leading position in the

financial scene of Cyprus and it further

established its position in Greece. During

2003, the Group completed a series of

significant capital issues. At 31 December

2003, the Group’s capital base reached

Cí864,1 million, recording a 25% increase

compared to 31 December 2002.

The recent renewed mobility

surrounding the Cyprus problem may

lead to its final solution. A viable solution

will further strengthen Bank of Cyprus’

leading role, as a result of the Bank’s

participation in re-building the occupied

land that will be returned to its legal

owners. The extent of the impact of a

possible solution of the Cyprus problem

will depend on the exact form the

solution will take and we cannot make

any projections at this stage.

Being the cornerstone of the Cyprus

economy, Bank of Cyprus will support the

country, as it has done in the past during

other critical times in our country’s

history. The prospect of EU accession,

which will materialise on 1 May 2004,

presents new opportunities for the

Group’s development in Cyprus, which

were not visible in the past. 

The Group’s prospects are very

satisfactory. Based on the indications we

have to date, I believe that the difficult

years are behind us. The dynamically

changing economic scene, Cyprus’

accession to the EU, as well as possible

developments in the Cyprus problem, all

create new opportunities for the Group.

The year 2004 is a milestone for

Cyprus. With a strong capital base,

increasing core profitability and a

dynamic expansion path in Greece, Bank

of Cyprus may look forward to its future

recognition as a leader in the wider

South-eastern European region.

Throughout its course, the Group has

proven that it has both the ability and

the strength to overcome difficulties and

to proceed ahead, because it has its

people, who believe in the Bank and who

try to reverse the given facts even under

the most adverse conditions. I thank

them for that.

Nicosia, 24 March 2004

S.A. Triantafyllides

Group Chairman  

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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The imminent accession of

Cyprus to the European

Union will drastically

change the country’s future;

the Group’s prospects in the

years to come appear very

encouraging.

Our accession to Europe

incorporates many

opportunities as well as

many challenges. The

intensified competition, the

liberalisation of markets, the

lifting of protective

measures in certain sectors

and the adoption of stricter

production and distribution

methods for products and

services, all create new

conditions for the economy

of Cyprus.

Cyprus has faced many

similar challenges in the

past and it has succeeded in

overcoming the obstacles

and difficulties, with the

close co-operation of all

bodies concerned.

In the increasingly

competitive environment of

the enlarged market, the

banks that will survive are

those that successfully

exploit their competitive

advantages and offer high

quality services at a

relatively low cost to their

customers, while

maintaining satisfactory

profitability for their

shareholders.



International Economy
The geopolitical uncertainty, which was

instigated before and during the military

operations in Iraq, significantly curtailed

economic development during the first half of

2003. Consequently, and despite the visible

recovery of economic activity during the rest of

the year, the growth of the world economy for

the whole 2003 displayed a general ‘numbness’.

This prevailing economic climate is reflected in

the economies of the three main economic

regions of the globe: the USA, the European

Union (EU) and Japan. On the contrary, emerging

markets such as China and India recorded

noteworthy performance.

Recent data published by the International

Monetary Fund (IMF) estimate the growth of the

world economy for 2003 at similar levels as those

of 2002. The world economy is estimated to have

exhibited real growth for 2003 of around 3,2%

(against 3,0% for 2002), while for the USA,

Eurozone and Japan, the relevant estimates are

2,6%, 0,5% and 2,0% respectively (against 2,4%,

0,8% and 0,3% respectively for 2002).

The year 2003 was a promising one for

investment portfolios, as the major international

equity indices reached considerably high levels,

leaving behind the bad memories of 2000-2002.

Despite this, there was significant cautiousness

on behalf of investors for new equity

investments, which was accompanied by a visible

preference for holding cash and/or investing in

precious metals.

According to recently published IMF forecasts,

2004 is expected to be a good year for the world

economy, estimating its growth at 4,1%. This is

the case as all its main geographic constituents

are estimated to exhibit considerable growth

(USA: 3,9%, Eurozone: 1,9%, Japan: 1,4%, China:

7,5%, India: 5,9%). The possible materialisation of

the above optimistic forecasts is expected, on the

one hand, to bring international direct

investments and international trade on a positive

growth path, and on the other hand, to

constitute the required antidote for the

restoration of investor confidence.

European Economy
During 2003, the Eurozone economy

continued to grow at the subdued levels of

2002, a situation which is expected to improve

significantly during 2004 (estimated growth of

2%). This expectation is based on the

anticipated recovery of international trade and

the continuation of the existing loose

monetary policy. On the other hand, the

protracted strong exchange rate of the Euro

against the Dollar (even at its current levels)

encompasses significant risks for European

exports, with a respective impact on short and

medium term growth prospects of the

Eurozone economy. Analysts believe that the

achievement of stable economic growth in the

Eurozone requires a series of structural reforms

aimed at creating a competitive and unified

European market.

During 2003, the German and French

economies displayed nil or minimal (0,5%)

levels of growth, respectively. The sharp

decrease in domestic exports and the further

weakening of domestic demand were the main

characteristics of these economies during the

first half of 2003, a situation which was

reversed during the second half of the year.

The persistence of these favourable

developments constitutes a key prerequisite

for the materialisation of the optimistic 2004

growth forecasts (amounting to 1,5% and 2%

respectively). The budget deficit of the two

economies continues to exceed the relevant

convergence criterion (maximum of 3% of GDP),

thus making it imperative to implement radical

changes in the structure of government

spending, which must, however, be done in a

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
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way which does not jeopardise the domestic

economic growth of the two countries.

The economy of the United Kingdom

showed satisfactory performance. During 2003,

economic growth is estimated at around 1,7%

and was primarily derived from increased

private and public demand. As regards 2004,

the effort to maintain inflation within target

has already led to a stricter monetary policy,

whilst the worsening fiscal deficit could

impose the need for public spending cuts and

increased taxation. Despite this, the annual

growth forecast for 2004 remains favourable

(in the range of 2,4%) and is higher than that

of 2003.

The oncoming enlargement of the EU to

25 countries is expected to create the third

largest entity in the world in terms of

population numbers (455 million residents),

after China and India. The GDP of the ten

acceding countries is around 45% of the

average of the 15 existing member-states,

although significant variations across the

individual accession countries are evident.

Cyprus Economy
The negative economic climate in the EU

which continued to prevail during 2003, in

conjunction with the temporary geopolitical

instability in Cyprus’ greater region, inevitably

had a commensurate effect on the economy

of Cyprus. Specifically, the real rate of growth

of the Cyprus economy in 2003 is estimated to

have reached around 2% (which is similar to

2002), largely reflecting the lower level of

external demand arising from tourism.

The slowdown in the growth rate of the

Cyprus economy since late 2001 had a

consequential effect on the rate of

unemployment, which has since displayed a

marginally ascending trend. The 2003

unemployment rate estimate is at around 3,5%

of the economically active population, against

3,2% in 2002, while it is estimated that during

2004 the unemployment rate will remain stable. 

The rate of inflation for 2003 reached 4,1%

(against 2,8% for 2002), while the relevant

forecast for 2004 is at around 2%. The

significant inflationary trend displayed in the

economy of Cyprus during 2003 was largely

the result of the increase in oil prices and the

gradual increases in the rate of indirect

taxation, which were subsequently reflected in

higher retail prices. 

During 2002-2003, the country’s public

finances showed a significant deterioration,

resulting in the divergence from the levels of

the respective EU convergence criteria by a

large margin; Cyprus was within the said

criteria until late 2001. The above adverse

developments are largely the result of the

slowdown of the Cyprus economy during this

period and of the existence of structural

problems. During 2003, the budget deficit and

public debt are estimated to have reached

6,3% and 72,2% respectively (against 3,5% and

58,7% respectively for 2002), while for 2004, it

is expected that these indices will be

somewhat improved.

The significant deterioration of the public

debt was exacerbated as a result of the recent

alignment of Cyprus with the relevant EU

regulations, which specify that intra-

governmental financing must also be included

in the calculations. The level of public debt for

2002 according to the new methodology is

estimated to have been 67,1%, against the

reported 58,7%. As a result, the government

appears to lack the ability to boost the

economy through an expansionary fiscal

policy, a situation which generates justifiable

expectations for the continuation of the

existing monetary loosening in the short and

medium term. 

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT



During 2003, the decrease in imports was larger,

in absolute terms, than the decrease in exports,

thus contributing to the significant decline of

the trade deficit. Despite this, the significant

reduction in revenues from tourism is believed

to have maintained the 2003 current account

deficit/GDP ratio at stable levels.

The recessionary trends prevailing in

Europe, the fact that Cyprus is an expensive

Mediterranean tourist destination and the

ongoing adverse psychology of travellers,

continued to adversely affect the domestic

tourist industry during 2003. Tourist arrivals in

Cyprus during 2003 were 4,8% lower compared

to 2002, while the respective decrease in

tourist-related revenues amounted to around

10,4%; the performance of Cyprus has thus

significantly digressed from the relatively

satisfactory levels of 2000-2001. Given the vital

importance of tourism for the local economy,

these developments have already generated a

series of adverse effects in various sectors of

domestic economic activity.

In 2003, the manufacturing production

volume index declined by 2,9% compared to

2002, continuing its downward trend of recent

years. The path of the index also reflects the

structural problems faced by most sub-sectors

of the industry as well as the decline of foreign

demand for their products. 

The construction sector showed significant

growth during 2003. The increased demand

led to a sharp increase in the prices of houses,

apartments and land in most developed and

developing areas of Cyprus.

During 2003, building permits issued rose

by 10,1% compared to 2002, while the

construction sector absorbed about 45% of

new bank loans. The shift of investor interest

towards real estate has, inter alia, been

encouraged by the imminent accession of

Cyprus to the EU, the prevailing low interest

rates, the availability of flexible banking

products and the lack of stock market-related

investment alternatives.

The imminent accession of Cyprus to the EU

is characterised by the successful, on the

whole, alignment of the legislation of Cyprus

with the European acquis communautaire. The

new institutional framework remains to be

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) 
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Economic Environment

2001 2002 20031 20041

International Economy

Real growth rate of world GDP (%)2 2,2 2,8 3,21 4,11

Annual growth of international trade (%)2 0,1 3,2 2,91 5,51

International direct investments (billion $)3 824 651 6531 n/a1

European Economy

Real growth rate of GDP - Eurozone (%) 2 1,5 0,9 0,51 1,91

Real growth rate of GDP - Germany (%)2 0,8 0,2 0,01 1,51

Real growth rate of GDP - France (%) 2 2,1 1,2 0,51 2,01

Real growth rate of GDP - United Kingdom (%) 2 2,1 1,9 1,71 2,41

Cyprus Economy 

Real growth rate of GDP (%)4 4,0 2,0 2,01 n/a

Inflation (%)5 2,0 2,8 4,11 n/a

Fiscal deficit/GDP (%)4 2,9 3,5 6,31 n/a

1 Estimate/forecast 3 Source: United Nations 5 Source: Statistical Service of Cyprus

2 Source: IMF 4 Source: Ministry of Finance, Cyprus 
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT 

fully implemented. The changing institutional

framework has already contributed to the

creation of a particularly competitive business

environment, which is expected to intensify

more as from May 1st, 2004.

Despite the slowdown of the Cyprus

economy during the past two years, its

reliance on solid foundations constitutes the

key precondition for the economy’s

satisfactory medium and long term growth

prospects. Moreover, the optimistic estimates

for recovery of the EU economy, in conjunction

with the imminent accession of Cyprus to the

EU, provide promising messages for the future

course of economic activity in Cyprus.

Greek Economy
The growth of economic activity during 2003

continued to be on an upward path and

displayed annual growth of 4,7%, the highest of

the past 25 years. The high rate of growth was

largely driven by domestic demand and, to a

lesser extent, the recovery of exports.

The increase of private consumption was

significantly higher than the forecasts in the

Stability and Growth Programme (SGP) 2003-

2006 (actual 2003 increase of 4,1%, compared to

GSP estimated increase of 3,1%). Private

consumption is expected to remain buoyant,

boosted by the significant increases in wages

and tax cuts.

Projects relating to the Olympic Games

along with the capital inflows from the

European Structural Funds contributed to an

increased level of investments (increase of

15,5% against 2002) which was at a higher rate

than the growth rate of real GDP. 

The external account deficit increased

significantly during 2003 (31% higher than

2002) as a result of the decline in exportable

tourist services arising from weak external

demand and geopolitical instability, while

buoyant domestic demand led to a significant

increase in the imports of goods (8%).

A marked improvement in the labour

market occurred during 2003, with the

unemployment rate continuing its downward

trend and reaching 8,8% in the third quarter of

the year. Despite this improvement, which is

largely linked to the booming level of

construction activity, the persistently high

levels of unemployment in women and young

persons indicate the existence of rigidities in

the labour market. 

The increased level of prices of non-processed

foodstuffs as a result of bad weather conditions

and higher energy prices, contributed towards

the increase in the rate of inflation during the

first half of 2003. Pressure on prices was relaxed

in the summer, but inflation measured by the

General Consumer Price Index (GCPI) and the

Harmonised Consumer Price Index (HCPI),

remained consistently above 3,0% until

December. The GCPI increase for the year finally

reached 3,5% and the HCPI increase was 3,4%,

adversely affecting not only the real disposable

income of households, but also the economy’s

general price competitiveness.

As regards the public finances, the fiscal

deficit and public debt expressed as

percentages of GDP were outside the targets set

by the 2003-2006 SGP. The fiscal deficit

increased to 1,7% of GDP (against an initial

estimate of 1,4%) while the public debt

amounted to 102,4% of GDP, down from

104,7% in 2002, being 0,7% higher than the

initial estimate and remaining amongst the

highest in the EU. 

With the completion of the third year of

participation of Greece in the Eurozone, it can

be concluded that the Eurozone’s stability has

generated multiple benefits, resulting in a

growth rate for the Greek economy of 4,7%. The

growth prospects of the Greek economy should



not be taken for granted, with the exception of

2004, largely as a result of investments for

projects relating to the Olympic Games. The

level of investments is expected to decline after

the completion of the Olympic projects, thus

generating forecasts for a slowdown of

economic activity in 2005. The expected

improvements in the international environment

as from 2004 and the low level of interest rates

may, however, contribute towards the

maintenance of growth in domestic activity in

the post-olympic period.

According to the 2003-2006 SGP, GDP growth

during 2004 is estimated to be maintained at

4,2%, but is forecast to decline during the

following two years to 4,0% in 2005 and 3,8% in

2006. The slowdown will be the result of the

steady decrease in investments in construction

and the relaxation of fiscal incentives.

As regards credit expansion, the lower level of

interest rates led to an increase in consumer

and housing credit. Despite the convergence of

interest rates with those of the Eurozone, the

level of loans as a percentage of GDP in the

Greek banking market is significantly lower than

the average in the Eurozone banking market.

This, in conjunction with low interest rates and

relatively high economic growth rates, indicate

the growth potential of Greek banking.

Note: The data used in the International, European, Cyprus and

Greek economy sections were correct as at 19 March 2004. 
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2000 2001 2002 20031 20042 20052 20062

Annual change (%)

GDP (at constant prices) 4,4 4,0 3,8 4,71 4,21 4,01 3,81

Private consumption 2,0 2,9 2,8 4,11 3,21 3,31 3,21

Public consumption 2,2 -1,0 5,1 3,61 1,01 0,51 0,51

Investments 10,0 5,5 6,1 15,51 7,01 5,71 5,51

Exports 14,1 -1,1 -7,7 -0,21 6,71 5,61 5,31

Imports 8,9 -3,4 -4,7 8,01 4,71 3,81 3,71

%

Unemployment 11,0 10,4 9,9 9,11 8,01 7,41 7,01

Harmonised CPI 2,9 3,7 3,9 3,41 3,73 3,43 -1

Fiscal deficit/GDP -1,9 -1,4 -1,2 -1,71 -1,21 -0,51 0,01

Public debt/GDP 77,2 106,9 104,7 102,41 98,51 94,61 90,51

1 Estimates

2 Forecasts 

3 Economic Forecasts, Autumn 2003, European Commission

Source: Revised Stability & Growth Programme 2003-2006, Dec, 2003, Ministry of Economy and Finance 

Key Indicators of the Greek Economy
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The Banking Sector in Cyprus
The banking sector in Cyprus comprises the

commercial banks, the co-operative credit

institutions and the international banking units.

The commercial banks control the largest part

of deposits and advances in the economy and

form the core of the banking system.

Bank of Cyprus continues to hold the leading

position in the sector, with a market share of

almost 40% of commercial bank deposits (for

both Cyprus pounds and foreign currency),

followed by Laiki Bank, Hellenic Bank, Alpha Bank,

National Bank of Greece (Cyprus), Arab Bank,

Commercial Bank of Greece (Cyprus) and

Universal Savings Bank.

The co-operative credit institutions form a

sizeable group of financial institutions, as they

control around one third and one quarter of

local deposits and advances respectively. 

There are over 30 international banking units

operating in Cyprus, which service

international business companies registered in

Cyprus as well as companies based and

operating in the wider region.

The banking sector in Cyprus is already fully

aligned with the European acquis communautaire

and it implements, through Central Bank of

Cyprus Directives, the latest recommendations of

the European Central Bank. It is noted that any

foreign bank wishing to carry out domestic

banking activities in Cyprus has to obtain the

relevant licence from the Central Bank of Cyprus.

As from the 1st of May 2004, this licence will no

longer be required for banking institutions that

are already licensed to operate in the EU and who

wish to open branches in Cyprus.

The statutory framework governing the

comprehensive liberalisation of capital flows

to and from Cyprus is completed but its full

implementation has been frozen until

30 April 2004.

Cyprus is an International Banking Centre

which has a developed banking system, low

taxation and excellent professional services

and it also offers the advantages of the EU,

thus attracting a large number of international

business companies.

In addition to its responsibilities for the

formulation of monetary policy, the Central

Bank of Cyprus is the main authority responsible

for ensuring the stability and security of the

financial system and the protection of

depositors. In this context, the Central Bank of

Cyprus is the issuing authority of banking

licences and the regulator of the banking sector

(both as regards the local commercial banks as

well as the international banking units). It is

noted that the relevant regulatory authority for

the co-operative credit institutions is the

Commissioner of Co-operative Development.

The Greek Banking Sector
At the end of June 2003, the Greek banking

system comprised 23 Greek commercial banks,

two specialised credit institutions, 21 branches

of foreign banks and 15 co-operative banks. The

six largest banks accounted for around 85% of

the banking system’s total assets.

The penetration level of deposits in the

Greek banking market is marginally higher than

that of the Eurozone. During the fourth quarter

of 2003, the ratio of deposits to GDP in Greece

reached 88%; the respective ratio in the

Eurozone was 85%.

The annual growth rate of deposits in Greece

at the end of 2003 was 10,5%. 

The annual rate of change of repurchase

agreements (repos) showed a significant

decrease at the end of 2003, amounting to 

-46,6%. This decrease is linked to the imposition

of a 7% tax rate on the income from repos in

January 2002. In December 2003, the total value

of deposits and repos reached ú140 billion.

As regards advances, the level of credit

penetration in the Greek banking market is

around 32 percentage points lower than the

BANKING ENVIRONMENT
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Total Business Housing Consumer Deposits

Advances Loans Loans Loans

Greece Eurozone Greece Eurozone Greece Eurozone Greece Eurozone Greece Eurozone

2002 61,5 96,5 38,9 49,0 15,0 30,8 6,9 7,3 92,0 82,3

2003 66,3 98,4 39,9 49,7 17,2 32,7 8,1 6,7 88,2 85,1

Source: NSSG, Bank of Greece, ECB

Balance as % of GDP

Annual Change

2000 2001 2002 2003

Consumer credit

Housing credit

Business credit
30%

20%

10%
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40%
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average level in the Eurozone banking market. 

The annual growth rate of bank loans to

businesses and households in December 2003

was 17,0%, against 16,9% in December 2002.

The balance of loans to businesses and

households reached ú101 billion. Business loans

increased by 10,8% per annum at the end of

2003, against 9,6% per annum in December

2002. Business loans in December 2003

amounted to ú61 billion.

The growth rate of housing loans slowed

down during 2003, but was nonetheless

maintained at high levels. This slower growth

is, to a large degree, due to the amendment,

at the beginning of 2003, of the tax regime

governing tax discounts for interest on loans

for the purchase of the main residence, which

led some loan holders to take out their loans

earlier (in 2002).

The balance of housing loans in December

2003 reached ú27 billion. 

The growth rate of consumer loans was also

marked by a slowdown. The liberalisation of

consumer credit in July 2003, however, gave a

further impetus to these loans. It is noted that

the penetration level of consumer credit in

Greece is at a similar level to that of the

Eurozone. The level of consumer loans in Greece

in December 2003 reached ú12 billion, marking

an annual change of 27,2%.

It is generally expected that the growth of the

Greek banking system will continue at a similar

rate during 2004, as the penetration levels in

Greece are relatively low compared to those of

the Eurozone, particularly with regards to

advances. The continuous improvement in GDP

per capita in Greece is also expected to lead to

increased levels of banking intermediation.

Banks in Greece achieved significant

improvements in profitability during 2003,

compared to previous years. This is primarily the

result of further reductions in interest rates,

higher market penetration of retail banking and

the control of operating expenses. Banks in
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Greece will be called to face a number of

challenges during 2004, which may affect their

profitability. The most important of these are

the adjustment to the International Accounting

Standards (it is noted that the Bank of Cyprus

Group has been following the International

Accounting Standards for a number of years),

stricter directives for the supervision of banks

planned by the Bank of Greece and efforts for

the further containment of operating costs.

Banking rates were further reduced during

2003, following the downward trend of interest

rates in the Eurozone money market, as a result

of the base rate cuts by the European Central

Bank and the intensely competitive

environment which is now prevailing in the

Greek banking market.

BANKING ENVIRONMENT
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BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS | INTRODUCTION

During 2003, Bank of Cyprus continued to

focus on increasing its profitability and

reducing its operating expenses through the

adoption of a series of measures.

The priorities we set out for 2003 were to:

improve the quality of the loan portfolio and

effectively manage overdue accounts

through the systematic monitoring of the

portfolio,

increase net interest margin, 

continue the Group’s dynamic expansion in

Greece, and

contain operating costs to the maximum

possible extent, given the constraints of the

environment in which we operate.

In Greece, the Bank of Cyprus Group

continued its dynamic expansion during 2003,

having completed a 13-year presence in the

Greek banking market.

The upward trend of the Group’s market share

in Greece continues and the Group is currently the

seventh largest financial institution in the Greek

market. In December 2003, the market share of

Bank of Cyprus Greece reached 3,05% in terms of

deposits and 3,48% in terms of advances.

In the United Kingdom, Bank of Cyprus

(London) focussed on its core activity: the

servicing of Small and Medium sized

Enterprises. It also continued to service its

Retail and Corporate clients, always placing

particular emphasis on building a personal

relationship with each individual customer.

In Australia, the Group’s operations

continued to expand. A small profit was

generated in 2003, after only three years of

operation of the Bank.

The year 2004 marks the beginning of a

new era for the Bank of Cyprus Group. The

lifting of exchange controls opens a new

chapter in the Group’s development, as

Cypriots will be allowed to invest abroad

without any restrictions and, similarly, foreign

residents will freely invest in Cyprus. 

Chr. S. Pantzaris

Group Vice-Chairman
and Chief Executive of Bank of Cyprus

E. Xenophontos

Director
and Group Chief General Manager
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Consequently, at this point in time, the

internationalisation of the Group (Cyprus,

Greece, United Kingdom, Channel Islands,

Australia) constitutes a competitive advantage

for increasing our revenues and maintaining our

leading role in the market. The

internationalisation of the Group gives rise to

many opportunities for growth through the

exploitation of synergies between the Group’s

units, taking advantage of the Group’s customer

base and, in furtherance, increasing its revenues.

Our strategy over the past years (for

increased profitability and productivity, cost

containment, dynamic expansion in Greece)

ensures a fruitful future for the Group. It is not a

coincidence that the Group has succeeded in

obtaining a number of international

distinctions: 

‘The Banker’ magazine has granted the

‘Bank of the Year 2003’ award for Cyprus, to

Bank of Cyprus for the fourth successive year. 

Also for the fourth successive year, Bank of

Cyprus received the ‘Quality Recognition

Award’ by the correspondent bank JP

Morgan Chase, for the high level of quality

in the execution of international payments

in Cyprus. The same award was also

granted to Bank of Cyprus Greece for the

third successive year.

The Bank of Cyprus Group received a double

distinction at the Social Responsibility

Awards ceremony (November 2003),

organised by the Greek Association of

Advertised Companies. The Bank of Cyprus

Group received two awards in the categories

‘Continuous Contribution’ and ‘Human

Being’ for the broad spectrum of its social

contribution.

Bank of Cyprus Direct Banking has recently

received the ‘Committed to Excellence’

award from the European Foundation for

Quality Management.

The ‘Euromoney’ magazine in a recent

survey covering the Private Banking sector,

has ranked Bank of Cyprus Private Banking

as the top institution in Cyprus and has

awarded it the first prize of ‘Best Private

Bank in Cyprus’.

THE INTERNATIONALISATION OF THE GROUP PROVIDES US 

WITH A RELATIVE ADVANTAGE AGAINST OUR COMPETITORS

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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Branch Network
and Product Development
The Group’s branch network, supported by a

comprehensive range of alternative distribution

channels, services Retail customers as well as

Small and Medium sized Enterprises (SMEs),

offering a full spectrum of competitively priced

products, such as deposits, investment and

insurance products, advances, business,

consumer and housing loans, credit cards and

current accounts.

The Bank’s main concern is to further

develop its infrastructure through automation

and centralisation. This contributes towards

cost containment and enables the Bank to

offer a faster service to its customers.

The Bank is also in the process of

developing new systems and applications

which always aim towards increasing

productivity and reducing costs. In this context,

the Bank continues the development of its

Customer Relationship Management (CRM)

system, some applications of which are

already used by a number of companies and

units of the Group.

During the past year, the Bank in Cyprus has

consolidated its leading position in the retail

banking sector, despite the particularly adverse

and difficult prevailing economic conditions.

The year 2003 was undoubtedly marked by

intensified competition in the banking market,

partly as a result of the unprecedented euphoria

in the real estate market and the gradual

abolition of exchange controls. The Bank

continued to rank first in the preferences of the

public in Cyprus as a result of the quality of its

services and the extensive range of products it

offers through its comprehensive branch

network, which comprises 154 branches and

cash offices in Cyprus and a range of alternative

distribution channels.

During 2003, Bank of Cyprus has introduced

the innovative Revolving Educational Loans,

which allow customers to draw repeatedly the

amount repaid, thus covering their educational

costs with a smaller principal loan amount. In

the context of designing products for specific

milestones in people’s lives, the Bank has

launched the Maternity personal loans. As

regards deposit and investment products,

Bank of Cyprus introduced innovative capital

guaranteed products such as Hermes, as well as

attractive Escalator deposit products in dollars

and sterling.

The Group is ready to promote deposit

products in foreign currencies and to offer a

range of alternative investment options to its

customers, in view of the oncoming complete

liberalisation of capital flows and the ability of

Cypriots to hold deposits and advances in

foreign currencies in Cyprus.   

Given the firm objectives of the Group for

increasing its profitability and maintaining its

leading position in the market in terms of

deposits and advances, the priorities of the

Retail and SMEs Division were to: 

create new, flexible products, tailored to the

needs and preferences of customers at every

stage of their lives and to the continuously

changing market conditions,

continuously renew and upgrade its existing

products, in order to create more value for

customers and to increase their level of

satisfaction,

exploit the opportunities offered by

technology for the collection, storage and

analysis of data regarding our existing

customer base, and

provide quality customer service through

the ‘Programme of Excellence’. The

philosophy of the Programme is to train,

support, motivate and reward our human

resources in order to develop values which

will lead to the development of their skills.  

In Greece, one of the main targets of local

banks for 2003 was to continue their strategy

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

RETAIL CUSTOMERS AND SMALL AND MEDIUM SIZED ENTERPRISES
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Bank of Cyprus Greece

Greek Banking Market

aimed at achieving increased penetration in

retail banking. As a result, competition in this

sector was particularly intense.

Bank of Cyprus Greece continued its dynamic

expansion in retail banking, through the

expansion of its branch network to 82 consumer

branches and the offering of a large range of

innovative products and services.

The year 2003 was of particular importance

for the Greek banking market as a result of the

liberalisation of consumer credit, which, until

the middle of the year, had been subject to

restrictions. In response to this development,

Bank of Cyprus offered products which cover

every need of the customer, spearheaded by

the preferential current account with an

overdraft facility. As a result, advances to

Retail customers increased by around 40%,

reaching ú707 million by the end of the year.

The main bulk of advances was for housing

and consumer loans. Non-performing loans

were maintained at low levels.

Total deposits increased by 29%, thus

creating the required conditions for further

expansion of the Bank’s operations. Of critical

importance for the achievement of these annual

growth rates was the offering of a large number

of innovative products by the Bank. Examples of

these products include:

Payroll-Extra, a product addressed to civil

servants and pensioners, which attracted

many new customers and significant funds,

Notice Account, a deposit account which

requires 8 or 35 days notice,

Advance, a fixed deposit account which pays

interest in advance,

Sky Limit, an investment account which

combines a simple deposit with investment

in one of the Bank’s mutual funds, and 

housing loans with Euribor-based pricing,

which were first offered in the Greek market

by Bank of Cyprus.

The continuous offering of innovative products

is, perhaps, the most important competitive

advantage of Bank of Cyprus Greece. In the

prevailing low interest rate environment, the

offering of a variety of products is imperative.

(continued on page 26)

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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The accession of Cyprus to the European Union leads to an enhanced feeling of

security and political stability and to European support in the efforts for the solution

of the Cyprus problem.
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The success of the Bank’s segmental marketing

efforts in attracting specific customer groups

exceeded all initial expectations. The product

bundle MediBank for the exclusive use by

doctors and dentists contributed to the increase

of the Bank’s market share to 8% of the medical

profession/sector in the country. Accounting Link

was another new product bundle launched and

offered in the year with equally impressive results.

This product bundle is addressed to accountants

and accounting firms, with particular emphasis

on the automation of their VAT and social

insurance payments. 

The SMEs and Shipping Division services

medium sized businesses with annual turnover

up to ú10 million, as well as shipping companies

of all sizes. For this purpose, 43 specialised

business centres have been established

throughout Greece, clustered in six regions.

Given the importance of SMEs for the Greek

economy, the Bank plans to establish at least

ten new business centres during 2004. The

Bank’s target is to cover the whole of Greece by

the end of the year.

The Division’s total advances reached

ú1,3 billion at the end of 2003, marking a 43,5%

increase against 2002. 

The competitive advantages of Bank of

Cyprus Greece in the SMEs sector are the

specialised services offered by the dedicated

business centres and the Bank’s speed and

flexibility in servicing its customers.

During 2003, the Bank achieved a prime

position in supporting the participation of SMEs

in the national and European development

programmes (Third European Union Support

Framework). The Bank’s extensive automation,

its specialised officers and the expansion of its

business centres network, provide it with

excellent infrastructure, enabling it to fully meet

the specific needs of SMEs.

In the United Kingdom, Bank of Cyprus

(London) continues to focus on its core activity,

the servicing of SMEs. It also continues to

service its Retail and Corporate clients, always

placing particular emphasis on building a

personal relationship with each customer.

A detailed review of each individual activity

of the Bank was carried out during 2003. Based

on the results of the review, it was decided to

sell the credit card portfolio of Bank of Cyprus

(London) to MBNA, the company that took over

the management and processing of credit card

transactions.

The Bank also proceeded with a review of its

branch locations and, by extension, its building

requirements. As a result of this review, the Bank

disposed of the Highgate branch and converted

the Manchester branch to a representative office. 

In addition to the above, the Bank succeeded in

curtailing its costs through system enhancements

and by exploiting synergies with the Group,

where feasible. These measures play a significant

role in enabling the Bank to remain competitive.

Total advances of the Group’s operations in the

United Kingdom increased by 7% during 2003;

total deposits remained at levels similar to 2002.

The merger of the operations of Bank of

Cyprus (London) with the branch of Bank of

Cyprus in the United Kingdom will be completed

after the accession of Cyprus to the EU on 1 May

2004. The merger will have no effect on the

number of branches in operation or the quality

of customer service.

The prevailing low interest rate environment is

expected to continue during 2004. Competition,

particularly in the SMEs sector, remains intense

and results in downward pressure on interest

margins. Consequently, Bank of Cyprus (London)

places even more emphasis on the quality of

service offered to customers.

Bank of Cyprus Australia completed three

years of operation at the beginning of 2004. The

Bank enjoys significant success in the Retail

sector, where it operates through eight branches

and has built a solid portfolio of customers. 

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

RETAIL CUSTOMERS AND SMALL AND MEDIUM SIZED ENTERPRISES (CONTINUED) 
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Hire Purchase and Leasing
The Group provides finance for investments

in fixed assets and for the purchase of movable

property by individuals, through its subsidiary

companies, Bank of Cyprus Finance Corporation,

based in Nicosia, and Kyprou Leasing, based

in Athens.

Bank of Cyprus 

Finance Corporation

In Cyprus, hire purchase and leasing products

and services are offered through the branch

network of the Bank of Cyprus Finance

Corporation (BCFC) and the Bank as well as via

the internet. In addition, customers can be

directly serviced at the point of sale, where they

can obtain hire purchase and leasing finance for

objects such as cars, machinery, office

equipment, furniture, domestic appliances, etc. 

BCFC has invested heavily in providing

improved quality of service to its associates and

in upgrading its credit risk management

systems and procedures.

The Company focusses on the following

objectives:  

the continuous training and development of

its human resources,

the adjustment to the new conditions

which are being created both in the

economy and the legal framework, as a

result of EU accession,

the expansion of its efinder website to

cover other items, in addition to cars, and

the introduction of systems which use the

latest technology in order to offer an improved

level of service to customers and associates.

The anticipated reduction in consumption taxes

on new and used cars during 2003 had an

adverse impact on the operations of BCFC.

During December, however, turnover began to

increase as a result of the introduction of

reduced charges for car financing by BCFC. 

The accession of Cyprus to the EU in 2004 is

expected to lead to increased competition from

foreign banks. Developments are also expected

in the legal framework governing leasing

finance, which will enable finance houses to

offer leasing finance for movable objects (such

as machinery, cars, equipment) as well as for

real estate.

Kyprou Leasing

In Greece, fifteen companies are active in the

leasing sector. Three of these commenced

operations during 2003. Competition in the

leasing sector is very intense, especially in

property leasing.

Kyprou Leasing is a significant player in the

market and, for the past three years, consistently

ranks among the four largest companies in the

sector. In 2003, the Company ranked third

among all Greek leasing companies. The primary

competitive advantage of Kyprou Leasing is its

speedy and impeccable customer service as well

as its know-how.

The Company holds a leading position in

vendor leasing and maintains strong

commercial relations with its associates in the

lorry, construction machinery, printing and

medical equipment sectors.

Kyprou Leasing also achieved huge

increases in the area of property leasing. The

total of new leasing contracts during 2003

reached ú120 million.

The Company’s objectives for 2004 are:

to further strengthen its market share, in

order to consistently rank among the three

largest companies in the sector and to

boost its profitability,

to maintain and reinforce its leading

position in vendor leasing, and

to acquire a leading position in property

leasing.

The products of Kyprou Leasing are

continuously enriched and are addressed to

businesses of all sizes, with emphasis on SMEs

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

RETAIL CUSTOMERS AND SMALL AND MEDIUM SIZED ENTERPRISES 
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and self-employed business people.

The Company’s members of staff are well

trained, reliable and professional. A Customer

Service Centre has recently been established in

order to better service the Company’s

customers via the telephone.

The enactment of legislation abolishing

the capital gains tax on property sale and

leaseback transactions is expected during 2004.

It is anticipated that the enactment of this

legislation will significantly boost the volume

of these transactions. 

Alternative Distribution Channels
The Direct Banking Unit was established in

Cyprus in 2000 in order to provide round-the-

clock customer service through alternative

distribution channels such as the internet,

telephone, mobile telephone and Automatic

Teller Machines (ATMs).  

The use of the alternative distribution

channels is well established with customers.

This is indicated by the 39% increase in

subscriber numbers during 2003. Moreover, the

number of transactions processed through the

Direct Banking Unit during 2003 was 49%

higher than 2002.

In 2003, the Unit upgraded its website,

making it more user-friendly.

Another development was the introduction of

the innovative Digipass system, which provides

enhanced security for customers making

payments or money transfers via Direct Banking.

The introduction of this system provides Bank of

Cyprus with a competitive advantage.

The Unit has received the ‘Committed to

Excellence’ award from the European

Foundation for Quality Management (EFQM).

Operating under the logo Banking

transactions quickly and easily, every day-all

day, Bank of Cyprus Greece ensures that it

stands by the side of each customer, 24 hours a

day through a number of distribution channels,

such as the internet, telephone, mobile

telephone and ATMs. The Bank also operates

the Loan by Phone Unit which provides

information and accepts applications for

consumer loans. During 2003, the total

number of subscribers increased by:

23% for the Phone Banking Unit,

52% for the Internet Banking Unit, and

21% for the Mobile Banking Unit. 

At the end of 2003, Bank of Cyprus had 108

ATMs located across the whole of Greece, 20%

more than at the end of 2002; 23 of these ATMs

are at off-site locations.

During 2003, the Bank proceeded with a

radical upgrading of the technological

infrastructure supporting its alternative

distribution channels in order to better meet

the increasing needs of its customers by

offering new applications and an enriched

range of services.

In the United Kingdom, in addition to ATMs,

the Bank also offers internet banking services.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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Plastic Cards
In Cyprus, Bank of Cyprus has already

established its leading market position in the

area of cards and has maintained the disparity

it has from the competition in terms of market

share. The Bank’s market share for 2003 in

terms of card turnover among commercial

bank customers reached 44,3%.

Bank of Cyprus currently issues Visa,

MasterCard, Diners and American Express

cards. The objective is to further exploit the

range of existing brands represented by the

Bank. This is expected to be implemented by

utilising the Bank’s existing and new products

which will respond to market needs, with

special emphasis on exploiting the Bank’s

existing customer base. In this context, a

significant number of American Express cards

has already been issued to individuals and

business people. Being American Express

cardholders, the Bank’s customers can now

enjoy a unique combination of impeccable

service, privileges and exclusive benefits,

which are innovative for the Cyprus market.

The Bank’s Card Centre was granted the ‘GNS

Marketing Award Honourable Mention’ in the

category ‘New Product Development’. All

worldwide associate banks of American Express

participate in this competition.

In Greece, Bank of Cyprus has made

significant progress in the area of credit cards

during 2003. The large variety of cards offered

by the Bank (Kyprou Visa Classic, Gold, Electron,

Business, Club Nokia Visa Plus, mediEXCLUSIVE,

MasterCard and the debit card) and the

continuous upgrading of the services offered to

cardholders, enabled the Bank to both retain its

existing customers and attract new ones. More

specifically, the growth rates during 2003 were

as follows: the number of cards in issue

increased by 42%, total debit balances rose by

48% and the value of transactions settled by

card increased by 27%.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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EUROPE : alignment . foundations . infrastructure  



The Cyprus banking system is ready for the accession of Cyprus to the European

Union and is aligned with the provisions of the acquis communautaire.

The Bank of Cyprus Group has set the foundations and has put the infrastructure

in place, in order to be able to promptly meet any competitive challenges which

may arise. 



Corporate Banking Centres and
Business Development 
The services offered by the Bank’s Corporate

Banking Division in Cyprus and Greece, in

co-operation with the other Group companies,

fully cover the needs of Corporate clients. The

Division offers traditional credit products, as

well as specialised financial ‘tools’ which

contribute towards the realisation of the

strategic plans and expansion programmes of

businesses, examples of which are: leasing,

factoring, project finance, investment

banking, brokerage, investment and

insurance services.

In Cyprus, the Bank is firmly established as,

probably, the leading bank on the island in

the area of Corporate Banking, having

retained its existing customer base and having

successfully attracted new customers.

Through its thirteen specialised Corporate

Banking Centres, Bank of Cyprus offers a

range of products and services, always

working closely with the Group’s subsidiaries.

The success of the Corporate Banking

Division is spearheaded by the utilisation of

relationship bankers, who focus on building

personal relationships with their customers. The

Corporate Banking Division places special

emphasis on the continuous training and

development of its carefully selected officers.

In view of the accession of Cyprus to the EU,

the achievement of further improvements in the

quality of the Corporate Banking portfolio and

the increase of its profitable advances,

constitute the cornerstones of the Division’s

strategic direction.

The Division also intends to introduce new

lending and deposit products, taking into

consideration the prevailing market

conditions and the changing needs of

Corporate businesses, as they evolve after the

island’s accession to the EU.  

The Division also places particular emphasis

on the better utilisation of its technological

infrastructure and on promoting the use of the

Bank’s alternative distribution channels.

In the context of offering better customer

service, the Division organised educational

seminars for its customers, covering the

consequences of Cyprus’ accession to the EU

for the individual sectors of the economy.

In Greece, the Corporate Banking Division

continued its growing and profitable path in

the context of the extremely competitive and

changing environment prevailing in the Greek

banking market. During 2003, the banking

scene was adversely affected by the problems

faced by many businesses as a result of the

international environment and the protracted

stagnation in the Athens Exchange.

A key objective for 2004 is the achievement

of increased market penetration in the wider

area of healthy corporate enterprises and, in

parallel, the increase of our balance sheet

footings and profitability. Another objective is

the effective management of credit risk and the

formulation and maintenance of a high level of

quality in the portfolio of advances. 

In order to better achieve its objectives, the

Division was restructured during 2003,

especially in the Attica region. As a result, the

number of Corporate Centres operating in the

Attica region was increased from two to four. In

addition, the structure of the Loans Support

Unit was strengthened, through its better

staffing and the clear setting of responsibility

levels for its officers.

The establishment of the required

infrastructure in terms of human resources, in

conjunction with the favourable prospects of

THE PROFESSIONALISM, EXCELLENT CUSTOMER SERVICE, FLEXIBILITY 

AND HUMAN APPROACH OF THE CORPORATE BANKING DIVISION

ARE ITS MAIN COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

CORPORATE BANKING

32



33

economic development in Greece, primarily as

a result of the Olympic Games, provide the

best prerequisites for the achievement of the

targets set for 2004.

Corporate customers are serviced by the

Corporate Banking Division in the United

Kingdom and by the Corporate Business

Centres in Australia.

Factoring Services
Bank of Cyprus Factors

Bank of Cyprus Factors operates in Cyprus and

provides a wide range of working capital

finance services as well as specialised sales

ledger management, collection and consulting

services covering credit policy and, more

generally, working capital management.

The past year was very satisfactory for Bank

of Cyprus Factors. The Company took advantage

of its extensive know-how and of the available

Group synergies, thus achieving a 14% increase

in turnover, from Cí465 million in 2002 to

Cí531 million in 2003.

Bank of Cyprus Factors focuses its

investments in sectors which provide it with a

relative competitive advantage in order to

exploit the anticipated changes in the local

economic environment for the benefit of its

customers. The Company’s prime objective is

the satisfactory and steady increase in its

profitability and its establishment as the leading

company in the Cyprus factoring market.

The achievement of the Company’s

objectives require further exploitation of the

synergies that are available with the Bank, the

full implementation of a credit control system

and additional investments in technology,

which are expected to add value to the

services offered to customers.

Factoring Services in Greece

(Kyprou Factors)

The fast pace of growth of both the Greek

factoring market and of Kyprou Factors

continued during 2003.

Ten companies and/or divisions of banks

were operating in the Greek factoring market in

2003, against eight in 2002. Based on its

turnover, Kyprou Factors is the third largest

factoring organisation in the market, compared

to the fifth position held by the Division in 2002

(its first year of operation).

The total size of the factoring market during

2003 is estimated at around ú4,3 billion (an

increase of 39%) and the turnover of Kyprou

Factors reached ú480 million during that year

(an increase of 182%). The market share of

Kyprou Factors in 2003 is estimated at around

11,5%, compared to 5,5% in 2002.

During 2003, three regional offices of Kyprou

Factors were established, in Northern Greece,

Crete and Central Greece.

The most important competitive advantages

of Kyprou Factors are the many years of

expertise of the Bank in the factoring business,

the close co-operation of the Division with the

Bank’s branch network and the professionalism

of the Division’s officers. The key growth

objective of Kyprou Factors remains its parallel

expansion in the domestic and international

market (export and import factoring), where

there are significant expansion opportunities

at present.

The expansion of the customer base of

Kyprou Factors relies on two pillars: the

establishment of business ties with existing

customers of the Bank and entering into new

business agreements with non-Bank

customers. Small and Medium sized businesses

are a key target market of Kyprou Factors, as
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they are a dynamic segment of the market

which grows at a fast pace, thus being in

need of factoring services. 

The fast growth of the market is expected to

continue during 2004, at an estimated rate of

around 28%. Competition is also expected to

intensify as a result of the entry of new

companies or divisions of banks into the market. 

More specifically, the growth rate of Kyprou

Factors is expected to remain at the

particularly high levels of the past and to

consistently rank among the three largest

organisations in the sector. 

The business plan of Kyprou Factors

predicts that over the next five years, the

Division will succeed in further increasing its

market share (which is expected to reach

around 20%), thus safeguarding the Division’s

position as one of the three largest factoring

organisations in Greece.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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Private Banking services are offered by Units of

Bank of Cyprus in Cyprus, Greece and the

Channel Islands. The close co-operation of the

Private Banking Units with Bank of Cyprus

(London) and Bank of Cyprus Australia, as well

as with the Group’s Representative Offices,

ensures the servicing of customers in all the

countries where the Group has a presence.

The products and services of the Private

Banking Unit in Cyprus are addressed to high

net worth individuals and institutional investors.  

The Unit offers a broad range of

international investment products, including:

deposit schemes in all major currencies,

offered in Cyprus, Greece, the United

Kingdom and the Channel Islands,

the BOC Global Equity Fund, which is the

Bank’s own international mutual fund,

a wide range of mutual funds of the Swiss

bank UBS, 

capital guaranteed products,

multi-manager hedge funds of Global Asset

Management (GAM), a subsidiary of UBS, and 

global brokerage services for shares and bonds.

The high quality of service offered to the Unit’s

customers has won international recognition. In

a recent survey covering the Private Banking

sector, the ‘Euromoney’ magazine has ranked

the Private Banking Unit of Bank of Cyprus as

the top institution in Cyprus and has awarded it

the first prize of ‘Best Private Bank in Cyprus’. 

The recovery in the international

stockmarkets during 2003 had a very positive

impact on the development of the Unit’s

operations and their profitability. During 2003,

the Private Banking Unit established a close

co-operation with the Fund Management Unit

of the Group’s investment banking company,

CISCO, in order to offer global fund

management services.

The ‘Investment Firms Law’ came into force

during 2003. The Private Banking Unit has fully

complied with the provisions of this law.

In view of the expected abolition of exchange

controls in Cyprus, the Unit has adequately

prepared to provide global investment services

to permanent residents of Cyprus.

In Greece, the Private Banking Unit offers

specialised investment products in co-

operation with the largest international

investment houses. As a result, the Unit has

differentiated itself from its competitors in

that it does not have a monopolistic

relationship with one investment house but,

instead, offers its customers a broad range of

investment products.

The aim of the Unit is to offer a strictly

personal service, tailored to the needs of every

individual customer. The Unit established

customer service teams located across Greece,

with the aim of increasing its market share.

The Unit provides access to the

international bond markets and all foreign

stockmarkets and offers Greek mutual funds,

mutual funds of international banks, structured

products and access to the foreign exchange

market on a 24-hour basis.

Bank of Cyprus (Channel Islands) offers its

customers innovative deposit and lending

products in one of the world’s most reputable

financial centres. It also offers Private Banking

and international investment and brokerage

services. During 2003, the deposits of Bank of

Cyprus (Channel Islands) recorded an impressive

increase, which significantly exceeded the

budget set at the beginning of the year.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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Mutual Fund Management
Bank of Cyprus Mutual Funds 

Bank of Cyprus Mutual Funds was established

in Cyprus in order to offer mutual funds

combined with a high level of personalised

service. The Group’s international expertise in

the area of mutual funds has laid the

foundations for offering the most innovative

funds in the Cyprus market. 

In November 2003, the Company obtained

a licence to operate as a Mutual Fund

Management Company (‘EDAK’) by the Cyprus

Securities and Exchange Commission. The

Company will commence the distribution of

two mutual funds, an equity and a mixed

fund, as soon as it obtains the approval of the

Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission

for the establishment of these funds.

Kyprou Mutual Fund Management 

Company (AEDAK)

In Greece, Kyprou AEDAK maintained during

2003 the high market ranking it achieved

in 2002.

The mutual funds managed by Kyprou

AEDAK achieved significant returns in

comparison to their benchmark indices and to

the average return of all funds in their

respective category, thus achieving high

rankings against the competition.

The Company’s total funds under management

in 2003 amounted to ú473 million and its

market share was 1,56%. Kyprou AEDAK ranks

at the 11th position, out of a total of 29

mutual fund management companies

operating in Greece.

During 2004, the Company intends to

strengthen the promotion of its mutual funds

through the Bank’s branch network, the Private

Banking Unit and directly to institutional

investors, in order to increase its funds under

management.

The objective of the Company’s investment

strategy remains to achieve higher returns

than the benchmark indices of each fund,

while exposing its customers to the lowest

possible level of investment risk.

BOC International Fund Management

BOC International Fund Management

continued for the ninth consecutive year to

offer the BOC Global Equity Fund, a mutual

fund that invests in shares listed on all major

international stock exchanges. The BOC Global

Equity Fund is the first and only international

mutual fund established by a Cypriot bank.

The Fund’s returns and total assets under

management during 2003 were very

satisfactory.
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Annual increase in funds 

Returns Ranking under management, 2003 

Mutual Fund (MF) Kyprou Market  Kyprou 
AEDAK Benchmark  average for AEDAK Kyprou Total 

MF index category MF AEDAK market

Money market 3,25% 2,23% 2,18% 2 from 35 -25,01% +45,94%

Bond 2,44% 4,70% 2,41% 13 from 32 +70,53% +19,50%

Equity 29,02% 29,46% 23,40% 20 from 68 +34,51% +23,51%

Asset Allocation 26,08% 14,61% 12,67% 1 from 25 +459,06% -45,93%

Dynamic Equity 39,35% 26,77% 23,40% 4 from 68 +746,39% +23,51%

Source: Association of Greek Institutional Investors, Kyprou AEDAK

Returns and Ranking of the Kyprou AEDAK Mutual Funds 



Group Treasury has the responsibility for

managing the Group’s assets and liabilities, in

the context of the strategy set out by the Group

Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). Group

Treasury is active in the currency, money, bond

and derivative markets, with the objective of

effectively managing the Group’s risks

(currency, interest rate, liquidity, etc.) within

strict limits set by the Group ALCO. 

The Treasury Unit in Cyprus holds a leading

position in the currency market for the Cyprus

Pound, the banknotes market, the primary

market for securities issued by the Cyprus

government and the distribution of structured

deposit products through the branch network

and the Private Banking Unit.

During 2003, Group Treasury was an active

participant in the Bank’s effort to increase its

capital, by designing and marketing the

Cí150 million Capital Securities Programme

and the ú750 million Euro Medium Term Note

(EMTN) Programme. In the context of the

Capital Securities Programme, the Bank

proceeded with the issue of Cí65 million Series

A Capital Securities in Cyprus. In March 2004,

the Bank completed the issue of Series B Capital

Securities for a total amount of Cí30 million.

Through its EMTN Programme, the Bank

issued ú200 million Subordinated Bonds (Tier

II capital) in the international markets and

three international Senior Debt issues for a

total amount of ú258 million.

In Greece, Kyprou Securities came under the

management supervision of the Treasury Unit of

Bank of Cyprus Greece, thus taking advantage

of the available synergies in the money and

investment markets. 

Group Treasury also achieved further

diversification in the Group’s bond portfolio,

which comprises mainly government and

bank bonds, by including investments in

German Pfandbriefe and bonds issued by

US Agencies.

As a result of the imminent lifting of exchange

controls in Cyprus by May 2004, the Cyprus

Treasury will focus its efforts in the currency

markets, in liquidity management and the

distribution of structured products. 

Other objectives of Group Treasury for 2004

are to expand the co-operation between the

Treasury Units to cover derivatives transactions

and the distribution of structured products, to

commence trading in new types of derivatives, to

complete the introduction of the new Dealing

Room IT system and to operate a Dealing Room in

Bank of Cyprus Australia.
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EUROPE : upgrading . efficiency . professionalism 



Liberalisation will lead the banking sector to take additional measures for the

upgrading of its services and the boosting of its efficiency, thus maximising

profitability and minimising costs.

Competition will lead to the introduction of innovative products, impose higher

levels of professionalism and improvement in the services offered, for the benefit

of Retail customers as well as Businesses. 



The Group Risk Executive Committee (GREC)

was set up in 2002, in order to monitor all risks

arising from the Group’s banking activities. A

detailed assessment of risks was carried out and

responsibilities were assigned to designated

officers and departments for the identification

and monitoring of each risk. The Group Risk

Management Unit (GRMU) is charged with the

co-ordination of the Committee’s work. 

The area of risk management is continuously

evolving. The appointed officers ensure that

they are regularly informed of the latest best

practices and regulations of the relevant

authorities, both in Cyprus and abroad. The

Group’s management has placed great

emphasis on risk management and to this end,

the infrastructure of the risk management units

in Cyprus and abroad is continuously upgraded.

The Group is fully aware of the requirements

of the Basle Committee (Basle II) and the relevant

EU Directive (CAD 3) and, in co-operation with

the Central Bank of Cyprus, is preparing to

adopt contemporary risk monitoring and

measurement methods for all types of risk

(credit, market and operational), which will

minimise these risks and will result in a lower

capital requirement.

Credit Risk Management

The Bank of Cyprus Group places emphasis

on the effective management of credit risk

and the improvement of its portfolio of

advances. The results of these efforts are of

increased significance in the current

environment, which is adversely affected by a

series of economic conjunctures, both in

Cyprus and internationally.

Monitoring and Control

of Loan Portfolio Quality

As a result of the adverse economic

developments during 2003, credit risk

management and the improvement of the

quality of the credit portfolio are of utmost

importance. The primary objective of the Group

is the significant reduction of non-performing

loans and loans in arrears. To this end, the

Group’s portfolio of advances is closely

monitored and controlled centrally by the

relevant head office units of the Group.

Loan Sanctioning Policy

A significant element of the effective

management of credit risk during 2003 was

the upgrading of the system used for the

analysis, assessment and interpretation of

data for the economy of Cyprus and for the

Group’s portfolio of business advances. As a

result, the Group has developed and

implemented a more rational and selective

loan sanctioning policy.

The Group’s credit dispensing policy is now

more aligned with the appraisal of credit risk at

sector/industry level. The Group’s branch

network follows detailed instructions and

practical guidelines which facilitate the efforts

of the various departments and officers of the

Group for the healthy expansion of the portfolio

and for penetration into new markets.

Assessment of Credit Risk and

Creditworthiness of Customers

Another important aspect of the active

management of credit risk, which has significant

long term benefits, is the development and

upgrading of new and existing systems for

assessing the creditworthiness of customers.

The Group successfully utilises supportive tools

that facilitate peripheral but equally important

activities, such as the costing of credit risk at

customer level. 

With the objective of aligning itself with the

existing international regulations on the one

hand, and more specifically the EU Directives

and the guidelines of the Basle Committee and,

the international best practices on the other
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hand, the Group continued the upgrading of

its relevant systems during 2003. Specifically,

the Group completed the development of a

specialised system for the assessment of credit

risk for small and medium sized enterprises.

The deployment and utilisation of the system

will commence during 2004. This new and

innovative system, which was developed in

co-operation with Moody’s, the international

credit rating agency, constitutes a

comprehensive system for the assessment of

all aspects of credit risk. This new system will

measure and rate the customer’s

creditworthiness, based on the following

criteria: the financial performance of the

business, the trends and prospects of the

sector in which the business operates, the

financial robustness of the guarantors and

managers, the tangible security and, finally,

the past conduct of the existing bank

accounts of both the enterprise and its

guarantors or managers.

In the Retail sector, the Group has

expanded and upgraded significantly its

Behavioural Scoring system (which assesses

and scores the customer’s past account

conduct) in order to be more effectively used

in the sanctioning process for new banking

facilities and the monitoring and review of the

credit obligations of existing customers.

Future Plans

The systematic actions taken for upgrading the

Group’s credit risk management systems will

continue during 2004, in order to ensure that

these systems are compatible with the new

requirements arising from the continuously

changing international best practices and the

regulations of the EU and the Basle Committee,

especially in light of the implementation of the

Second Basle Accord (Basle II). Our aspiration is

to develop a complete system for the

assessment and measurement of credit risk,

which will cover the entire portfolio of the

Group and which will combine the assessment

of the customer’s creditworthiness (probability

of default) with the security held (amount of

probable loss in case of default). This will

facilitate the more accurate estimation of the

amount of future non-performing loans and,

therefore, of the required capital as defined by

the regulatory guidelines. Our prime objective

remains the uniform handling of credit risk

across all banking units of the Group, in Cyprus,

Greece, the United Kingdom and Australia.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of losses arising

from fluctuations in market prices - primarily

interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices.

This risk may arise from trading transactions or

as a result of asset-liability management.

The Group Asset and Liability Committee

(ALCO) has defined specific strategies to be

followed for the management of interest rate

risk and exchange risk, which include a wide

range of limits, including strict open position

limits. The Group Risk Management Unit

(GRMU) is responsible for the monitoring of all

risks arising from the activities of Group

Treasury. This is achieved through officers at all

the banking units of the Group, who are

charged with responsibility for the monitoring

of risks on a daily basis and to report violations

to the GRMU. The GRMU reports any limit

violations to the relevant General Managers on

a daily basis and to the Group ALCO on a

monthly basis. 

The management of interest rate risk is

carried out through maximum loss limits which

THE MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK AND THE IMPROVEMENT 

OF THE QUALITY OF THE CREDIT PORTFOLIO ARE OF UTMOST 

IMPORTANCE FOR THE GROUP
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are set for each banking unit of the Group.

There are separate limits for the Cyprus pound

and for other currencies. The maximum loss

limits were defined as a percentage of the

Bank’s net interest income.

The ALCO has set open position limits for the

management of exchange risk. There are larger

limits for intra-day positions (open positions

during working hours) and smaller limits for

overnight open positions.

The open position limits are lower than the

limits set by the Central Bank of Cyprus and

which are:

8% of the capital base for intra-day and 6%

for overnight open positions, for the total of

all currencies, and

5% of the capital base for intra-day and 3%

for overnight open positions of each

individual currency.

The ALCO has also approved maximum loss

limits (daily and monthly) which are also

monitored by the GRMU.

Market risk arising from changes in equity

prices is managed through limits on the

maximum amounts that can be invested in

shares for trading purposes as well as other

restrictions, such as maximum investment limits

per issuer, per sector, etc.

Liquidity Risk

Group Treasury has the responsibility for

liquidity management, in order to ensure that

the Group is able, at any point in time, to

honour its current and future obligations. To

this end, the Group maintains permanent cash

and cash equivalent balances in the major

currencies in which it trades.

The GRMU monitors the Bank’s liquidity

and ensures adherence to the various limits

(e.g. liquidity mismatch limits) set by the ALCO

and the supervisory authorities in the

countries where the Group operates.

During 2003, the Group commenced the

automation of its asset and liability

management, which is expected to be

completed at the beginning of 2004. The new

system will further upgrade the

methodologies and accuracy of the

measurement of the Group’s interest rate and

liquidity risk.

Operational Risk

Operational risk arises from all the activities of

the Group and is defined as the risk of losses

arising due to the non-effectiveness or failure

of internal procedures and systems or as a

result of human error.

The GREC has the responsibility for

monitoring operational risk. The Group

manages this risk by applying adequate

procedures and controls in all its activities.

The following departments support the proper

implementation of the above strategy:

Organisation and Methods, Information

Technology, Internal Legal Services,

Compliance, Financial Control, Technical

Services and Human Resource. 

The GREC has requested the preparation of

a report setting out the global best practices

for the measurement and monitoring of

operational risk. The GREC intends to

formulate the basis for a comprehensive

monitoring framework of operational risk

during 2004.

In the context of its management of

operational risk, the Group has designed and

implemented a business continuity plan.

Under this plan, the Group ensures the

immediate continuity of its service provision

to customers, the speedy and smooth

restoration of the full operation of the Group

and the minimisation of the financial

consequences of the disruption.

The Group also plans to instruct the

construction of a building which will house all

its vital activities and which will be able to
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become operational (in terms of systems and

human resources) immediately when needed.

This building will be jointly owned with

JCC Payment Systems. Through this disaster

recovery site, the Group will achieve the

comprehensive back-up coverage of its

activities from two separate buildings.

Non-Compliance Risk

The risk of non-compliance arises from the

Group’s failure or inability to comply with the

laws or other rules and regulations and codes

which govern its operation. The Group aims to be

in compliance with, inter alia, the directives of

the supervisory authorities, the money

laundering legislation and the laws and

regulations of the stockmarket authorities and

the Securities and Exchange Commission. The

responsibility for compliance lies with the

General Managers and Heads of each unit,

supported by the relevant Compliance Officer.

Legal Risk

The Internal Legal Services Department monitors

the introduction of new legislation and the

amendments to existing laws, in order to identify

possible areas of legal risk that may arise as a

result thereof. The Department also provides

advice regarding the required actions that need

to be taken to ensure that the Bank is

safeguarded against legal risk. The Internal Legal

Services Department also provides legal support

to the various units of the Bank and identifies

and manages the legal and related risks.
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EUROPE  : service centre . communication bridge . new dynamism



As Cyprus becomes part of an enlarged market, the European Union, new

opportunities will arise, which will enable Cyprus to be further established as a

significant regional service centre.

Cyprus will also provide a communication bridge between the European Union

and the neighbouring countries of the Eastern Mediterranean.



International Business Units (IBUs) 
The International Business Units (IBUs), set up in

1991 in Cyprus, continue their successful

presence, offering high quality services in this

well-established sector, thus making a

significant contribution to Group profitability.

The main characteristics of the IBUs are the

flexibility and adaptability of their services, in

order to satisfy the needs of this continuously

changing market. In this context, the IBUs

continuously endeavour to improve and

upgrade their technological infrastructure to

achieve improved operational efficiency. The

increased number of staff and the training and

development of existing staff on a regular basis,

enables the IBUs to provide the best level of

personalised service to their customers, despite

the geographic distance with customers, which is

a necessary evil of an international customer base.

New hours of operation were introduced at

the IBUs in November 2003, for the better

servicing of their customers. The IBUs now

operate daily until 6.00 p.m., offering a

significant and unprecedented level of service,

by Cyprus standards, which is aligned to the

needs of customers, wherever in the world they

may be.   

Representative Offices
During 2003 the Bank’s Representative Offices

continued their successful operation in the

countries where they are located. The Bank has

a dynamic presence in five countries located on

all continents: South Africa, Canada, USA, Russia

and Romania. 

The Group’s customers enjoy the high level

of service offered by these Representative

Offices, wherever they may be, thus bridging

the distance with Cyprus, Greece and the United

Kingdom. The Offices also have a social and

cultural role, thus fulfilling the Group’s promise

to support the Greeks living abroad.  

By operating in the heart of the active

Hellenic communities of New York, Canada and

South Africa, Bank of Cyprus offers support and

assistance to the expatriate Cypriots and Greeks.

The experienced and skilled officers of the Bank

provide expatriates with information and access

to the whole range of services offered by the

Group, thus being commendable overseas

representatives of the Group. 

Bank of Cyprus also continued to operate in

Russia and Romania, where in the past years it

has established a successful presence through

the Representative Offices, thus promoting

Cyprus as a service centre and an international

business centre. The Representative Offices in

these countries also have a strategic role, which

encompasses the monitoring and evaluation of

the social and economic developments in these

countries. The Group has already began the

process for opening a second Representative

Office in Russia, in St Petersburg, upon receipt

of the required regulatory approvals. 

THE INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS UNITS OFFER HIGH QUALITY SERVICES, 

THUS MAKING A SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP PROFITABILITY

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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General Insurance
The Group offers general insurance services

through its subsidiary company, General

Insurance of Cyprus, which is based in Cyprus.

In 2001 the Company established a branch in

Greece, under the name Kyprou Asfalistiki,

which operates in parallel to the Group’s

subsidiary Kyprou Insurance Services.

General Insurance of Cyprus

In Cyprus, the General Insurance of Cyprus

continued its expansionary course during 2003,

despite the extremely adverse conditions

prevailing in the insurance sector. The

Company’s total premiums in 2003 reached

Cí19,1 million, compared to Cí16,2 million in

2002, marking an increase of 18%. It is expected

that this growth rate is higher than the growth

rate achieved by the market and this is so for

the seventh consecutive year.

Through the adoption of sound insurance

principles in its pricing and risk taking

strategies, as well as through the rational

expansion of each line of business, the

Company maintains a portfolio of contracts that

is unique for the Cyprus market as regards its

composition and quality. This strategy did not

prevent the Company from continuing its

expansionary course. According to the official

data released by the Office of the

Superintendent of Insurance, the Company’s

market share was increased from 11,9% in 2001

to 12,3% in 2002.

The Company’s success is the result of its clearly

defined strategy, which is based on the distribution

of insurance products through contemporary

bancassurance methods, the capabilities offered by

the latest technology, the continuous promotion of

professionalism and the emphasis placed on staff

development.

During 2003 the Company completed the

planned restructuring of its head office

operations, in the context of the

implementation of its customer-focussed

strategy. As a result of this strategy, the

Company has established a branch in Nicosia,

in order to better serve its customers. This

restructuring will also enable the head office

departments to focus on their supporting role.

During 2004, the Company plans to further

develop Telefthia, its customer service call

centre, in order to offer new products such as

home insurance, in addition to the existing

motor insurance products.

During 2003, the General Insurance of Cyprus

carried out a large-scale market survey, which

indicated the Company’s improvement over the

past five years and the very positive perception

the Company enjoys amongst the public, who

consider it as the most reliable general

insurance company in Cyprus.    
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Kyprou Asfalistiki and Kyprou

Insurance Services

There are 68 companies operating in the

general insurance sector in Greece, 41 of which

are Greek companies and 27 are branches of

foreign insurance companies. Total premium

production in the general insurance sector

reached ú1,70 billion in 2003, marking an

increase of 13,1% over 2002 for the third

consecutive year.  

The branch of General Insurance of Cyprus in

Greece, Kyprou Asfalistiki, also had a successful

year. The volume of business achieved by

Kyprou Asfalistiki and by Kyprou Insurance

Services, the Group’s insurance brokerage

company, showed a significant increase. Total

gross premiums in 2003 reached ú4,2 million,

against ú3,1 million in 2002 and ú1,7 million in

2001, marking an increase of 35% over 2002.

The insurance products of Kyprou Asfalistiki

cover a broad range of customer segments, such

as individuals, professionals and businesses.

Kyprou Asfalistiki’s firm strategy is to grow

organically, with the objective of offering

innovative insurance products to the Bank’s

customer base in Greece.

During 2003, Kyprou Asfalistiki continued to

offer its innovative home insurance products as

well as personal accident, medical indemnity

and transport insurance products. 

Kyprou Asfalistiki aims at increasing its net

premium production in order to rank among

the five largest branches of foreign insurance

companies in Greece, in terms of market share,

during the next few years.

Life Insurance
The Group offers life insurance services

through its subsidiary, EuroLife, which is based

in Cyprus. In 2001, EuroLife established a

branch in Greece under the name Kyprou Zois.

EuroLife

In Cyprus, the life insurance sector was on a

declining trend for the third consecutive year.

Despite the lower volume of new sales, the

competitive position of EuroLife continues to

improve as a result of its relatively better

performance than its main competitors, during

this difficult period for the industry. EuroLife’s

annualised premiums generated from sales of

new individual policies showed a 14% decrease,

compared to a 22% decrease during the

previous year, and amounted to Cí5,1 million.

The Company’s total premium income for 2003

was Cí41,9 million.

Since 2002, the latest year for which official

market data is available, EuroLife holds the

largest market share in the life insurance sector

in terms of both new policies sold as well as

total premium income. During 2002, EuroLife’s

market share in terms of total premiums from
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individual regular premium policies was 26,9%.

The Company’s share in terms of new sales of

individual regular premium policies was 29,1%.

The Company’s investment funds reverted to

positive returns for the first time since 1999, as a

result of the recovery of the international

stockmarkets during the second half of 2003.

Having completed their first full year of operation,

EuroLife’s new investment funds offer customers a

complete range of options to meet their individual

preferences, enabling them to manage their

investment risk and to take advantage of new

investment opportunities.

The financial results of EuroLife for 2003

showed a spectacular improvement and its

profit after tax reached Cí8,5 million, in relation

to Cí3,1 million during 2002. A large part of the

increased profitability is due to the lower claims

ratio and the increase in sales of pure insurance

cover products, instead of investment products.

EuroLife also continued for the third year the

implementation of a cost control programme.

The Company’s strategic objectives include

upgrading the quality of customer service and

improving productivity through the utilisation of

technology and the more comprehensive

education and support of its sales network with

electronic sales tools. EuroLife also intends to

further exploit its synergies with the rest of the

Group especially in sales and investment

management, in order to further improve its

quality of service to customers.

Kyprou Zois

Kyprou Zois is the branch of EuroLife in Greece

and it has been in operation since 2001.

Kyprou Zois specialises in the provision of

bancassurance products which are distributed

through the branch network of Bank of Cyprus.

The objective of Kyprou Zois is the provision of

life insurance products which are linked to the

products and services offered by Bank of Cyprus

to individuals and businesses and which can be

sold through the Bank’s distribution channels.

The life insurance market in Greece has been

stagnant over the past few years. Premium

production for the life insurance sector remained

unchanged during the period 1999 to 2002.

It is noteworthy that despite its short-lived

existence, Kyprou Zois has already succeeded in

being profitable, recording a profit after tax of

ú140 000 during 2003. 

During 2003, Kyprou Zois expanded its range

of credit insurance products offered to the

Bank’s customer base and introduced two

individual savings plans. At the first stage of its

development, Kyprou Zois focussed on the

provision of insurance packages linked to the

Bank’s lending products. It also designed credit

insurance products on business loans, which are

offered through the Business Centres as well as

credit insurance for the Bank’s credit card

holders. At a later stage, Kyprou Zois created

free-standing unit-linked pension plans and

cover of educational cost products. 

During 2004, the infrastructure of Kyprou

Zois will be improved in order to be able to

effectively support its growing sales and its

increased range of products. Moreover, the

free-standing unit-linked products will be

expanded with the creation of pure insurance

unit-linked products as well as products that

cover wider needs such as accident and health.
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EUROPE : leadership . new direction . development



With existing presence in two European countries, Greece and the United Kingdom,

the Group has both the experience and the expertise to promptly and flexibly face the

challenges which are created as a result of Cyprus’ new direction.

The internationalisation of the Group (Cyprus, Greece, United Kingdom, Channel

Islands, Australia) provides us with a competitive advantage, as it creates significant

expansion opportunities through the exploitation of synergies amongst these units,

taking advantage of the Group’s customer base and, in furtherance, increasing the

Group’s revenues and securing its leadership.



Investment Banking 
and Related Services
The Group provides investment banking and

related services through two subsidiaries: the

Cyprus Investment and Securities

Corporation (CISCO) in Cyprus and Kyprou

Securities in Greece.

Cyprus Investment and Securities

Corporation (CISCO)

CISCO offers brokerage, fund management and

investment banking services in Cyprus. CISCO

was one of the first companies in its sector to

obtain, in early 2003, a licence to operate as an

Investment Firm (KEPEY), in accordance with the

Investment Firms Law. During 2003, the number

of companies licensed to operate as Investment

Firms was reduced, primarily as a result of

mergers between brokerage offices.

During 2003, the total volume of transactions

on the Cyprus Stock Exchange (excluding

corporate and government bonds) was further

reduced to Cí151,8 million, down from

Cí366,2 million in 2002. 

Despite the mergers among competitors

and the severe recession in the brokerage

market for the fourth consecutive year,

CISCO’s Brokerage Department increased its

market share from 5,26% in 2002 to 7,09% in

2003. The Company ranked as the fourth

largest brokerage house during 2003, up from

sixth place in 2002. One of the reasons for this

improvement was the Company’s effort to

increase the number of customers using its

CISCO on-line service.

The activities of the Investment Banking

Department focussed on the provision of

advisory services in the areas of financial

planning, corporate restructuring and business

plan formulation. In the primary market, the

Company acted as the Lead Manager and

Underwriter for the issue of Cí65 million Capital

Securities by Bank of Cyprus.

In the area of fund management, the Company

has expanded its already wide range of

institutional and personal customers. In view of

the imminent liberalisation of capital movement

in Cyprus, the Company has developed a closer

co-operation with the Bank’s Private Banking

Unit, in order to offer products and services

which cover the international capital markets. 

During 2003, CISCO implemented a

restructuring plan, which resulted in the drastic

reduction of the Company’s expenses.

Kyprou Securities

During 2003, the Greek brokerage market

comprised 87 members. The total volume of

transactions during 2003 was 42% higher than

the previous year (ú34,9 billion in 2003, against

ú24,7 billion in 2002). The ten largest brokerage

companies control more than 70% of the

volume.

During 2003, Kyprou Securities had a

significant increase in its volume of transactions,

amounting to 116% (ú320 million, up from

ú149 million in 2002), compared to a 42%

increase in the total volume of the brokerage

market. The Company’s market share for 2003

was 0,46%, up from 0,30% in 2002 and the

number of its customers increased by 43%.

The aim of Kyprou Securities is to increase

its volume of business by 50%, to broaden its

customer base, to expand its co-operation

with institutional investors and listed

companies and to further explore the

synergies with Group companies and units.

The Company also intends to activate its

Asset Management department in the future.  
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Venture Capital Services 
BOC Ventures

As a result of the prevailing recession in the

venture capital market, BOC Ventures does not

carry out any new investments and proceeds

with the gradual divestment from existing

investments in this sector.

Custody Services
Bank of Cyprus provides a full range of

custody services to Cypriot and foreign

investors. Its services include settlement of

trading transactions, dividend

receipt/deposit, securities safekeeping,

preparation of tax returns, proxy voting,

investment statements and other information

that may be requested by customers. 

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT

Kermia and Kermia Properties 

and Investments

The Companies specialise in property

development and trading and in real estate

management, covering almost the whole

of Cyprus.

The market share of these Companies in

the property market is relatively small. The

two Group Companies, however, have a

competitive advantage as a result of their

reputation in the market for the prompt

completion of their projects and issuing of

title deeds.

The level of demand in the Cyprus

property market has recently been

particularly buoyant, especially in the

residential sector. The future prospects of the

sector also appear favourable.

The Companies intend to take advantage

of these favourable market conditions by

planning new property developments in the

Nicosia and Limassol regions.

The prevailing low interest rates and the

significant drop in the stock market index, led

to the turning of investors towards the

property sector, thus generating a significant

increase in property prices during 2003.

Kermia owns substantial properties in the

occupied part of Cyprus, especially in the

Nicosia region. If a solution to the Cyprus

problem is achieved, the Company may

regain ownership of many properties, which

can be developed immediately.

Kermia also operates the Kermia Beach

Bungalow Hotel, a tourist complex in Ayia

Napa, which is high in the preferences of

foreign tourists.



Employment - Recruitment 
At 31 December 2003, the Group employed

5 703 members of staff, against 5 518 in 2002,

an increase of 3%. The sex distribution of

employees is equal at 50%.

In the context of the Group’s policy for cost

containment, no new recruitments took place

during 2003 in Cyprus. Instead, emphasis was

placed on internal transfers among Group

companies, in order to satisfy the Group’s

needs. In addition, the efforts of the past years

for the automation of procedures kept the need

for additional staff to a minimum level.

In Greece, the dynamic expansion of the

Group continuously generates requirements for

capable new recruits. The expansion of the

Group’s operations and branch network,

establish it as a preferred employer. During

2003, the total number of staff employed by the

Group in Greece increased by 219. 

The Group employs international methods

and practices for its recruitment process,

including:

the assessment of applications using

predetermined criteria, 

written assessments using specialised aptitude

tests, and

staff selection through structured Staff

Assessment Centres.

Staff Assessment 
Staff is assessed once a year through the Annual

Assessment process. This system assesses staff

both for its performance against the set targets

for the year, as well as against specific

competencies which reflect the Group’s strategic

goals and objectives.

One of the key objectives of the system is to

improve the performance of staff and to

facilitate their personal development.

The Annual Assessment of middle

management is complemented by their

participation in Staff Assessment and

Development Centres. These Centres assess the

participant’s managerial skills through a series

of exercises which simulate their working

conditions. Following on from these Centres is a

Personal Development Plan, which sets specific

targets for actions aimed at developing the

officer’s skills.

The Group’s managerial staff is assessed

using 360Ô Assessment, through which

information on each person being assessed is

collected from various sources, such as their

superiors, colleagues and members of staff.

Promotion 
The main rationale for a promotion at the BOC

Group is that increased seniority must be

accompanied by the adoption of increased

duties and responsibilities. The promotions

process is based on certain criteria, such as the

performance of candidates, their development

potential, academic and professional skills,
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banking background and past experience. The

promotions process 

takes place on an annual basis through the

submission of references from the officers in

charge of each unit.

Staff Training and Development
The Group’s staff training plan is set out in order

to enable the Group to achieve its strategic

objectives, by providing technical skills training

and personal development for staff. 

Investment in training was increased during

2003, in relation to 2002. The average training

time per Group employee in 2003 was in excess

of four days, compared to three days in 2002. 

In Cyprus, the year 2003 was marked by

intensive training. In addition to the

implementation of the annual staff training

programme, the Group organised a series of

seminars focussing on the new systems which

were adopted by the Group.  

In Greece, Bank of Cyprus was awarded the

first prize in the Human Resource Training area

by the international organisation KPMG, among

many Greek and multinational companies. This

success constitutes a reward for the emphasis

placed by the Bank on staff training.

In the United Kingdom, the Bank organised

internal training courses on health and safety,

credit analysis, staff assessment and

development and people management.

Specialised training needs were satisfied by the

participation of staff in external seminars.

Staff Motivation and Satisfaction
A motivational concept which is put into

practice by the Group is a target-setting system.

An important prerequisite for the proper

motivation of staff through this target-setting

process is the achievement of a consensus and

the setting of mutually agreed targets.

In Greece and the United Kingdom the

reward of employees is linked to their

performance. These performance-linked

rewards also constitute an incentive for high

productivity and achievement by staff.

The existence of open channels of

communication and the active participation

of employees in the target-setting process of

each department, boosts the expectations

and potential for development of employees.

There are open channels of communication

across the whole of the Group, with specific

mention of the New Ideas Committee

‘Genesis’ in Greece, with participants from all

levels of the Bank’s hierarchy.

Training and Sports Centre 
The Bank of Cyprus Training and Sports Centre

has been in operation since 1999 and is

situated in a beautiful location in the outskirts

of Nicosia. The Centre is designed with the

latest international specifications and houses

the Training Centre, where all educational

seminars and Staff Assessment Centres take

place. The Centre also houses a library/

multimedia training centre, which is rich in

educational material (books, videos) that can

be borrowed by staff.

The Sports Centre is also located in the

same building, which has, among others, a

gym, a swimming pool, sports grounds and a

cafeteria for the entertainment of staff and the

development of friendships and of a sporting

spirit among members of staff.
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During 2003, the upgrading of the Bank’s

branch-based customer service systems in Cyprus

absorbed a large part of the efforts of the

Information Technology Department (ITD). The

majority of branches has been transferred to the

new working platform which operates under

Windows 2000. The installation of the new

platform in all branches is expected to be

completed during 2004. The new platform has

enabled the link between the core systems of the

branches and other support systems. Two such

support systems are the signature verification

system, which enables the automatic verification

of the customer’s signature against the archive of

signatures and the cheque access system, which

enables users to view and print customer

cheques from the archive of processed cheques.

The favourable comments of users are

indicative of the system’s benefits, which result

from a working environment that is user-friendly,

more relaxed and less vulnerable to human

error, thus ensuring the faster and upgraded

provision of service to customers.

The ITD team that specialises in commercial

transactions has completed the automation of

the operations involved in letters of credit, bills

for collection and guarantees. The team has

been strengthened with new users and will

proceed during 2004 with the installation of a

new Trade Finance System for incoming and

outgoing payment instructions and new

infrastructure for SWIFT, the Interbank

Payments System. These changes take place in

the context of the Group’s objective for the

provision of faster and more secure customer

service and the saving of man hours.

Upgrading of the level of customer service

offered to customers through the internet is a

continuous effort and it aims at offering new

services to customers, improving its operating

procedures in order to reduce costs and

enhancing its product range with products that

have lower charges than the respective

products offered through the branch network.

Special emphasis will be placed on this sector

during 2004, through the planned introduction

of a new range of electronic products.

The completion of the installation of the

Data Warehouse system and the resulting

increased access to information, offered users

the unprecedented ability to electronically

process data which facilitate the marketing of

products and services to customers, through

the Decision Support systems. These systems

facilitate the work of the Bank’s officers in the

electronic forecasting of customer needs, the

creation of ‘sales leads’ for branches, etc.

In the context of the alignment and

adaptation of the Bank to the changing

domestic and international conditions, the ITD

ensures that it provides continuous assistance

to the Bank’s efforts. During 2003, system

changes were implemented in order to

introduce the new international bank account

numbering system, IBAN, and the infrastructure

for the participation of the Bank in the Central

Information Register was put in place. The ITD

also made all relevant system changes required

for the implementation of Central Bank of

Cyprus directives and the alignment of Cyprus

with the EU acquis communautaire.

The installation of a new system at the Bank of

Cyprus Finance Corporation will commence

during 2004. The new system will enable the

Company to offer innovative and flexible

products, which will significantly boost its

competitive position, with parallel improvements

in productivity through increased automation

which will result in material reductions in

operating costs.

THE NEW WORKING PLATFORM WHICH OPERATES UNDER WINDOWS 2000

SAFEGUARDS A WORKING ENVIRONMENT THAT IS USER-FRIENDLY, 

MORE RELAXED AND LESS VULNERABLE TO HUMAN ERROR
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In Greece, the strategy of the Operations

Management Division during 2003 was

focussed on the following directions:

the prompt provision of support and the

execution of back office transactions for each

new unit of the branch network in any part

of the country, which safeguards great

flexibility and speed, both of which are

required for the expansion of the Bank,

the containment of the cost of centralised

services at the levels of the past two-three

years, despite the continuously growing

number of transactions, through:

specialised programmes for the

improvement of productivity (movement

of capital, loans over the telephone,

management of the retail advances

portfolio), and

the improvement in the time required

for the execution of transactions by

more than 20% per annum, while

maintaining a high level of quality. It is

noted that for the third successive year,

Bank of Cyprus Greece received the

‘Quality Recognition Award’ by the

correspondent bank JP Morgan Chase,

for its SWIFT transactions,

the installation and utilisation of the

Customer Relationship Management (CRM)

system in the whole range of services offered

by the Bank, a project which continues

during 2004, and

focussing on the quality of service offered to

customers and the support of internal units of

the Bank. An ISO certification programme is

currently in progress, covering the whole

range of customer service offered by the Bank.

The programme requires the participation

of all relevant Divisions of the Bank and

has a target completion date during the

first half of 2004. 

FOR THE THIRD SUCCESSIVE YEAR, BANK OF CYPRUS GREECE RECEIVED THE

QUALITY RECOGNITION AWARD BY THE CORRESPONDENT BANK 

JP MORGAN CHASE, FOR ITS SWIFT TRANSACTIONS

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
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The accession of Cyprus to the European Union, in addition to creating new

opportunities, also incorporates many challenges for the economy and banking

system of Cyprus.

The intensified competition, the liberalisation of markets, the lifting of protective

measures in certain sectors and the adoption of stricter and therefore more costly

production and distribution methods for products and services, create new market

conditions which Cypriot companies are called to face.
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Bank of Cyprus Activities
In the course of 2003, Bank of Cyprus

continued its multidimensional social and

cultural work and activities through its

support of the arts, the protection of our

cultural heritage, the involvement with issues

which affect young persons and the support

of sensitive social groups.

Through its sponsorship programme in

Cyprus, Bank of Cyprus has supported a wide

range of activities which include, among others,

the following:

the organisation of the 5th vocational fair

Career 2003, which aims at informing young

Cypriots about the professions practised in

Cyprus and their career prospects, 

the donation of four laptop computers to the

Children’s Oncology Department of the

Makarios Hospital in Nicosia, in the context

of the Bank’s contribution in the fight against

cancer. The aim is to enable the hospitalised

children to be informed and educated on

various subjects,

continuing the implementation of the

Odysseas programme. The purpose of this

programme is to conduct scientific research on

the behaviour of children involved in distance

learning. The Odysseas programme, which is

carried out in conjunction with Oikade, is

implemented in collaboration with the

Ministry of Education and Culture and the

University of Cyprus and is exclusively financed

by Bank of Cyprus,

the continued education of the public on

economic and finance topics through the

New Manager programme. During this

year, a lecture on Investments in Greece

was organised,

the organisation by the European Services

Unit of the following lectures: Cyprus -

European Union, whose main speaker was

Andrian Van der Meer, the Ambassador of

the Delegation of the European Commission

to Cyprus and Cyprus: Approaching 1st May

2004 - Preparation for Accession, whose

main speaker was Leopold Maurer, Head of

the European Commission’s Team for the

Accession Negotiations of Cyprus, organised

in light of the accession of Cyprus to the EU,

the establishment and sponsorship of a chair

in Finance at the University of Cyprus, and

the staging of the annual event Art Dialogues,

which aims at acquainting and familiarising

children with the arts and other related

issues. The event this year focussed on 

the environment and specifically on 

familiarising children with the environment

and its protection.

The Group continued to co-ordinate the

Oikade programme in Cyprus and Greece for

the fourth successive year. During 2003, the

Oikade website was upgraded to a portal,

offering, in addition to its educational subjects,

daily information on various topics which are

of interest to children and young persons aged

8-16. The programme was expanded to include

five new pairs of schools from Greece in a pilot

effort to help Greek schoolchildren learn more

about the civilisation, customs and traditions

of their country.

During 2003, Bank of Cyprus Greece

extended its contribution in the area of

education, by granting scholarships for all full-

time graduate courses of the Department of

Economics of the Athens University of

Economics and Business.

In recognition of the broad spectrum of its

social contribution for many years, the Group

received a double distinction at the 2003 Social

Responsibility Awards ceremony, organised for

THE TOTAL NUMBER OF SCHOOLS PARTICIPATING IN OIKADE

REACHED 40 AND THE PROGRAMME’S AMBITION CONTINUES TO BE ITS

EXPANSION TO ALL AREAS WHERE THERE ARE GREEK COMMUNITIES
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the second year by the Greek Association of

Advertised Companies. The Group received

two awards in the categories ‘Continuous

Contribution’ and ‘Human Being’.

Bank of Cyprus Oncology Centre 
A very important project in the area of health is

the establishment and operation of the Bank of

Cyprus Oncology Centre in Nicosia, which was

founded by Bank of Cyprus and the Republic of

Cyprus and has completed its fifth year of

operation during 2003. The vision of its

founders is the provision of excellent services to

cancer patients as a proof of the Bank of Cyprus

Group’s appreciation for the support it received

from the people of Cyprus since the first day of

its establishment.

Chain of Life
For the fifth successive year, the Group’s

employees organised with great success the

annual Chain of Life events. This is a series of

events which aim at raising public awareness

about cancer and collecting funds in aid of the

Cyprus Anticancer Society. The total amount

raised in 2003 was approximately Cí810 000.

Bank of Cyprus Cultural Foundation
During 2003 the Bank of Cyprus Cultural

Foundation was very active in all areas of its

activity, organising:

a painting exhibition by Monica Gore MBE in

May 2003, as part of the Chain of Life events,

the event Art Dialogues in co-operation with

Bank of Cyprus. This year’s subject was

Getting to know the environment. The

activities of the Museum of the History of

Cypriot Coinage, publications regarding the

environment and children publications of the

Cultural Foundation were presented during

the event,

a lecture on Bio-diversity in the Eastern

Mediterranean and Cyprus, as part of the

series of lectures on the environment,

presented by Moses Mylonas, Assistant

Professor of Ecology at Crete University

and Director of the Natural History

Museum of Crete,

a presentation of the publication The

Butterflies of Cyprus, by Christodoulos Makris,

an exhibition of maps from the

Foundation’s collections on Cyprus at the

azimuths of the wind. Orientations of

depictions by European cartographers of

Cyprus, 14th–19th century, in Thessaloniki,

in co-operation with the National Map and

Cartographic Heritage Centre, National Map

Library. The publication bearing the same

title was presented by Giorgos Tolias,

historian at the National Hellenic Research

Foundation and Demetra Papanicola-Bakitzi,

archaeologist at the Museum of Byzantine

Culture in Thessaloniki,

a concert by the Rast Bouzouki Quartet was

held at the Open Air Theatre of the

Foundation, and

the 22nd International Symposium of the

International Map Collectors’ Society (IMCoS)

was held on 14-16 October. The conference

was attended by 114 individuals from 12

countries. On the occasion of the

Symposium, the exhibition devoted to

The Cyprus of the European Cartographers,

16th-20th Century was organised. Another

event organised in the context of the

conference was the Seventh Lecture on

Cartography entitled A new addition to the

Catalogue  of Cypriot Cartography, the

great map of the island by Leonida Attar,

given by Dr Francesca Cavazzana Romanelli

and Professor Giles Grivaud. 

In the publishing area, during 2003 we note the

collaboration of the Bank of Cyprus Cultural

Foundation (Greek Branch) with Genos

Publications for the publication of the work

Epidaurus. The Ancient Theatre, the Performances,
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by Costas Georgousopoulos and Savvas Gogos and

the publication In Quest of Alexander the Great.

2 300 years after, by Simoni Zafiropoulou.

On the occasion of the organisation of the 

22nd International Symposium of the International

Map Collectors’ Society (IMCoS) and the exhibition

devoted to The Cyprus of the European

Cartographers, 16th - 20th Century, the Bank of

Cyprus Cultural Foundation published the Maps of

Cyprus from the Collections of the Bank of Cyprus

Cultural Foundation, by Leonora Navari. Other

noteworthy publications include:

From Cyprus to Venice: Cypriots in the

Serenissima after the Turkish Conquest of

the Island, by Chrysa Maltezou,

Aria Changes Worlds, by Anna 

Kouppanou, and

The tree that wept, by Menelaos Pittas.

During 2003, the Cultural Foundation took over

the publication of the 2004 Diary of the Bank of

Cyprus Group, which had The Gods of Olympus

as its subject.

The Foundation also continued to enrich its

collections and to proceed with their electronic

archiving, as well as to carry out its research

programmes. The new website of the Bank of

Cyprus Cultural Foundation at www.boccf.org was

also completed during the year. The website

presents the collections, activities and museums of

the Cultural Foundation.

Museum of the History of Cypriot Coinage

The Museum successfully continued its educational

programmes entitled Learning the history of

Cyprus through its coinage, which were attended

by 4 000 children. The text of the fourth lecture on

the history of Coinage was published, entitled

Coinage as evidence for the changing prosperity of

Cyprus in Byzantine and Medieval Times, by

Michael Metcalf. The activities of the educational

programmes Designing my own coin, on the

subject Designing the symbol of Cyprus on

the back of the Euro was incorporated in the

Art Dialogues event which was organised in

co-operation with Bank of Cyprus. The designs

of the children were presented in an exhibition

and were published in an album. Winning

designs were presented with awards.

Museum of the George and Nefeli Giabra

Pierides Collection (Donated by Clio and

Solon Triantafyllides)

The Museum attracted a large number of

visitors and gave special guided tours for

organised groups. In the context of the

International Museums Day, a lecture was

given by Dr Vassos Karageorghis on Treasures

from the Museum of the George and Nefeli

Giabra Pierides Collection.

Historical Archive 

The Bank of Cyprus Historical Archive was

established in September 2001. Its aim is to

identify, document and preserve the archive

material which relates to the history of the Bank

over the years as well as the financial history of

the island in order to be used for research and

academic study in the future. Since April 2003,

the Historical Archive operates in an

independent building in Aphrodite Street, in

Nicosia, under modern specifications. The

importance given by the Bank on the

preservation of its archives is also indicated by

its participation in the European Association for

Banking History, the Organisation which,

through its 70+ large European member-banks,

aims at promoting scientific research in banking

history, especially through the establishment

and operation of banking archives.
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As the largest financial services group in Cyprus

and the largest company listed on the Cyprus

Stock Exchange (CSE) and also the only Cypriot

company listed on the Athens Exchange (ATHEX),

the Bank of Cyprus Group recognises the

importance of sound corporate governance. At

the Bank of Cyprus Group, we aim at being the

model in corporate governance practices, not only

in Cyprus, but also in the wider South-eastern

Mediterranean region. To this end, with the

assistance of the international firm of consultants,

McKinsey & Company, the Board of Directors has

already approved a series of measures and actions

for improving the corporate governance policy

and practices followed by the Group.

The above-mentioned measures and practices

include revised stricter independence criteria for

the members of the Board of Directors, as well as

changes in the operation of Board Committees.

The revised independence criteria concern the

working, business and shareholding relationship

of the Directors with the Group, the family and

business relationship of the Directors between

them, as well as their years of service in the

Board. These criteria are stricter than the ones

stated by the Corporate Governance Code

issued by the CSE and the law L 3016/2002 of the

Republic of Greece. In addition to the already

existing Audit, Remuneration and Nominations

Committees, the Steering Committee (which was

operating in the past) has been formalised and

the Risk Committee and the Loans sub-

committee (under the Steering Committee) have

been formed. The new Committees aim at better

supporting the work of the Board of Directors. In

addition, the Board Committees have been

restructured in terms of the members comprising

each Committee.

Further and more extensive details regarding

the responsibilities of the Board Committees

and the actions to be taken by the Group for

improving the corporate governance policy and

practices will be announced in due course.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors comprises the Chairman,

the Vice-Chairman (who is also the Chief Executive

of the Bank) and an Executive Director (who is also

the Group Chief General Manager), who jointly

form the senior executive management team of

the Group, as well as 15 non-executive Directors.

Out of the 15 non-executive Directors, eight are

classified as independent, based on the revised

stricter independence criteria.

The members of the Board of Directors are:

Executive Directors:

1. Solon A. Triantafyllides (Chairman)

He was born in 1932. He obtained the professional

qualification of Chartered Accountant in 1956 in

London and became the manager of the family

business George Giabra Pierides Ltd. He was

founder and first Chairman of the Institute of

Certified Public Accountants of Cyprus and served

as Chairman of the Employers Federation (1969-

1970). In 1957 he was appointed Honorary Consul

of Norway and in 1988 he was appointed Consul

General. He became a Director of Bank of Cyprus

in 1963 and Vice-Chairman of the Board of

Directors in 1979. In the same year, he was

elected Chairman of Bank of Cyprus (London). In

1988 he was elected Chairman of the Bank of

Cyprus Group, a position he holds to this day.

2. Christos S. Pantzaris (Vice-Chairman & 

Chief Executive of Bank of Cyprus)

He was born in 1934. He holds a B.Sc. Honours

degree in Engineering from the University of

Manchester. He has been Vice-Chairman of

the Bank of Cyprus Group since 1988 and

Chief Executive of Bank of Cyprus since 1995.

In 2001, he became Chairman of Bank of

Cyprus (London). Before his appointment as

Chief Executive of Bank of Cyprus, he was

actively involved in commercial and industrial

family business. He is Chairman of the Cyprus

Banks Association. He also served as Chairman

BANK OF CYPRUS LTD

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE



64

of the Cyprus Electricity Authority and the

Employers and Industrialists Federation and

the Cyprus Bank Employers Association and as

a member of the Board of Directors of the

University of Cyprus. 

3. Evdokimos Xenophontos (Director & 

Group Chief General Manager)

He was born in 1938. He studied in London on

a scholarship by the Republic of Cyprus and

obtained the professional qualification of

Chartered Accountant (FCA) in 1962. During

the period 1963-1967, he worked as an Audit

Manager for the international audit firm Ernst 

& Young in Cyprus. In 1967 he was appointed

Chief Accountant of Bank of Cyprus and in

1974 he became General Manager of Bank of

Cyprus (Holdings) which, until August 1999,

was the holding company of the Group. In

1993 he was appointed as a member of the

Board of Directors of Bank of Cyprus and was

promoted to Group Chief General Manager.

He is a member (and ex-Chairman) of the

Board of Directors of the Cyprus Anticancer

Society and a member of the Board of

Directors of the Cyprus Institute of Genetics

and Neurology. He served as Chairman of the

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of

Cyprus and, he served as a member of the

Board of Directors of the Cyprus Electricity

Authority for a number of years. 

Non-independent non-executive Directors:

4. Andronicos Agathocleous

He was born in 1939. He is a Fellow of the

Association of Certified Accountants. He

worked in audit/accountancy firms in London

and Athens. He served as Chief Accountant of

the Archbishopric of Cyprus and as real-estate

Manager of the Archbishopric of Cyprus in

Limassol. In the period 1999 to September

2003 he was a real-estate Consultant at the

Archbishopric of Cyprus.

5. Theodoros Aristodemou

He was born in 1951. He studied Economics at

the Law School of the University of Athens. He is

the founder, main shareholder and Chairman of

Aristo Developers. He served as Chairman of the

local Chamber of Commerce and Industry of

Paphos, as Chairman of other organisations and

as a member of the Board of Directors of the

Cyprus Telecommunications Authority and of

Cyprus Airways. He is the Vice-Chairman of the

Cyprus Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

6. Dimitris P. Ioannou

He was born in 1942. He holds a Higher National

Diploma in Business Administration and

Marketing. During the period 1984-1990 he

served as Chairman of the Famagusta Chamber of

Commerce and Industry and from 1991 to 1996

as Vice-Chairman of the Cyprus Chamber of

Commerce and Industry. He served as Chairman

of the Institute of Directors (Cyprus Branch) in the

period 1994-1997 and as Chairman of the Cyprus

International Fairs Authority in the period 1997-

2000. He is a member of the Board of Directors of

a number of companies. He has been working in

his commercial and real-estate family businesses

since 1967.

7. Christos Mouskis

He was born in 1964. He studied Business

Administration and Marketing in the USA. He

started his career at the company Muskita

Aluminium Industries. Then he undertook the

expansion of the Muskita Group of Companies

into the tourist sector. He is executive

chairman of Muskita Hotels Ltd and of other

group companies in the business of

construction and operation of luxury hotels in

Cyprus and Greece. He is a member of the

Board of Directors of private and public

companies and of the Association of Cyprus

Tourist Enterprises (ACTE).
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8. Demetrios Z. Pierides

He was born in 1937. He studied Economic

Sciences and Law at the Swiss University of

Lausanne (Masters Degree). In 1960 he was

posted to managerial positions at his family

shipping-banking-insurance group of companies.

He is Chairman of various private companies. He

has been Consul General of Sweden in Cyprus

since 1968. In 1974, he founded the Pierides

Foundation that operates both in Cyprus and

Greece, of which he is Chairman since 1995 and

continuous sponsor. During 1988-1996 he served

as member of the Board of Governors of the

European Cultural Foundation, representing

Greece and Cyprus. In the period 1998-2001 he

served as Vice-Chairman of the Council of the

University of Cyprus and as Chairman of the

Committee for the establishment and operation

of the University campus in Nicosia. He is an

honorary lecturer of the School of Philosophy of

the Athens University.

9. Polys G. Polyviou

He was born in 1949. He studied at Oxford

University (M.A., BCL), at London’s Inns of

Court (Barrister-at-Law) and at Princeton

University in USA (Research Fellow in Politics).

He was a lecturer in Law at Oxford University

during the period 1973-1980. Since then, he

practises law in Cyprus. He has written five

books on legal topics.

10. Vassilis G. Rologis

He was born in 1942. He studied Law and

Business Administration with specialisation in

Marketing in the United Kingdom. He worked in

the United Kingdom and in Greece. He has been

Vice-Chairman of the Cyprus Chamber of

Commerce and Industry in the period 1990-1996

and Chairman since 1997. He is Chairman of the

General Insurance Company of Cyprus since 1997.

He also served as Chairman of Cyprus Airways and

Eurocypria Airlines during the period 1993-1997.

During 2001-2002, he served as Chairman of the

Balkan Chambers of Commerce. He is a member

of the Board of Directors of the Eurochambers

(more than 1 300 chambers in Europe), based in

Brussels. He is a member of the Finance Advisory

Committee, the Commerce and Industry Advisory

Committee and the Cyprus delegation at the

International Labour Organisation. He is a

member of the Board of Directors of various

public and private companies. He is involved with

his family business.

Independent non-executive Directors:

11. Andreas Artemis

He was born in 1954. He studied Civil Engineering

at the Queen Mary and Imperial Colleges of the

University of London and holds a B.Sc.

(Engineering) and a Master of Science degree.

He is Executive Chairman of Commercial Union

Cyprus and of CGU Hellas insurance companies

and Chairman or member of the Board of

Directors of a number of other companies. He is

also a member of the Board of Directors of the

Cyprus Employers and Industrialists Federation

and has served as member of the Board of

Directors of the Cyprus Telecommunications

Authority for a number of years. He is Consul

General of South Africa in Cyprus since 1996. 

12. Christakis G. Christofides

He was born in 1948. He holds a B.Sc. Hons

degree in Chemical Engineering from

Birmingham University and an MBA from City

University. He is a Chartered Engineer and a

member of the Institute of Chemical Engineers

in the United Kingdom. He is Consul General of

Austria in Cyprus. He is a businessman and is

mainly involved in the trade of chemical raw

materials for the industry.

13. George A. David

He was born in 1937. He graduated from the

University of Edinburgh in 1959. In the same
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year he started his career at the Leventis Group

of Companies in Nigeria. Today, he is the

Chairman of Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling

Company. He is a member of the Board of

Directors of the companies Petros Petropoulos,

Allatini, Titan Cement, and a member of the

Board of Directors of the A.G. Leventis

Foundation, ELIAMEP, the Centre for Democracy

in the Balkans, as well as the Chairman of the

Campion English School in Athens.

14. Anna Diogenous

She was born in 1947. She holds a B.Sc. (Econ.)

degree from the London School of Economics.

She is the Managing Director of P.M. Tseriotis Ltd

(the holding company of the Tseriotis Group of

Companies). She is a member of the Board of

Directors of various companies. She served as a

Board member of the Junior School in Nicosia.

15. George M. Georgiades

He was born in 1946. He studied hotel and tourism

at the Centre International de Glion in Switzerland

and then Commercial and Economic Sciences at

the University of Lausanne. He served as a Board

member of the Cyprus Higher Institute of Hotels

and as Chairman of its Academic Council. He was

the founding Chairman of the Pancyprian

Organisation of Hotel Managers. He also served as

a member in a number of Advising Committees

and he is a member of the Board of Directors of

various companies. He served as Chairman of the

Cyprus Broadcasting Corporation. He has been

Chairman of the Cyprus Electricity Authority since

1999. He provides consultancy services in the

hotel and tourism sector.

16. Andreas J. Jacovides

He was born in 1936. He studied Law at the

University of Cambridge, the Inns of Court and

the Harvard Law School. He served as

Ambassador of Cyprus to the USA, including the

World Bank and the International Monetary

Fund, to Germany and the United Nations. He

also served as Permanent Secretary of the

Ministry of Foreign Affairs. He is currently an

international lawyer and consultant and an

Arbitrator with the ICSID of the World Bank and

other international bodies.

17. Andreas Pittas

He was born in 1943. He obtained his Ph.D. in

Medicine from the Karl-Franz Graz University in

Austria. He did his post-graduate studies in

Pharmacology and Pharmaceutical Medicine.

During his business career, he studied Business

Administration and Marketing. He served as

Chairman of the Cyprus Employers and

Industrialists Federation. He is a member of 

the Board of Directors of various companies

and organisations in Cyprus as well as

organisations and scientific committees

abroad. He is a businessman.

18. Costas Z. Severis

He was born in 1949. He studied Economics

(M.A. Honours) at the University of Cambridge.

He is Honorary Consul of Finland since 1989. He

served on the Board of Directors of various

insurance companies. His main business

activities are in paper import, insurance and real

estate development. He is also a member of the

Board of Directors of the Cyprus Employers and

Industrialists federation.
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The Board of Directors meets at least once every

month and has a formal schedule of matters for

consideration. During 2003, 22 Board meetings

were held, which included a meeting for the

discussion of the Group’s strategic plans. 

All Directors have access to the advice and

services of the Company Secretary. Independent

professional advice may also be made available

to the Bank’s Directors, if deemed necessary.

At each Annual General Meeting, 1/3 of the

Directors retire and offer themselves for re-

election. In practice, this means that every

Director stands for re-election at least once

every three years, as required by the provisions

of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Group’s Senior Executive

Management Team
The Executive Management of the Bank of

Cyprus Group comprises the Chairman

(Chairman of the Board of Directors), the Chief

Executive of the Bank (Vice-Chairman of the

Board of Directors), the Chief Group General

Manager (who is also a member of the Board of

Directors) and seven Group General Managers,

one of whom is a Senior Group General Manager.

The Group General Managers are:

1. George Charalambous

He was born in 1943. He holds an M.Sc. (Econ)

degree from the London School of Economics.

During 1966-1967 he was a lecturer at the Athens

School of Economics. During the period 

1968-1973 he worked at the Central Bank of

Cyprus at the Economic Research Department

where he held the positions of Economist and

Senior Economist. In 1973, he was appointed as

Manager of Strategic Planning at Bank of Cyprus.

During 1988-1992 he served as General Manager

Support Services of the Bank and in the period

1993-1998 he was the General Manager, Banking

Services of the Bank of Cyprus Group. In 1999, he

was appointed Group General Manager - Credit

Risk. Since 2003, he is Senior Group General

Manager - Credit Risk and Banking Operations

Cyprus. He is the Chairman of the Cyprus

Economic Society and a member of the Board of

Directors of the Social Insurance.

2. Antonis Jacouris

He was born in 1947. During the period 1973-1980

he worked as an audit manager at the

international audit firm Coopers & Lybrand

(now PricewaterhouseCoopers) at their London,

Rotterdam and Athens offices. In 1980, he was

appointed at Bank of Cyprus and served as

manager at various posts. In 1993, he was

promoted to Group General Manager Support

Services. Since 2003, he is Group General

Manager - Credit Risk.

3. Yiannis Kypri

He was born in 1951. He studied Economics at

the London School of Economics on a

scholarship and obtained his degree with

distinction in 1974. In 1978, he returned to

Cyprus holding the professional qualification of

Chartered Accountant and worked for two years

at the international audit firm Ernst & Young. In

1980, he joined the Bank of Cyprus Group and

in 1982, he was appointed as Group Chief

Financial Officer. In 1993 he was promoted to

Group General Manager Finance, a position he

holds until today. He was a founding member

and served as Chairman of the Cyprus Public

Companies Association for six years. He is the

Chairman of the Bank of Cyprus Cultural

Foundation and a Trustee of the Bank of Cyprus

Oncology Centre.

4. Vassos Shiarly

He was born in 1948. In 1966 he graduated from

a high-school in London. He studied accounting

and worked for 19 years in various accounting

firms in London. His last employment before he

returned to Cyprus was with Coopers & Lybrand,
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where he held the position of Senior Manager.

In 1985, he joined Bank of Cyprus Group,

initially at the Bank of Cyprus (Holdings) and

later was promoted to Senior Manager of

Customer Management Services. In the period

1998-2003 he held the position of Group

General Manager Branch Banking. Since 1993

he is Group General Manager - Domestic

Banking. He served as a member of the Board

of Directors of the Junior School in Nicosia 

for six years.

5. Charalambos C. Charalambides

He was born in 1944. He holds the professional

qualification of Fellow of The Chartered Institute

of Bankers (FCIB). In 1969 he joined the

Chartered Bank, which was acquired by 

Bank of Cyprus in 1983. He held various

managerial positions at Bank of Cyprus. In 1998,

he was promoted to Group General Manager

Corporate Banking. Due to his retirement in

2004, Mr Charalambides has started handing

over his responsibilities to the Group General

Manager - Banking Operations Cyprus, whilst

retaining his position of Group General Manager

and has been assigned special duties. He is a

founding member of The Chartered Institute of

Bankers, Cyprus Centre, which was renamed in

2001 to Institute of Financial Services, Cyprus. He

is the Secretary of the Institute in Cyprus since

1995 and in May 2003 he was elected Secretary

of the EBTN (Federation of Banking Institutes 

in Europe).

6. Charilaos G. Stavrakis

He was born in 1956. He studied Economics at

the University of Cambridge from where he

graduated in 1979 with Double-First Class

Honours. He holds an MBA from Harvard

University, Graduate School of Business

Administration. In 1988, he became a member

of the Chartered Institute of Bankers (ACIB). In

1989 he undertook a two-month consulting in

the World Bank. At Bank of Cyprus he held

various positions including the position of

Manager of Strategic Planning and Business

Development and Manager of Treasury and

International Services. He is Group General

Manager - International Banking. He served on

the Board of Directors of the Cyprus Oil Distilleries.

7. Andreas Eliades

He was born in 1955. He holds a degree in

Economics from the ∞thens School of

Economics and an M.Sc. in Economics from the

London School of Economics. During the period

1980-1990 he held various managerial positions

at the Bank of Cyprus Group. In the period

1991-1992 he was Credit Manager at Bank of

Cyprus Greece. During the period 1992-1998 he

served as Country Manager of Bank of Cyprus

Greece. Since 1998 he is Group General

Manager of Bank of Cyprus Greece.
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Board Committees
Specific responsibilities have been delegated to

the Committees of the Board. 

Three principal Board Committees were in

operation during 2003: the Audit, the

Remuneration and the Nominations Committees.

The Audit Committee comprised entirely non-

executive directors:

George M. Georgiades, Chairman

Andreas Artemis

Christakis G. Christofides

Dimitris P. Ioannou

Demetrios Z. Pierides

Vassilis G. Rologis

Costas Z. Severis

Eighteen meetings of the Audit committee were

held during 2003. Some of the meetings were

held in the presence of the Group’s Senior

Executive Management, and/or the external

auditors, and the Manager of Group Internal

Audit. The Audit Committee reviews, inter alia,

the Group’s financial statements, reports

prepared by Group Internal Audit and reports

on the Group’s internal controls and their

effectiveness. The Committee is also responsible

for recommending the appointment or

retirement of the Company’s external auditors

and oversees their relationship with the Group.

The Committee is also responsible for the

approval, monitoring and review of the Group’s

policy in relation to the use of the external

auditors for carrying out non-audit work.

The Remuneration Committee comprised

entirely independent non-executive Directors:

Vassilis G. Rologis, Chairman

Andreas Artemis

Christakis G. Christofides

Dimitris P. Ioannou

Demetrios Z. Pierides

Costas Z. Severis

Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee

were held during 2003. The Committee considers

and makes recommendations to the Board on

matters relating to the remuneration of

executive Directors. The remuneration of non-

executive Directors is determined at the

Annual General Meeting.

During 2003, the Nominations Committee

comprised the entire Board of Directors and was

chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The

Committee makes recommendations for the

appointment of new Directors in order to fill

vacant positions on the Board.

According to the recent resolutions of the Board

of Directors relating to the improvement of

corporate governance practices, five principal

Board Committees will operate in 2004. The

terms of reference of the Committees, in

addition to the terms of reference of the

Committees that operated in 2003, are being

drafted in conjunction with the international

firm of consultants, McKinsey & Company and

are expected to be submitted for approval by

the Board of Directors prior to the Annual

General Meeting.

Audit Committee

The Committee comprises entirely non-executive

directors, with the majority being held by

independent non-executive directors:

George M. Georgiades, Chairman

Andronicos Agathocleous

Christakis G. Christofides

Anna Diogenous
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Remuneration Committee

The Committee comprises entirely non-

executive directors, with the majority being

held by independent non-executive directors:

Andreas Pittas, Chairman

Theodoros Aristodemou

George A. David

Anna Diogenous

Andreas J. Jacovides

Christos Mouskis

Vassilis G. Rologis

Nominations Committee

The Committee comprises both executive and

non-executive directors, with the majority

being held by non-executive directors:

Costas Z. Severis, Chairman

Dimitris P. Ioannou

Andreas J. Jacovides

Christos Mouskis

Christos S. Pantzaris

Demetrios Z. Pierides

Andreas Pittas

Polys G. Polyviou

Risk Committee

The Committee comprises both executive and

non-executive directors, with the majority

being held by non-executive directors:

Andreas Artemis, Chairman

Christakis G. Christofides

George M. Georgiades

Solon A. Triantafyllides

Evdokimos Xenophontos 

Steering Committee

The Committee comprises both executive and

non-executive directors:

Solon A. Triantafyllides, Chairman

Andreas Artemis

Dimitris P. Ioannou

Christos S. Pantzaris

Polys G. Polyviou

Vassilis G. Rologis

Costas Z. Severis

Evdokimos Xenophontos

The Steering Committee also comprises the Loans

Sub-committee. The Sub-committee comprises

both executive and non-executive Directors:

Christos S. Pantzaris, Chairman

Vassilis G. Rologis

Costas Z. Severis

Evdokimos Xenophontos

Remuneration of Directors
The remuneration of executive Directors is set by

the Board of Directors, on the recommendations

of the Remuneration Committee. The reward

package comprises salary, adjusted on an annual

basis taking into account the prevailing economic

and labour market conditions, and a bonus, the

level of which depends on Group profitability and

the achievement of the Group’s objectives.

Executive Directors participate in the Staff

Gratuity Scheme of the Group. The service

contracts of executive Directors have a one-year

duration and are renewed annually following a

resolution of the Board of Directors.

Further details of Director remuneration are set

out in Note 9 of the Group Financial Statements.
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Loans and Other Facilities to Directors
Details on the facilities granted to Directors are set

out in Note 40 of the Group Financial Statements.

Shareholder Relations
All shareholders of Bank of Cyprus are treated

on an equal basis. The Board of Directors

provides the opportunity to holders of at least

5% of the Company’s share capital to request

the inclusion of items on the agenda of

General Meetings, provided they inform the

Company at least 15 days prior to the notice

of the General Meeting.

The Board of Directors is available at the

Annual General Meeting to answer

shareholders’ questions.

The Board of Directors appointed an

Investor Relations Officer, responsible for the

communication between shareholders and the

Bank. Information about the Company to

shareholders, prospective investors, brokers

and analysts is provided in a prompt and

unbiased manner, free of charge.

Accountability and Audit
Going Concern

The Directors confirm that they are satisfied

that the Group has adequate resources to

continue in business as a going concern for

the next 12 months.

System of Internal Controls

The Directors have responsibility for ensuring

that the Bank’s management maintains an

effective system of internal control and for

reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is

designed to manage, rather than eliminate,

the risk of failure to achieve business

objectives, and can only provide reasonable,

but not absolute, assurance against material

misstatement or loss. Throughout 2003, and to

date, the Group has operated an effective

system of internal control, including financial

and operational controls and compliance with

risk management regulations. The Directors

review the effectiveness of the system of

internal controls annually.

The Board of Directors has set out Internal

Operating Regulations in accordance with

the special provisions on corporate

governance included in law L3016/2002 of

the Greek Republic.

The Board of Directors has also designated

the Group General Manager Finance as

Corporate Governance Compliance Officer.

Board of Directors 

of Bank of Cyprus Ltd

BANK OF CYPRUS LTD
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I. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Group’s core profit (profit before provisions for bad and doubtful debts and before tax) for 2003 amounted to
Cí100,6 million, registering a 12% increase compared to 2002.

The increase in the Group’s core profit was achieved despite the negative effect of the reduction in interest rates in Cyprus
and internationally, and the introduction as of 1 January 2003 of the new, stricter Central Bank of Cyprus directive
regarding suspension of interest income. According to the new regulations, in addition to suspending interest income on
loans for which the Group has made a provision, banks also suspend interest income on all loans which are more than 9
months in arrear and are not fully secured, regardless of whether these amounts are collectible or not. The suspended
interest income is not therefore recognised in the financial results of banks. The Group’s suspended net interest income
has increased from Cí20,3 million for 2002 to Cí32,3 million for 2003. The Group’s core profit before suspension of
interest income for 2003 has recorded a 21% increase compared to 2002.

The increase in the Group’s core profit for 2003 is attributed to the very good performance of the Greek operations, as
well as to the positive impact of the Group’s actions aimed towards improving interest spreads, despite the reduction in
interest rates.

The contribution of the Group’s Greek operations to 2003 Group core profit reached Cí41,8 million, representing a 42%
share. The core profit of the Group’s Greek operations increased by 26% against that of 2002.

2003) 2002)

Cí million) Cí million) ±%)

Net interest income 198,5) 175,5) +13,1)

Net fees and commissions 75,6) 74,0) +2,2)

Foreign exchange income 14,2) 14,4) -1,6)

Losses on sale and revaluation of financial instruments (0,8) (0,6) -27,3)

Income from insurance operations 15,4) 13,4) +14,8)

Other income 4,2) 4,9) -13,9)

Total income 307,1) 281,6) +9,1)

Staff costs (123,3) (109,8) +12,4)

Other operating expenses (83,2) (74,2) +12,1)

One-off charge for retrospective retirement benefits _) (7,9) )

Core profit (profit before provisions for bad and doubtful debts) 100,6) 89,7) +12,1)

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts (110,2) (80,1) +37,5)
(9,6) 9,6) )

Provision for impairment of available-for-sale investments (7,8) (23,6) )

Loss before tax (17,4) (14,0) +24,5)

Tax (11,4) (7,4) +53,6)

Loss after tax (28,8) (21,4) +34,6)

As per its profit warning announcement dated 8 January 2004, the Bank of Cyprus Group recorded a loss after provisions
for bad and doubtful debts and after tax for 2003. The loss amounted to Cí28,8 million compared to a loss of Cí21,4
million for 2002, mainly as a result of the increased provisions for bad and doubtful debts. The increase in the provisions
is mainly due to the slowdown in the local and European economies, especially in the tourism sector, the extended
stagnation of the Cyprus stockmarket and the introduction of new, stricter interest income suspension rules.
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As a result of the significantly increased charges for provisions for bad and doubtful debts recorded by the Group in
2002 and 2003, in combination with the action taken for the collection of overdue accounts and strengthening of the
collateral held, it is anticipated that the Group’s provision charges for 2004 will revert to normal levels. The normal
level of provision charges anticipated to be recorded by the Group in 2004 and the anticipated increase in core
profitability will have a positive impact on the Group’s results for 2004 and the Group is expected to record profits.

Analysis of net interest income
One of the Group’s main goals for 2003 was the increase in interest spread and in turn the improvement in interest
margin and interest income. Despite the negative effect of the reduction in interest rates in Cyprus and internationally
and the introduction of the new, stricter Central Bank of Cyprus directive regarding suspension of interest, the Group
managed to achieve its goal, and as a result the net interest income increased in all the geographic areas in which the
Group operates. Thus, the Group’s net interest income reached Cí198,5 million, recording an increase of 13% compared
to 2002. It is noted that the Group’s suspended net interest income has increased from Cí20,3 million for 2002 to
Cí32,3 million for 2003. 

For 2003, the net interest income generated by the Group’s operations in Greece reached Cí71,0 million, recording a
28% increase against 2002.

The Group net interest margin (NIM) for 2003 reached 2,53% compared to 2,40% for 2002. The improvement in net
interest margin took place across all the geographic areas in which the Group operates. In Cyprus, the NIM increased
from 2,08% for 2002 to 2,17% for 2003, in Greece from 2,65% to 2,82% and in the other countries (UK and Australia)
from 2,37% to 2,47%. 

Net fees and commissions and other income
As a consequence of the relatively weak economic activity internationally, the Group’s net fees and commissions and other
income for 2003 reached Cí79,7 million, recording an increase of 1% compared to 2002. However, the net fees and
commissions and other income generated by the Group’s Greek operations recorded a considerable increase (29%).

Income from insurance operations
The Group’s general insurance operations continued their positive track record, despite the strong negative climate
that prevailed in the Cyprus insurance sector during 2003. The total insurance premium for 2003 of the Group’s
subsidiary company, General Insurance of Cyprus, reached Cí19,1 million, compared to Cí16,2 million for 2002,
recording an 18% increase, a percentage that is higher than the rest of the market for a seventh consecutive year.

Despite the slowdown in the life insurance sector in Cyprus, the total insurance premium of the Group’s subsidiary,
EuroLife, amounted to Cí41,9 million, registering an annual increase of 1%. EuroLife’s profit after tax for 2003
recorded a spectacular increase, reaching Cí8,5 million compared to Cí3,1 million for 2002.

In Greece, the total gross premium for 2003 of Kyprou Asfalistiki (the branch of General Insurance of Cyprus in Greece)
and Kyprou Insurance Services (a subsidiary of the Group in Greece) reached ú4,2 million, compared to ú3,1 million for
2002, recording an increase of 35%. It is notable that, despite the short period of commencement of its operations, Kyprou
Zois (the branch of EuroLife in Greece) is already profitable, recording profits after tax for 2003 of ú140 000. 
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Analysis of operating expenses
The Group’s operating expenses for 2003 reached Cí206,5 million compared to Cí184,0 million for 2002 (not including
the one-off charge for retrospective retirement benefits for staff in Cyprus which affected 2002 results). 

Analysis of operating expenses by geographic sector

2003) 2002)
Cí million) Cí million) ±%)

Cyprus 133,3) 118,3) +12,7)

Greece 55,6) 47,1) +18,2)

Other countries (mainly United Kingdom) 17,6) 18,6) -5,5)

Total operating expenses 206,5) 184,0) +12,3)

As shown in the table above, the largest part of the increase in operating expenses is due to the Group’s Greek operations.
The operating costs of the Group’s Greek operations increased by 18% compared to 2002. This rate of increase is
significantly lower than the rate of increase in the footings of the Group’s Greek operations (29% in total loans and
advances), and is mainly the result of the Group’s efforts to contain costs and increase efficiency. It is worth noting that
the increase in the costs of the Group’s Greek operations is also attributed to the expansion of the Bank’s network to 82
branches, up from 75 branches at 31 December 2002.

In Cyprus, the increase of operating expenses of the Group’s operations amounted to 13% and is mainly due to the
increase in staff costs. The Group has placed a ‘hire freeze’ in 2003 and reactivated its early retirement plan in order to
reduce staff costs. The number of people employed by the Group in Cyprus has decreased by 31 persons and was reduced
from 3 459 at the end of 2002 to 3 428 at the end of 2003.

The operating costs attributable to the other countries in which the Group operates recorded a decrease, mainly as a
result of the reorganisation of the Group’s operations in the United Kingdom. In addition, the Group has outsourced its
credit card business in the United Kingdom and has reorganised its branch network. The operating expenses recorded a
6% decrease as a result.

Analysis of core profit by geographic sector

The core profit for 2003 of the Group’s operations in Cyprus is 4% higher than that for 2002. Even though core profit is
higher than 2002, it has been affected by the higher interest income suspension charge.

The Group’s operations outside Cyprus generated 50% of Group core profit. This is in accordance with the set Group
policy for expansion abroad, especially in Greece.

An amount of Cí41,8 million, which represents 42% of Group core profit for 2003, is generated by the Group’s Greek
operations. These profits recorded a 26% increase compared to the prior year, as a result of concerted efforts to increase
the Group’s financial footings and income, whilst at the same time containing operating costs.

Bank of Cyprus Australia had its first profitable year in 2003, after only three years of operation.

Share of total profit Cí million Change 03/02

Cyprus 50% 50,4 +4,0%

Greece 42% 41,8 +25,6%

Other countries
(mainly United Kingdom) 8% 8,4 +4,6%

Core Profit by Geographic Sector
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Provisions for bad and doubtful debts
The provision charge for bad and doubtful debts for 2003 was significantly higher than that for 2002 and reached
Cí110,2 million, compared to Cí80,1 million for 2002. As already mentioned, the Group follows a policy of increased
provisions, due to the slowdown in the Cyprus and European economies, especially in the tourism sector. It is stressed
that the provisions for bad and doubtful debts do not represent amounts to be written off and that the Group is taking
all necessary steps to collect these amounts.

As a result of the significantly increased charges for provisions for bad and doubtful debts recorded by the Group in 2002
and 2003, in combination with the action taken for the collection of overdue accounts and strengthening of the collateral
held, it is anticipated that the Group’s provision charges for 2004 will revert to normal levels.

At 31 December 2003, the Group’s non-performing loans and advances (after the suspension of interest income) reached
Cí567,1 million, representing 10,2% of total Group loans and advances. Non-performing loans and advances have
increased since 31 December 2002 (Cí381,6 million), mainly due to the new, stricter Central Bank of Cyprus rules
regarding interest income suspension. It is worth noting that that balance of non-performing loans at 31 December 2003
is lower than that of 30 September 2003.

At 31 December 2003, non-performing loans were fully covered by provisions and/or tangible security. 

Analysis of core profit and results after tax by line of business

The most significant part of Group profit is generated by banking operations, which contributed 90% towards 2003 Group
core profit. The loss after tax recorded by the Group’s banking operations amounted to Cí27,3 million, due to the high
provisions for bad and doubtful debts. The Group’s insurance operations generated profit before tax for 2003 of
Cí8,2 million, compared to Cí6,0 million for 2002, recording an increase of 37%.

Dividend
The Group’s results for 2003 do not allow the payment of a dividend for the year. The Group is aware of its shareholders’
expectations for dividend payment and is taking all necessary actions to revert to the payment of dividend as soon as possible.
Based on the Group’s financial plan for 2004-2006 and the assumptions used and on the current indications and the actions
taken by the Group, and without taking into account any unforeseen exogenous factors or any consequences, positive or
negative, stemming from the solution or not of the Cyprus problem, the Group’s expectations for 2004 profits, as well as for
the profits of the next two years, are positive, and will therefore allow the Group to revert to the payment of a dividend. 

II. FINANCIAL FOOTINGS
Total Assets
The increase in the Group’s financial footings for 2003 is considered satisfactory. Group total assets at 31 December 2003
reached Cí9,06 billion. 
The total assets of the Group’s Greek operations reached Cí3,28 billion, registering a 27% annual increase. 

Share of total profit Cí million Change 03/02

Banking 90% 90,7 +12,3%

Insurance 8% 8,2 +25,2%

Property 2% 1,7 -30,9%

Core Profit by Line of Business
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Advances
Total loans and advances recorded a 13% increase compared to 31 December 2002 and amounted to Cí5,69 billion. 
The Greek operations’ gross advances increased to Cí2,12 billion, an increase of 29%.
As a result of the increase in the Group’s profitable footings in Greece, the share of the Group’s loans and advances
relating to its operations outside Cyprus increased to 48%, up from 44% at 31 December 2002.

Customer deposits
Total customer deposits reached Cí7,39 billion and recorded an 8% increase compared to 31 December 2002.
The customer deposits of the Group’s Greek operations reached Cí2,42 billion, recording an increase of 29% on
31 December 2002.
The share of the Group’s customer deposits relating to its operations outside Cyprus increased to 41%, up from 36% at
31 December 2002.

Group capital base
The Group maintains a strong capital base. The Group capital adequacy ratio at 31 December 2003 stood at 13%,
compared to the 10% minimum required by the Central Bank of Cyprus and 8% required by the European Union
Directive. The Group’s capital base reached Cí864,1 million, recording a 25% increase compared to 31 December 2002.
During 2003, the following developments in the Group’s capital base took place:

In February 2003, Bank of Cyprus issued Series A Capital Securities for a total of Cí65 million in Cyprus Pounds,
through a private placement in Cyprus. The Capital Securities issued constitute Tier 1 Capital for the Bank. 
In October 2003, the Bank successfully issued a ú200 million Subordinated Bond denominated in Euro under its
EMTN Program. The Bonds are step-up subordinated floating rate notes and mature in October 2013, but the Bank
has the option to call them during or after October 2008.
During October and November 2003, 25 855 668 Bank of Cyprus Warrants were exercised (76,8% of the total warrants
issued). The exercise of these warrants has increased the Bank’s capital base by Cí32,3 million.
On 19 December 2003, the Bank has called the total balance of the Cí25 million Subordinated Floating Rate Loan
Stock 2003/2008.

In March 2004, the Bank further increased its capital by issuing Series B Capital Securities for a total amount of Cí30 million.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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Share of total portfolio Annual rate 

2002 2003 of change

Cyprus 56% 52% +3,9%

Greece 33% 37% +29,0%

Other countries 11% 11% +10,5%

Total: Cí5,69 billion | Annual growth rate: 13%
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Share of total portfolio Annual rate  

2002 2003 of change

Cyprus 64% 59% -0,1% 

Greece 28% 33% +29,0%

Other countries 8% 8% +2,4%

Total: Cí7,39 billion | Annual growth rate: 8%
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2003

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 78

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 79

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 80

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 81

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 83

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 91

AUDITORS’ REPORT 128



78

BANK OF CYPRUS LTD

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors submits to the shareholders their Report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2003.

Activities
The Company is the holding company of the Bank of Cyprus Group. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
during the year were the provision of banking and financial services, insurance business and property development.

Results
The profit before provisions for 2003 amounts to Cí100 577 thousand
compared with profit for 2002 of Cí89 723 thousand

The loss after provisions for bad and doubtful debts and
impairment of investments and tax for 2003 amounts to Cí(28 803) thousand
compared with loss for 2002 of Cí(21 398) thousand 

Dividends
The Board of Directors does not propose the payment of dividend for 2003. In 2002, a dividend at 16% (8 cents per share) was
paid as final dividend for 2001. 

Share Capital
During the year, the issued share capital increased by Cí12 928 thousand as a result of the exercise of Share Warrants and
by Cí733 thousand as a result of the conversion of loan stock, as mentioned in Note 29.  

Board of Directors 
The Directors of the Company are listed on page 2. All of them were members of the Board throughout the year 2003,
except for Messrs A. Jacovides and Chr. Mouskis who were appointed on 6 February 2003.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs A. Agathocleous, D. Ioannou, C. Severis, Th. Aristodemou,
E. Xenophontos and P. Polyviou retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The vacancies so created will be
filled by election.

Auditors 
The auditors of the Company, Ernst & Young, have signified their willingness to continue in office. A resolution for their
re-appointment and authorising the directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

S. A. Triantafyllides
Chairman

25 February 2004
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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2003 2002)
Notes Cí000 Cí000)

Turnover 2 593 564) 606 287)

Interest income 3 432 436) 447 834)
Interest expense 4 (233 906) (272 306)

Net interest income 198 530) 175 528)
Fee and commission income 79 518) 78 189)
Fee and commission expense (4 008) (4 277)

Foreign exchange income 14 216) 14 445)
Losses on sale and revaluation of financial instruments 5 (792) (622)

Income from insurance business 6 15 437) 13 444)
Other income 7 4 211) 4 888)

307 112) 281 595)
Staff costs 8 (123 337) (117 658)

Other administrative expenses (83 198) (74 214)

Profit before provisions  100 577) 89 723)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 15 (110 190) (80 142)

(Loss)/profit before provision for impairment 
of available-for-sale investments (9 613) 9 581)
Provision for impairment of available-for-sale investments 17 (7 799) (23 562)

Loss before tax 9 (17 412) (13 981)

Tax 10 (11 391) (7 417)

Loss after tax (28 803) (21 398)

Loss per share (cents) 11 (6,5) (4,9)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2003

2003 2002)
Notes Cí000 Cí000)

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 12 545 602 570 478)

Treasury bills 13 261 348 222 773)

Placements with banks 14 1 325 309 923 691)

Loans and advances to customers 15 5 279 892 4 766 742)

Debt securities 16 1 066 488 1 056 317)

Equity shares 17 35 083 45 574)

Property and equipment 18 162 768 141 634)

Intangible assets 19 15 881 17 125)

Other assets 20 82 141 109 661)

Prepayments and accrued income 21 98 246 95 777)

8 872 758 7 949 772)

Life assurance business net assets attributable to 
policyholders 22 189 070 176 156)

Total assets 9 061 828) 8 125 928)

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 23 263 234 205 896)

Customer deposits 24 7 390 059 6 836 268)

Debt securities in issue 25 151 263 288)

Other liabilities 26 128 272 119 196)

Accruals and deferred income 27 75 872 95 568)

8 008 700 7 257 216)

Life assurance business liabilities to policyholders 22 189 070 176 156)

Subordinated loan stock 28 340 774 186 536)

Equity
Share capital 29 232 385 218 724)

Share premium 238 955 218 464)

Revaluation reserves 54 140 38 846)

Exchange adjustments reserve (2 379) (2 005)

Retained earnings 183 31 991)

523 284 506 020)

Total liabilities and equity 9 061 828) 8 125 928)

Contingent liabilities and commitments 
Contingent liabilities 31 689 832) 640 081)

Commitments 31 1 015 169) 976 325)

S. A. Triantafyllides, Chairman
Chr. S. Pantzaris, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive of Bank of Cyprus
E. Xenophontos, Director and Group Chief General Manager

Y. Kypri, Group General Manager Finance
Chr. Hadjimitsis, Group Financial Controller



81

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

Share Share) Revaluation) Exchange) Retained) Total equity)
capital premium) reserves) adjustments) earnings) )

) ) reserve) )
Cí000 Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000)

At 1 January 2002 216 181 213 430) 25 121) (2 075) 88 398) 541 055)
Loss after tax _ _) _) _) (21 398) (21 398)

Dividend (Note 30) _ _) _) _) (34 612) (34 612)

Revaluation of available-for-sale   
investments
- equity shares _ _) (6 830) _) _) (6 830)

- debt securities _ _) 5 101) _) _) 5 101)
Fair value change of financial instruments 
designated as cash flow hedges _ _) (6 999) _) _) (6 999)

Revaluation of property on  
transfer to investment property      _ _) (12) _) _) (12)

Transfer to the income statement of impairment 
loss of available-for-sale investments _ _) 23 562) _) _) 23 562)

Deferred tax _ _) (559) _) _) (559)

Exchange adjustments _ _) _) 70) _) 70)

Conversion of loan stock into shares 184 268) _) _) _) 452)

Dividend reinvestment 2 359 4 766) _) _) _) 7 125)

Increase in value of life assurance 
policies in force _ _) 475) _) (475) _)
Transfer to retained earnings of realised profit 
on disposal of property _ _) (78) _) 78) _)
Transfer to the income statement   
on redemption/sale of
available-for-sale investments _ _) (935) _) _) (935)

At 31 December 2002 218 724 218 464) 38 846) (2 005) 31 991) 506 020)
Loss after tax _ _) _) _) (28 803) (28 803)

Revaluation of available-for-sale   
investments
- equity shares _ _) (10 513) _) _) (10 513)

- debt securities _ _) (1 189) _) _) (1 189)

Fair value change of financial instruments 
designated as cash flow hedges _ _) 672) _) _) 672)

Property revaluation        _ _) 20 157) _) _) 20 157)

Transfer to the income statement of impairment   
loss of available-for-sale investments _ _) 7 799) _) _) 7 799)

Deferred tax _ _) (3 331) _) _) (3 331)

Exchange adjustments _ _) _) (374) _) (374)

Conversion of loan stock into shares 733 1 099) _) _) _) 1 832)

Exercise of Share Warrants 12 928 19 392) _) _) _) 32 320)

Increase in value of life assurance 
policies in force _ _) 3 005) _) (3 005) _)

Transfer to the income statement 
on redemption/sale of  
available-for-sale investments _ _) (1 306) _) _) (1 306)

At 31 December 2003 232 385 238 955) 54 140) (2 379) 183) 523 284)

The reserve which is available for dividend distribution is Retained Earnings.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

2003 2002)
Notes Cí000 Cí000)

Net cash flows from operating activities 33 366 929) 135 670)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of debt securities (459 158) (442 757)

Proceeds from sale and redemption of debt securities 330 589) 225 867)
Interest received on debt securities 38 383) 58 933)
Purchase of equity shares (1 079) (5 247)

Proceeds from sale of equity shares 687) 416)
Dividend income from equity shares 135) 496)
Purchase of property and equipment (14 745) (17 093)

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 1 456) 670)
Purchase of intangible assets (4 670) (10 735)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (108 402) (189 450)

Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of share capital 32 320) _)
Issue of subordinated loan stock 181 215) _)
Redemption of subordinated loan stock (28 839) _)
Interest paid on subordinated loan stock (11 575) (9 258)

Dividend paid _) (27 487)

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 173 121) (36 745)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents for the year 34 431 648) (90 525)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies followed in respect of items that are considered material for the results and the financial position of
the Group are stated below.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, the
Cyprus Stock Exchange Law and Regulations and International Financial Reporting Standards, which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board, and International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect.

The consolidated financial statements are expressed in Cyprus pounds (Cí) and are prepared under the historical cost
convention, modified to include the revaluation of freehold property, investment property, investments held-for-trading and
available-for-sale investments.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bank of Cyprus Ltd (the "Company") and all its subsidiaries and
jointly controlled companies, which together are referred to as the "Group".

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred out of the Group.

The interest in jointly controlled companies is included in the consolidated financial statements in proportion to the Group’s
share in the capital of the investee company (proportional consolidation).

In order to reflect the different nature of the shareholders’ and policyholders’ interests in the long-term life assurance
business, the value of long-term life assurance business attributable to shareholders and the assets and liabilities attributable
to policyholders are classified under separate headings in the consolidated balance sheet.

All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation.  

Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences
arising on translation are taken to the income statement, with the exception of differences on foreign currency liabilities that
provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to the exchange adjustments reserve
until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are transferred to the income statement.

The assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries and branches are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. The income statements of overseas subsidiaries and branches are translated using average exchange rates for the
year. The exchange differences arising on the retranslation are taken directly to the exchange adjustments reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, accumulated exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as a component of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Turnover
Group turnover comprises interest income, fee and commission income, foreign exchange income, gross insurance premiums,
turnover of property and hotel business and other income.
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Interest, fees and commissions
Interest income is recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis. As from 1 January 2003, as required by the Central
Bank of Cyprus, interest and similar income from the following sources is not recognised in the income statement but is credited
to a suspense account: (a) advances that are more than nine months in arrears and are not fully secured, (b) overdraft accounts
that are in excess of their credit limit and are not fully secured at the date of calculation of the accrued interest, to the extent
that the accrued interest or other income is not covered by the total of the amounts credited in the account during the previous
nine months, and (c) advances for which a provision for impairment loss has been made.

In 2002, interest and other income was suspended only for advances which were considered doubtful and for which a provision
for impairment loss was made.

Interest and other income credited to a suspense account is transferred to the income statement only when collected.

Fee and commission income is recognised on the basis of work done to match the cost of providing the service and those in
respect of credit risk are recognised in the income statement, on a systematic basis over the period of the exposure.

Life assurance business
Income from long-term life assurance business, including the provision of life, health and accident assurance, consists of (a) any
surplus from the operations that is attributed to the shareholders, and includes investment management fees and other expenses
charged to the long-term business funds, and (b) the change in the present value of the net future income from the insurance
contracts in force.
The change in the present value of in-force business is determined on a post tax basis. For presentation purposes, the change in
value is grossed up at the underlying rate of tax. 

Staff costs and other administrative expenses are included in the relevant captions in the income statement.

All premiums, income from investments, claims of policyholders and expenses are accounted for within the related long-term
business funds. Any surplus or deficit from assurance business, which is determined on the basis of an annual actuarial valuation,
is distributed to the policyholders and the shareholders according to the terms of the insurance contracts.

General insurance business
Income from general insurance business in the income statement is the net amount of the gross insurance premiums less
reinsurance premiums, net claims and agents’ commissions, and the increase/decrease in insurance business funds.

Staff costs and other administrative expenses are included in the relevant captions in the income statement.

Premium income is recognised in the period in which insurance cover is provided to the customer. Premiums received relating
to future periods are deferred and only recognised in the income statement when earned. Reinsurance premiums are
recognised on the same basis as the related premium income.

A provision is made for the estimated cost of claims notified but not settled and claims incurred but not reported at the
balance sheet date. The provision for the cost of claims notified but not settled is based upon a best estimate of the cost
of settling the outstanding claims after taking into account all known facts, recent past experience and assumptions about
the future development of the outstanding cases. The provision for claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet
date and the equalisation reserve relating to the credit insurance business, are calculated in accordance with the relevant
legislative requirements. 

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP
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Income from property development
Income from property development is recognised only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
contract will flow to the Group and they can be reliably measured.

Every contract or unit sold before completion is regarded as a long-term contract and is accounted for using the percentage
of completion method. Revenue is recognised when the outcome of the project can be reliably measured (the percentage of
completion of the work must be at least 50%). Contract revenue is matched with the contract costs resulting in reporting net
income which can be attributed to the proportion of the work completed, calculated according to the ratio of actual contract
costs incurred to the total estimated cost of completion of each contract.

Loans and advances
Loans and advances, originated when money is provided directly to the borrowers, are measured initially at cost, being the
fair value of the consideration given including transaction costs. Loans and advances are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective yield method.

Loans and advances are stated net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts. Loans and advances are written off to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 

The collectability of loans and advances to individually significant customers is evaluated based on the individual customer’s
overall financial condition, resources and payment record, the prospect of support from any creditworthy guarantors and the
realisable value of any collateral.

A loan is considered as impaired when management determines that it is probable that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original contractual terms, unless such loans are secured or other factors exist where the
Group expects that all amounts due will be received. 

When a loan has been classified as impaired, the carrying amount of the loan is reduced to the estimated recoverable amount,
being the present value of expected future cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral,
discounted at original effective interest rate.

For certain homogeneous loan portfolios, such as consumer credit and the credit card portfolio, provisions are calculated after
a collective assessment of the whole portfolio, having regard to a number of factors such as the level of watchlist or potential
problem debts, the time period for which amounts are overdue, the prevailing economic climate and prior period loss rates. 

All problem loans are monitored continuously and are reviewed for provision purposes every six months. Any subsequent
changes to the estimated recoverable amounts and timing of the expected future cash flows, are compared to the prior
estimates and any difference arising results in a corresponding charge/credit in the income statement. A provision for an
impaired loan is reversed only when the credit quality has improved so that there is reasonable assurance that all principal
and interest according to the original terms of the loan will be collected timely.
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Leasing and hire purchase transactions
Assets leased to customers are classified as finance leases if the lease agreement transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Income from both finance and operating leases is
credited to the income statement in proportion to the net cash invested so as to give a constant rate of return over each period
after taking account of tax. Income from hire purchase transactions is credited to the income statement using the sum of the
digits method.

In those cases where the Group is the lessee, operating lease costs are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the life of the lease.

Investments in treasury bills, debt securities and equity shares
All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including acquisition costs associated
with the investment. Investments are classified into three categories: investments held-to-maturity, available-for-sale investments
and investments held-for-trading. Management determines the appropriate classification at the time of the purchase.

Investments with fixed maturity, where the Group has both the intent and the ability to hold to maturity, are classified as
held-to-maturity.

Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices are classified as available-for-sale.

Investments which were either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or are included in a portfolio
in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists, regardless of why they were acquired, are classified as held-for-trading. 

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost, which is calculated by taking into account acquisition cost, any
unamortised discount or premium and any provision for impairment.

Available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value, based on quoted bid prices for listed securities. The fair value of
unquoted securities is estimated using appropriate models and valuation methods and/or on the basis of the investee’s financial
results, conditions and prospects compared to similar companies for which quoted market prices are available.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale investments are recognised in equity. In case of sale
or impairment, the profit or loss recognised in equity is transferred to the income statement.

Investments held-for-trading are measured at fair value based on quoted bid prices. All related realised and unrealised gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement.

An investment is considered as impaired if its carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount. Available-for-sale investments
are considered as impaired if the decline in the fair value is of such a magnitude that recovery of the cost value cannot be
reasonably expected within the foreseeable future. The amount of the impairment loss is the difference between cost and fair
value.
The amount of the impairment loss for investments held-to-maturity is calculated as the difference between the carrying
amount of the investment and the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the investment.

All regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised at trade date, which is the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. All other purchases and sales are recognised as derivative forward contracts until settlement.

Interest earned on debt securities is reported as interest income. Dividend income from equity shares is recognised
when received.
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Long-term life assurance business
The Group accounts for its interest in long-term life assurance business using the embedded value basis of accounting. 

The embedded value comprises of the net assets of the life assurance subsidiary, including any surplus retained within the
long-term business funds which could be transferred to the shareholders, and the present value of the in-force business. The
value of the in-force business is calculated by projecting the future surpluses and other net cash flows attributable to the
shareholders arising from business written at the balance sheet date, using appropriate economic and actuarial assumptions,
and discounting the result at a rate which reflects the shareholders’ overall risk premium attributable to this business.

The assets held within the long-term business funds are legally owned by the life assurance company, however, the
shareholders will only benefit from ownership of these assets to the extent that surpluses are declared or from other cash
flows attributable to the shareholders. Reflecting the different nature of these assets, they are classified separately on the
consolidated balance sheet as "Life assurance business net assets attributable to policyholders", with a corresponding
liability to the policyholders also shown as "Life assurance business liabilities to policyholders". Investments held within the
long-term business funds are measured on the following basis: Equity shares and debt securities held for unit linked funds
are measured in accordance with policy terms at fair value, investment properties are measured at fair value based on
valuations carried out by independent valuers at the balance sheet date, and mortgages and other loans are measured at
cost less provision for impairment.

Property, equipment and computer software
Owner-occupied property is defined as property held by the Group for use in the supply of services or for administrative
purposes, whereas investment property is defined as property held by the Group to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. If a property of the Group includes a portion that is owner-occupied and another portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation, the classification is based on whether or not these portions can be sold separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the whole property is classified as owner-occupied property unless the owner-occupied
portion is insignificant. The classification of property is reviewed on a regular basis to account for major changes in its use.

Owner-occupied property is originally measured at cost and subsequently at fair value less accumulated depreciation.
Valuations are carried out periodically by independent qualified valuers. Depreciation is provided on the revalued amount less
the estimated residual value of buildings on a straight line basis over their expected useful life of 35 to 67 years. On disposal
of freehold land and buildings, the relevant revaluation reserve balance is transferred to retained earnings.

Investment property is measured at fair value as at the balance sheet date. Any gains or losses arising from the change in fair
value are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they arise. The valuations are carried out by independent
qualified valuers.

The cost of adapting/improving leasehold property is amortised over 5 years or the period of the lease if this does not
exceed 5 years.



Property, equipment and computer software (continued)
Owner-occupied property which the Group has decided to dispose of and foreclosed property, are classified as properties held for
sale and are carried at the lower of cost or recoverable amount and are included in other assets.

Equipment and computer software are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of equipment is provided on
a straight line basis over its expected useful life of 5 to 10 years. Depreciation of computer software is provided on a straight line
basis over its expected useful life of 3 to 5 years.

Goodwill and licence fees
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of identifiable net assets of a
subsidiary, associate or joint venture at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful economic
life up to a maximum of 10 years. 

Licence fees are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over the expected
useful life of the asset up to a maximum of 10 years.

At each balance sheet date, goodwill and licence fees are reviewed for indications of impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recovered. A write-down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount.

Subordinated loan stock and debt securities in issue
Subordinated loan stock and debt securities in issue are initially measured at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received
net of any transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method, to amortise cost
at inception to the redemption value, over the period to the earliest date that the Company can redeem the subordinated loan stock
and the debt securities in issue.

Debt instruments issued by the Company and held by the Group for trading are treated as a redemption of debt. Gains or losses
on redemption are recognised if the repurchase price of the debt was different from its carrying value. Subsequent sales of own debt
instruments in the market are treated as a debt re-issuance.

Interest on loan stock and debt securities in issue is included in interest expense.

Derivatives and hedge accounting
Derivative financial instruments include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency and interest rate swaps, equity linked
swaps and options, currency and interest rate options and other derivative financial instruments. 

Derivatives are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost (including transaction costs) and are subsequently measured
at fair value. Fair values are estimated using quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and options pricing models,
as appropriate.

BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

88



Derivatives and hedge accounting (continued)
All derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

For derivatives held for trading, any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

The Group also uses derivative financial instruments to hedge risks associated with interest rate and exchange rate
fluctuations. The Group applies either fair value or cash flow hedge accounting for derivatives when the specified criteria for
hedge accounting are met. 

In relation to fair value hedges which meet the criteria for hedge accounting, any gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging
instrument at fair value is recognised in the income statement. A gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, is
adjusted against the carrying amount of the hedged item and recognised in the income statement. 

In relation to cash flow hedges which meet the criteria for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in equity and the ineffective portion is recognised in the
income statement.

For cash flow hedges, the gains or losses that are recognised in equity are transferred to the income statement in the same period
in which the hedged transaction affects the net profit and loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedged item expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the hedge no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. If a hedging transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is transferred to the income statement. 

In some cases, a derivative may be part of a hybrid instrument that includes both a derivative and a host contract. This is known as
an embedded derivative. An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a stand alone derivative
instrument if and only if the following conditions are met: the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, the host contract is not carried at fair value with
changes in fair value reported in the income statement, and the embedded derivative meets the definition of a derivative.

Retirement benefits
The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plans is estimated annually using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method. The surplus or deficit, arising from changes in the discount rate and from differences between the expected and actual
return on plan assets and other actuarial assumptions, is recognised as income or expense over the expected average remaining
working lives of the employees participating in the plans.  

The cost of providing benefits under defined contribution and early retirement schemes is taken to the income statement on an
accruals basis.

Taxation on income
Taxation on income is provided in accordance with the fiscal regulations and rates, which apply in the countries where the Group
carries on its operations and is recognised as an expense in the period in which the income arises. Deferred tax is provided using
the liability method.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts at the balance sheet date for financial reporting purposes, which will result in taxable amounts
in future periods.
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Taxation on income (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carry-
forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise from the same tax reporting entity and relate to the
same tax authority and when the legal right to offset exists.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and balances with central banks and
balances included in placements with banks and other instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash or
are repayable within three months.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of Bank of Cyprus Group for the year ended 31 December 2003 were authorised
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 25 February 2004.

Bank of Cyprus Ltd is the holding company of the Bank of Cyprus Group. The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries during the year were the provision of banking and financial services, insurance business and property
development.

The Company was incorporated as a limited liability company in 1930 within the meaning of the Cyprus Company
Law 18 of 1922 and is a public company within the meaning of the Cyprus Stock Exchange Law and Regulations and
the Income Tax Law.

2. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

The Group has three principal areas of activity: banking and financial services, life and general insurance business and
property and hotel business.  
The Group’s business is mainly conducted in three geographical areas: (a) Cyprus, (b) Greece, and (c) other countries,
mainly the United Kingdom and Australia.  

The primary reporting format is for the areas of activity.

Areas of activity
Banking and) Insurance Property and 

financial services) business hotel business Total)
Cí000) Cí000 Cí000 Cí000)

2003

Turnover 528 498) 60 934 4 132 593 564)

(Loss)/profit before tax
As per the income statement (27 287) 8 185 1 690 (17 412)
Expenses included above:
Provision for impairment of  
available-for-sale investments 7 788) 11 _ 7 799)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 110 190) _ _ 110 190)
Profit before the deduction of the  
above expenses and tax 90 691) 8 196 1 690 100 577)

Assets 8 779 459) 261 503 30 427 9 071 389)
Inter-segment assets (9 561)

Total assets 9 061 828)

Liabilities 8 321 527) 218 566 11 776 8 551 869)
Inter-segment liabilities (13 325)

Total liabilities 8 538 544)

Capital expenditure 18 781) 463 171 19 415)

Depreciation and amortisation 18 305) 557 205 19 067)
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2. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Areas of activity (continued)
Banking and) Insurance Property and 

financial services) business hotel business Total)
Cí000) Cí000 Cí000 Cí000)

2002

Turnover 542 746) 57 611 5 930 606 287)

(Loss)/profit before tax
As per the income statement (22 398) 5 973 2 444 (13 981)

Expenses included above:
Provision for impairment of 
available-for-sale investments 22 987) 575 _ 23 562)
Recognised retirement benefits for   
previous years  7 669) 218 _ 7 887)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 80 142) _ _ 80 142)
Profit before the deduction of the 
above expenses and tax 88 400) 6 766 2 444 97 610)

Assets 7 882 437) 231 986 36 339 8 150 762)
Inter-segment assets (24 834)

Total assets 8 125 928)

Liabilities 7 423 519) 194 160 9 276 7 626 955)
Inter-segment liabilities (7 047)

Total liabilities 7 619 908)

Capital expenditure 27 312) 379 137 27 828)

Depreciation and amortisation 16 515) 586 310 17 411)
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2. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Geographical areas 
Cyprus) Greece) Other countries) Total)
Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000)

2003

Turnover 378 930) 180 086) 48 425) 607 441)
Inter-segment turnover, mainly interest (10 279) (3 348) (250) (13 877)

Turnover with external customers 368 651) 176 738) 48 175) 593 564)

(Loss)/profit before tax
As per the income statement (40 528) 22 459) 657) (17 412)

Expenses included above:
Provision for impairment of 
available-for-sale investments 3 591) _) 4 208) 7 799)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 87 335) 19 362) 3 493) 110 190)
Profit before the deduction of the   
above expenses and tax 50 398) 41 821) 8 358) 100 577)

Assets) 5 325 644) 3 277 632) 954 808) 9 558 084)
Inter-segment assets (496 256)

Total assets 9 061 828)

Capital expenditure 11 993) 6 920) 502) 19 415)

2002

Turnover 410 173) 159 158) 54 079) 623 410)
Inter-segment turnover, mainly interest (13 419) (2 716) (988) (17 123)
Turnover with external customers 396 754) 156 442) 53 091) 606 287)

(Loss)/profit before tax
As per the income statement (35 832) 18 321) 3 530) (13 981)

Expenses included above:
Provision for impairment of 
available-for-sale investments 19 186) 169) 4 207) 23 562)
Recognised retirement benefits for   
previous years 7 887) _) _) 7 887)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 65 088) 14 803) 251) 80 142)
Profit before the deduction of the     
above expenses and tax 56 329) 33 293) 7 988) 97 610)

Assets 4 893 204) 2 590 772) 935 973) 8 419 949)
Inter-segment assets (294 021)

Total assets 8 125 928)

Capital expenditure 18 904) 8 383) 541) 27 828)

Generally, pricing between the different segments is based on market prices.
The analyses by geographical area are based on the location of the office recording the transaction. Even though the
activities of some of the Group companies are interdependent, the analyses by area of activity and geographical area
are presented without adjustments for the cost of the net investment, the allocation of the benefit of earnings on the
Group capital and for Group head office expenses, as such adjustments would necessarily be subjective.
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3. INTEREST INCOME
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Loans and advances to customers 339 466) 335 405)
Placements with banks 45 735) 42 685)
Treasury bills 8 852) 10 811)
Debt securities 38 383) 58 933)

432 436) 447 834)

4. INTEREST EXPENSE
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Customer deposits 215 048) 255 771)
Amounts due to banks 6 940) 7 277)
Subordinated loan stock and debt securities in issue 11 918) 9 258)

233 906) 272 306)

5. LOSSES ON SALE AND REVALUATION 

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

(Losses)/gains from trading portfolio:
- equity shares (335) (3 494)

- debt securities (466) 271)
- derivatives (1 424) 1 704)
Gains on sale of available-for-sale investments 1 297) 103)
Net gain on revaluation of financial instruments 
designated as fair value hedges 136) 794)

(792) (622)
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6. INCOME FROM INSURANCE BUSINESS
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Life assurance business 11 319) 8 070)
General insurance business 4 118) 5 374)

15 437) 13 444)

Income from long-term life assurance business consists of (a) any surplus from the operations that is attributed to the
shareholders, and includes investment management fees and other expenses charged to the long-term business funds, and
(b) the change in the present value of the net future income from the in-force business before the provision for taxation.

Income from general insurance business is the net amount of the gross insurance premiums less reinsurance premiums, net
claims and agents’ commissions, and the increase/decrease in insurance business funds.

Staff costs and other administrative expenses are included in the relevant captions in the income statement.

7. OTHER INCOME 
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Dividend income from equity shares 135) 496)
Profit on disposal of property held for sale 1 951) 2 637)
Rental income from investment property 24) 108)
Fair value adjustment of investment property (212) 472)
Other income 2 313) 1 175)

4 211) 4 888)

8. STAFF COSTS 
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Salaries and employer’s contributions 103 737) 95 458)
Retirement benefit costs 19 600) 22 200)

123 337) 117 658)

The number of persons employed by the Group as at 31 December 2003 was 5 703 (31 December 2002: 5 518).

Retirement benefit costs
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Defined benefit plans 17 929) 21 822)
Defined contribution plans 599) 322)
Early retirement plans 1 072) 56)

19 600) 22 200)
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8. STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)

The cost for defined benefit plans for 2002 includes an amount of Cí7 887 thousand representing the past service cost of
additional benefits on retirement of employees that arose as a result of the latest agreement between the Cyprus Bankers’
Employers’ Association and the Cyprus Union of Bank Employees. This is a non-recurring cost.

The Group has established several retirement benefit plans covering substantially all of its employees. The plans are funded
and their assets are held independently of the Group’s assets in separate Funds.

The main retirement scheme is a defined benefit plan for the Group’s permanent employees in Cyprus, representing 57,5%
of total Group staff. The plan provides for lump sum payments on retirement, or earlier death, calculated on the basis of
the length of service and the average salary in the period of 30-36 months before retirement. A small number of staff has
the option to receive part or the whole of their entitlement by way of a pension for life.
The net present value of the obligations under the plan is estimated annually, using the projected unit credit actuarial
valuation method, by independent actuaries. The principal actuarial assumptions used at 31 December 2003 and 2002 were
the following:

2003) 2002)
%) %)

Discount rate 6,0) 6,5)
Expected rate of return on Plan assets 6,0) 6,5)
Future salary increases 7,5) 7,5)

The terms of the retirement plans of employees in Greece, the United Kingdom and other countries and the respective
actuarial assumptions, reflect the economic conditions prevailing in these countries.

The results of the actuarial valuations for all of the Group’s defined benefit plans are as shown below:

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Present value of obligations 224 484) 187 960)
Fair value of plan assets (108 766) (97 968)

Unrecognised actuarial losses 115 718) 89 992)

The plan assets include securities issued by Bank of Cyprus Ltd as follows:
Fair value

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Ordinary shares 38 814) 40 574)
Share warrants _) 375)
Loan stock 11 760) 395)

50 574) 41 344)
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8. STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)

The amounts recognised in the income statement for defined benefit plans are as follows:

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Current service cost 10 142) 9 296)
Interest cost 10 621) 9 179)
Expected return on plan assets (6 081) (6 678)

Actuarial loss 3 247) 2 138)
Recognised retirement benefits for previous years _) 7 887)

17 929) 21 822)

Actual return on plan assets (negative) (1 468) (16 844)

The cumulative actuarial losses will be recognised in the income statement over the average remaining working lives of the
employees participating in the relevant plans.
The cumulative unrecognised actuarial losses resulted mainly from the changes in the discount rate and the negative return
on the assets of the defined benefit plans.  
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAX

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Loss before tax is stated after 
crediting/(charging):
Fair value adjustment of investment property (212) 472)
Profit on disposal of property and equipment  
and write-offs of intangible assets ) 441) 124)
Interest on subordinated loan stock (11 575) (9 258)

Operating lease rentals for land and buildings (6 225) (5 482)

Depreciation of property and equipment (13 124) (12 495)

Amortisation of software and licence fees (5 826) (4 799)

Amortisation of goodwill arising on consolidation   
of subsidiary company (117) (117)

Auditors’ remuneration (424) (396)

Directors’ emoluments:
Executives
Fees (37) (66)

Emoluments in executive capacity, 
including contributions to retirement schemes (370) (458)

(407) (524)
Non Executives
Fees (144) (129)

Total emoluments (551) (653)

During 2003 the emoluments of the three executive directors including contributions to retirement schemes, were in
the range of Cí100 thousand to Cí150 thousand each (2002: Cí150 thousand to Cí200 thousand each).
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10. TAX
) 2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)
On profit for the year:
Cyprus corporation tax  ) 1 161) 2 615)
Cyprus defence contribution  ) 67) 1 027)
Overseas taxation 12 004) 7 753)
Deferred tax ) (2 466) (6 130)

Prior years’ tax adjustments ) 625) 2 152)

Tax as shown in the income statement 11 391) 7 417)

Reconciliation between the tax expense for the
year and as estimated using the Cyprus tax rates:

Loss before tax (17 412) (13 981)

Tax at the normal tax rates in Cyprus (1 141) 4 150)
Difference between overseas tax rates and  
Cyprus tax rates 7 916) 2 493)
Effect of the decrease of Cyprus tax rates  
as of 2003 _) (3 451)
Write-off of withholding tax on dividends 
received  _) 227)

Tax effect of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ) 4 626) 2 460)
Income not subject to tax (635) (614)

) 10 766) 5 265)
Prior years’ tax adjustments 625) 2 152)

Tax as shown in the income statement 11 391) 7 417)

As from 1 January 2003, Corporation tax in Cyprus is calculated at the rate of 10%. For 2003 and 2004 profits
over Cí1 million are subject to an additional tax of 5%. 
For 2002, corporation tax is calculated at the rate of 20% on taxable income up to Cí40 thousand and 25% on
taxable income over Cí40 thousand.

For life assurance business there is a minimum tax charge of 1,5% on gross premiums.

As from 1 January 2003, the defence contribution on profits has been abolished. The rate of defence contribution on
rental income is 3%.
For the year ended 31 December 2002 defence contribution was levied on profits and rental income at the rate of 3%.

The accumulated tax losses amount to Cí34 248 thousand (2002: Cí29 326 thousand) and will be utilised against
future taxable profits.

An additional tax charge of about Cí4,5 million will arise in the event of distribution of the whole of the undistributed
profit of overseas branches.
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11. LOSS PER SHARE

2003) 2002)
Loss per share

Loss after tax (Cí thousand) (28 803) (21 398)

Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year (thousand) 442 598 ) 436 644)

Loss per share (cents) (6,5) (4,9)

At 31 December 2003 there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares.

The conversion of convertible loan stock and the exercise of Share Warrants have been ignored in the calculation of the
fully diluted loss per share for 2002, as this would result in a decrease of the loss per share for the year.

The weighted average number of shares for 2002 has been adjusted to reflect the bonus element resulting from the
exercise of the Share Warrants.

12. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

Deposits with central banks include the obligatory deposits for liquidity purposes which amount to Cí361 117 thousand
(2002: Cí254 120 thousand).

13. TREASURY BILLS

Treasury bills are short term, held-to-maturity investments and include obligatory placements for liquidity purposes
of Cí77 767 thousand (2002: Cí116 663 thousand). 

14. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS 
) 2003) 2002)
) Cí000) Cí000)

Repayable
On demand 68 212) 187 312)
Within three months 1 198 914) 662 239)
Between three months and one year ) 58 183) 74 140)

1 325 309) 923 691)
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15. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Loans and other advances ) 5 207 646) 4 645 723)
Hire purchase and finance lease debtors 481 485) 397 922)
Gross loans and advances ) 5 689 131) 5 043 645)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts (409 239) (276 903)

5 279 892) 4 766 742)

Repayable
On demand ) 1 654 282) 1 617 048)
Within three months ) 436 667) 366 458)
Between three months and one year ) 754 168) 812 511)
Between one and five years ) 1 536 827) 1 597 848)
After five years ) 1 307 187) 649 780)

5 689 131) 5 043 645)

By economic activity
Trade ) 1 060 822) 926 776)
Manufacturing ) 366 170) 365 871)
Tourism 533 779) 461 026)
Property and construction 758 903) 628 239)
Personal, home loans and professional  2 662 810) 2 313 473)
Other sectors 306 647) 348 260)

5 689 131) 5 043 645)

By geographical area
Cyprus 2 962 946) 2 851 013)
Greece 2 116 560) 1 641 084)
United Kingdom 514 861) 462 114)
Australia 94 764) 89 434)

5 689 131) 5 043 645)
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15. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 
Provisions) Suspended)

income) Total)
Cí000) Cí000) Cí000)

2003
At 1 January 187 203) 89 700) 276 903)
Exchange adjustments 664) 118) 782)

Applied in writing off advances (10 573) (345) (10 918)

Suspended income for the year _) 37 121) 37 121)
Collection of prior years suspended income _) (4 839) (4 839)

Charge for the year 110 190) _) 110 190)
At 31 December 287 484) 121 755) 409 239)

2002
At 1 January 116 829) 72 676) 189 505)
Exchange adjustments (335) (102) (437)

Applied in writing off advances (11 683) (910) (12 593)

Suspended income for the year _) 20 286) 20 286)
Charge for the year 82 392) (2 250) 80 142)
At 31 December 187 203) 89 700) 276 903)

Loans and advances, net of provisions and suspended income, of Cí5 279 892 thousand (2002: Cí4 766 742 thousand),
include loans and advances amounting to Cí279 605 thousand (2002: Cí194 388 thousand) for which income is
suspended.

The basis of calculation of loans and advances for which income is suspended has been revised as from 1 January 2003
as stated in the summary of significant accounting policies. 
The suspended income collected in 2002 has been set off against the provision charge for the year.
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16. DEBT SECURITIES
Held-for-) Available-) Held-to-)

trading) for-sale) maturity) Total)
Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000)

2003
Cyprus Government 138 360) 78 123) _) 216 483)
Other governments _) 319 168) _) 319 168)
Local authorities 775) 679) _) 1 454)
Banks and other organisations _) 524 820) 2 997) 527 817)
Cyprus public companies 268) 1 298) _) 1 566)

139 403) 924 088) 2 997) 1 066 488)

Repayable
Within one year 499) 82 135) 2 734) 85 368)
Between one and five years  138 509) 737 146) _) 875 655)
After five years 395) 104 807) 263) 105 465)

139 403) 924 088) 2 997) 1 066 488)

Listed on the Cyprus Stock Exchange 138 628) 71 242) _) 209 870)
Listed on European stock exchanges _) 851 867) 2 997) 854 864)
Unlisted-certificates of deposit, banks and 
local authorities bonds 775) 979) _) 1 754)

139 403) 924 088) 2 997) 1 066 488)

2002
Cyprus Government 60 462) 125 408) _) 185 870)
Other governments _) 274 611) _) 274 611)
Local authorities 1 450) 179) _) 1 629)
Banks and other organisations 191 050) 394 964) 7 338) 593 352)
Cyprus public companies 376) 479) _) 855)

253 338) 795 641) 7 338) 1 056 317)

Repayable
Within one year 26 228) 189 868) 2 648) 218 744)
Between one and five years  220 476) 315 339) 4 690) 540 505)
After five years 6 634) 290 434) _) 297 068)

253 338) 795 641) 7 338) 1 056 317)

Listed on the Cyprus Stock Exchange 60 838) 118 210) _) 179 048)
Listed on European stock exchanges  191 050) 677 230) 7 338) 875 618)
Unlisted-certificates of deposit, banks and  
local authorities bonds 1 450) 201) _) 1 651)

253 338) 795 641) 7 338) 1 056 317)

The movement for the year 2003 in available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments in debt securities is
summarised as follows:

Available-) Held-to-)
for-sale) maturity)
Cí000) Cí000)

At 1 January 2003 795 641) 7 338)
Exchange adjustments (40 896) (278)
Additions 499 771) 283)
Disposals and redemptions (326 259) (4 345)
Gain from change in fair value 104) _)
Amortisation of premiums/discounts (4 273) (1)

At 31 December 2003 924 088) 2 997)
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17. EQUITY SHARES
Held-for-trading Available-for-sale Total

2003) 2002) 2003) 2002) 2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000)

Listed on the 
Cyprus Stock  
Exchange 2 518) 2 958) 14 681) 17 664) 17 199) 20 622)
Listed on  
European  
stock exchanges 344) 173) 1 876) 1 078) 2 220) 1 251)
Unlisted 185) 251) 15 479) 23 450) 15 664) 23 701)

3 047) 3 382) 32 036) 42 192) 35 083) 45 574)

The movement for the year 2003 in available-for-sale investments in equity shares is summarised as follows:

Cost less impairment) Revaluation) Book value)
Cí000) Cí000) Cí000)

At 1 January 2003 39 987) 2 205) 42 192)

Exchange adjustments 169) (210) (41)

Additions 1 079) _) 1 079)

Disposals (665) (16) (681)

Loss from change in fair value _) (10 513) (10 513)

Provision for impairment   (7 799) 7 799) _)

At 31 December 2003 32 771) (735) 32 036)
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18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property) Equipment) Total) Total)

2003) 2003) 2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000)

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 134 477) 71 627) 206 104) 192 058)
Exchange adjustments 504) (270) 234) (1 263)

Additions 7 297) 7 448) 14 745) 17 093)
Surplus on revaluation for the year 20 157) _) 20 157) _)
Impairment loss-transfer to the  
income statement (246) _) (246) _)
Transfer to investment property _) _) _) (293)

Disposals and write-offs (781) (1 517) (2 298) (1 491)

Reversal of depreciation upon 
revaluation (5 167) _) (5 167) _)
At 31 December 156 241) 77 288) 233 529) 206 104)

Depreciation
At 1 January 19 126) 45 344) 64 470) 53 630)
Exchange adjustments 145) (255) (110) (576)

Transfer to investment property _) _) _) (10)

Disposals and write-offs (262) (1 294) (1 556) (1 069)

Reversal of depreciation upon 
revaluation  (5 167) _) (5 167) _)
Charge for the year 5 492) 7 632) 13 124) 12 495)
At 31 December 19 334) 51 427) 70 761) 64 470)

Net book value
At 31 December 136 907) 25 861) 162 768) 141 634)

The net book value of the Group’s property comprises of:
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Freehold property 120 310) 99 569)
Improvements on property leased for 
a period of up to 50 years 16 597) 15 782)

136 907) 115 351)

Property includes land amounting to Cí51 832 thousand (2002: land and buildings under construction Cí30 764
thousand) for which no depreciation is charged.

The fair value of freehold property is the market value as at 31 December 2003 as estimated by independent qualified valuers.
The cumulative revaluation surplus on 31 December 2003 amounted to Cí44 224 thousand (2002: Cí24 718 thousand)
and is included in the property revaluation reserve.

The net book value of freehold land and buildings, on a cost less accumulated depreciation basis, would be Cí76 086 thousand
(2002: Cí75 270 thousand). 

There are no fixed charges in favour of third parties on the Group’s tangible fixed assets as at 31 December 2003 and 2002.
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer) Licence fees) Goodwill on) )
software) ) consolidation)

of subsidiary)
company) Total) Total)

2003) 2003) 2003) 2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000)

Cost
At 1 January 35 367) 3 607) 1 173) 40 147) 29 776)
Exchange adjustments 63) _) _) 63) (160)

Additions 4 670) _) _) 4 670) 10 735)
Write-offs  (104) _) _) (104) (204)

At 31 December 39 996) 3 607) 1 173) 44 776) 40 147)

Amortisation
At 1 January 22 698) 90) 234) 23 022) 18 274)
Exchange adjustments 7) _) _) 7) (88)
Write-offs (77) _) _) (77) (80)
Charge for the year 5 465) 361) 117) 5 943) 4 916)
At 31 December 28 093) 451) 351) 28 895) 23 022)

Net book value
At 31 December 11 903) 3 156) 822) 15 881) 17 125)

The goodwill on consolidation of subsidiary company arose on the acquisition of the brokerage company Victory Securities SA,
which was renamed Kyprou Securities SA. The goodwill is amortised systematically over its expected useful life which was
estimated at 10 years.
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20. OTHER ASSETS
) 2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Debtors ) 10 192) 10 154)
Property held for sale ) 8 533) 11 985)
Investment property ) 3 043) 2 972)
Value of in-force life assurance policies (Note 22) ) 19 240) 16 235)
Taxes refundable ) 4 615) 4 761)
Deferred tax ) 1 573) 1 224)
Fair value of derivative financial instruments ) 8 902) 18 549)
Items in course of collection and other assets ) 26 043) 43 781)

82 141) 109 661)

The movement of investment property is summarised as follows: 

) 2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

At 1 January ) 2 972) _)
Exchange adjustments ) 55) _)
Transfer from property held for sale ) _) 2 229)
Transfer from property and equipment ) _) 283)
Additions ) 228) _)
Fair value adjustment on transfer 
to investment property ) _) (12)

Fair value adjustment for the year ) (212) 472)
At 31 December 3 043) 2 972)

The deferred tax asset is attributable to the following items: 

) 2003) 2002)
) Cí000) Cí000)

Difference between wear and tear allowances and depreciation _) (1 327)

Property revaluation ) _) (2 202)

Investments revaluation ) 116) 132)
Other temporary differences ) 1 082) 775)
Unutilised tax losses carried forward ) 375) 3 846)

1 573) 1 224)
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21. PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Accrued interest, fees and commissions ) 83 520) 80 840)
Prepaid expenses ) 14 726) 14 937)

98 246) 95 777)

22. LIFE ASSURANCE BUSINESS

The value placed on the life assurance business of the subsidiary company EuroLife Ltd comprises of:

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Net assets attributable to shareholders 15 267) 12 065)
Value of in-force life assurance policies 19 240) 16 235)
Embedded value 34 507) 28 300)

The movement of the embedded value is summarised as follows:

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

At 1 January 28 300) 25 191)
Profit for the year 5 598) 2 652)
Increase in the value of in-force policies 3 005) 475)
Share capital increase 6 000) _)
Dividend paid (11 000) _)
Revaluation of property and investments, net of deferred tax 2 591) _)
Exchange differences and other adjustments 13) (18)

At 31 December 34 507) 28 300)

Life assurance business net assets attributable to policyholders comprise of:

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Investments:
Equity shares 65 766) 52 972)
Debt securities 53 364) 55 335)
Land 370) _)
Mortgages and loans 6 456) 7 607)
Bank deposits 60 545) 59 214)

186 501) 175 128)

Other assets less liabilities 2 569) 1 028)

Life assurance business net assets attributable to policyholders 189 070) 176 156)
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22. LIFE ASSURANCE BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

In determining the value of in-force policies, assumptions are made relating to gross investment yields, future mortality,
persistence and level of expenses.  The basic assumptions used in determining the value of the in-force policies are:

2003) 2002)
%) %)

Discount rate (after tax) 10,0) 10,5)
Return on investments 6,0) 6,5)
Expenses inflation 5,0) 5,0)

23. AMOUNTS DUE TO BANKS
) 2003) 2002)
) Cí000) Cí000)

Repayble
On demand ) 50 163) 21 506)
Within three months ) 170 514) 144 427)
Between three months and one year ) 42 557) 39 963)

263 234) 205 896)

24. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
) 2003) 2002)
) Cí000) Cí000)

Repayable
On demand ) 2 014 939) 1 358 344)
Within three months ) 3 745 756) 2 844 712)
Between three months and one year ) 1 019 835) 2 071 651)
Between one and five years ) 592 695) 537 079)
After five years ) 16 834) 24 482)

7 390 059) 6 836 268)

By category
Demand deposits ) 742 485) 771 634)
Savings deposits ) 488 108) 513 331)
Time deposits ) 6 159 466) 5 551 303)

7 390 059) 6 836 268)

By geographical area
Cyprus ) 4 371 614) 4 375 631)
Greece 2 422 157) 1 878 137)
United Kingdom ) 508 890) 524 596)
Australia ) 87 398) 57 904)

7 390 059) 6 836 268)
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25. DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE
Interest rate:) 2003) 2002)

Three month Euribor plus) Cí000) Cí000)

Senior debt in Euro (ú250 million) 2003/2006 0,35%) 146 284) _)
Senior debt in Euro (ú5 million) 2003/2006 0,40%) 2 932) _)
Senior debt in Euro (ú3 million) 2003/2008 0,45%) 1 759) _)
Interest-free loan from the European Development Bank 288) 288)

151 263) 288)

Repayable
Between one and five years 150 975) _)
After five years 288) 288)

151 263) 288)

During 2003, Bank of Cyprus Ltd has established a Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) Programme with an aggregate
nominal amount up to ú750 million. Under the EMTN Programme, the Company issued ú250 million of senior debt.
The senior debt was issued in Euro for a three year term, at the price of 99,883% and bears a floating rate of
interest. Under the EMTN Programme, two other floating rate bonds were issued at par, amounting to ú8 million.
The ú250 million and ú5 million senior debt securities issued under the EMTN Programme have been listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. 

26. OTHER LIABILITIES
) 2003) 2002)
) Cí000) Cí000)

General insurance business funds ) 10 500) 4 477)
Taxes payable ) 10 854) 5 359)
Deferred tax 9 324) 6 397)
Fair value of derivative financial instruments ) 28 704) 43 037)
Items in course of settlement and other liabilities ) 68 890) 59 926)

128 272) 119 196)

The deferred tax liability is attributable to the following items:
) 2003) 2002)
) Cí000) Cí000)

Difference between wear and tear allowances and depreciation 1 601) 112)
Property revaluation ) 5 352) 1 487)
Investments revaluation ) 5 185) 3 537)
Other temporary differences 272) 1 261)
Unutilised tax losses carried forward (3 086) _)

9 324) 6 397)

27. ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
) 2003) 2002)
) Cí000) Cí000)

Accrued interest, fees and commissions 68 933) 87 987)
Other accrued expenses ) 4 287) 4 247)
Deferred income 2 652) 3 334)

75 872) 95 568)
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28. SUBORDINATED LOAN STOCK 2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Step-up floating rate subordinated bonds in Euro, 2006/2011  160 816) 157 620)
6,75% Convertible Loan Stock, 2003 _) 3 916)
Floating rate loan stock, 2003/2008 _) 25 000)
Capital Securities Series A 65 000) _)
Floating rate subordinated bonds in Euro, 2008/2013  114 958) _)

340 774) 186 536)

Repayable
Within one year _) 3 916)
After five years 340 774) 182 620)

340 774) 186 536)

The subordinated loan stock was issued by Bank of Cyprus Ltd. The subordinated loan stock is not secured and the rights
and claims of loan stock holders are subordinated to the claims of depositors and other creditors of the Company, but
have priority over the shareholders of the Company.

On 20 June 2001 the Company issued ú275 million Step-up floating rate bonds 2006/2011 in Euro, maturing on 20 June
2011. The Company has the option to redeem the bonds in whole on or at any date after 20 June 2006. The interest rate
is 1,20% above the three month Euribor up to 20 June 2006 and will increase to 2,40% thereafter. The bonds have been
listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

The 6,75% Convertible Loan Stock, was redeemed as at 31 October 2003, at par together with any accrued interest, in
accordance with the terms of the issue.

The Cí25 million loan stock, 2003/2008 with floating rate 0,75% higher than the interest rate offered for fixed deposits
of one year maturity, was fully redeemed on 19 December 2003.

Capital Securities Series A were issued on 20 February 2003, in Cyprus pounds and have been offered to a limited number
of investors in Cyprus. Capital Securities Series A rank as Tier I capital and have no maturity date. However, they may be
redeemed in whole at the option of the Company, subject to the prior consent of the Central Bank of Cyprus, at their
principal amount together with any outstanding interest payments, five years after their issue date or on any interest
payment date thereafter.
Capital Securities Series A bear floating interest rate, which is revised every three months. The interest rate is equal to
the base rate of the Company at the beginning of each three month period plus 1,00%. Interest is payable quarterly.

During 2003, Bank of Cyprus Ltd has established a Euro Medium Term Note (∂ª∆¡) Programme, with an aggregate
nominal amount up to ú750 million.
Under the ∂ª∆¡ Programme, the Company issued ú200 million Bonds in Euro. The bonds are step-up floating rate
notes and mature in October 2013. The Company has the option to call them during or after October 2008. The
interest rate was set at 1,00% above three-month Euribor and the issue price at 99,766%. If the bonds are not called
in October 2008, the interest rate will increase by 1,20%. The bonds have been listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. On 31 December 2003 bonds outstanding amounted to ú197 million as ú3 million bonds were purchased
and are held by the Company.



BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

112

29. SHARE CAPITAL
2003) 2003) 2002) 2002)

Shares) ) Shares) )
(thousand)) Cí000) (thousand)) Cí000)

Authorised

Shares of 50 cents each 600 000) 300 000) 600 000) 300 000)

Issued and fully paid )
At 1 January 437 449) 218 724) 432 362) 216 181)
Conversion of convertible loan stock 1 466) 733) 368) 184)
Exercise of Share Warrants 25 856) 12 928) _) _)
Dividend reinvestment _) _) 4 719) 2 359)
At 31 December 464 771) 232 385) 437 449) 218 724)

During the year 2003, 1 466 thousand new shares were issued as a result of the conversion of Cí1 833 thousand
Convertible Loan Stock due 2003.

As at 31 December 2002 there were 33 664 thousand unexercised Share Warrants 1999/2003 which could be exercised
during October 2003 at the price of Cí1,25 per 50 cents share. The number of Share Warrants exercised was 25 855 668,
and the share capital and share premium of the Company increased by Cí12 928 thousand (25 855 668 shares) and
Cí19 392 thousand respectively.

During the year 2002, the Company introduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Under this Plan, all shareholders have
the opportunity to reinvest part or all of their dividend, in Bank of Cyprus Ltd shares at a discount of 7,5% on the
average current market price of the shares. The Company reserves the right to change the percentage of discount offered
under the Plan, or even to abolish it.
The price of shares issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan for the final dividend for year 2001 has been set at
Cí1,51 per share.
As a result of the reinvestment of the final dividend for 2001, the Company’s share capital and share premium reserve,
increased by Cí2 359 thousand (4 718 961 shares) and by Cí4 766 thousand, respectively.

The Company has granted Share Options to all Group personnel who were in service at 31 December 2000. The total
number of Share Options granted was 3 216 700 and they give the holder the right to buy one share of the Company at
the price of Cí3,50 per share. Upto 50% of the Share Options could be exercised in the period from 31 January 2003 to
31 December 2003. The remaining options can be exercised in the period from 31 January 2004 to 31 December 2007.
During 2003 and 2002 no Share Options were exercised and 1 608 350 options were outstanding as at 31 December 2003.
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30. DIVIDEND PAID
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

Final dividend for 2001, at 16% (8 cents per share) _) 34 612)

The final dividend for 2001, totalling Cí34 612 thousand (8 cents per share), was approved at the Annual General Meeting
held on 24 April 2002 and was paid on 20 May 2002.

The Board of Directors does not propose the payment of a dividend for the year 2003.

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Financial instruments
In common with other banking companies, the Group conducts business involving acceptances, guarantees, performance
bonds and indemnities. The majority of these facilities are offset by corresponding obligations of third parties. Contingent
liabilities and commitments are not reflected in the balance sheet.
The following table summarises the nominal principal amount of contingent liabilities and commitments as at 31 December:

) 2003) 2002)
) Cí000) Cí000)

Contingent liabilities

Acceptances and endorsements 33 148) 50 131)
Guarantees and performance bonds 656 684) 589 950)

689 832) 640 081)

Commitments

Documentary credits 26 860) 29 352)
Undrawn formal standby facilities, 
credit lines and other commitments to lend ) 988 309) 946 973)

1 015 169) 976 325)

An acceptance is an undertaking by a bank to pay a bill of exchange drawn on a customer in the event that payment is not
honoured by the customer. Most acceptances are expected to be presented for payment, but reimbursement by the
customer is usually immediate.

Endorsements are residual liabilities in respect of bills of exchange, which have been discounted by the bank and
subsequently rediscounted.

Guarantees and performance bonds are generally written by a bank to support the performance of a customer to third
parties. As the bank will only be required to meet these obligations in the event of the customer’s default, the cash
requirements of these instruments are expected to be considerably below their nominal amounts.

Documentary credits commit the bank to make payments to third parties on production of documents and provided that
the terms of the documentary credit are satisfied. The repayment by the customer is usually immediate.
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Commitments to lend are agreements to grant a loan to a customer in the future subject to certain conditions. Such
commitments are made for a fixed period of time of time and are cancellable by the bank subject to notice requirements.
Most commitments expire without being fully drawn upon and hence the cash requirements of such commitments are
considerably less than the commitment limits that are reported.

Capital commitments 
Commitments for contracted capital expenditure as at 31 December 2003 amount to Cí3 452 thousand (2002: Cí9 689
thousand).

Litigation 
Proceedings have begun before the Committee for the Protection of Competition against three commercial banks in
Cyprus, including Bank of Cyprus Ltd, for alleged violations of the Protection of Competition Legislation of Cyprus. Bank
of Cyprus Ltd rejects and refutes the charges that have been brought against it. At this stage it is not feasible to estimate
any possible loss that may arise due to the aforementioned proceedings.

There is no other significant pending litigation, claims or assessments against the Group the outcome of which would
have a material effect on the Group’s financial position and operations.

32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The use of derivatives and their sale to customers as risk management products is an integral part of the Group’s
trading activities. 

These instruments are also used to manage the Group’s own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates and
equity price indices as part of its asset and liability management activities.

Forward exchange rate contracts are irrevocable agreements to buy or sell a specified quantity of foreign currency usually
on a specified future date at an agreed rate.

A currency swap involves the exchange of two currencies at the current market rate and the commitment to re-exchange
them at a specified rate on the maturity date of the swap.

An interest rate swap is an agreement between two parties to exchange fixed rate and floating rate interest by means of
periodic payments based upon a notional principal amount and the interest rates defined in the contract. 

An equity linked swap is an agreement between two parties to exchange the return on an equity index for a stream of cash
flows based on a short-term interest rate index.

Interest rate, currency and equity options provide the buyer with the right, but not the obligation to either purchase or sell
a specified stock or stock index at a specified price or level on or before a specified date.

The credit exposure of derivative financial instruments represents the cost to replace contracts with a positive value as those
used at the balance sheet date. To control the level of credit risk taken, the Group assesses counterparties using the same
techniques as those used for lending decisions.
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32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

The notional amounts of certain types of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognised on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. 

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments becomes positive (assets) or negative (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates or equity price indices relative to their terms. The aggregate
fair value of derivative financial instruments may fluctuate significantly from time to time. 

Changes in fair value of derivatives held for trading are recognised in the income statement.

Changes in fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are recognised in the income statement. 

In cash flow hedge accounting, the effective portion of the gain or loss on revaluation of derivatives is recognised in equity
(consolidated statement of changes in equity) and the ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement.

Fair value hedges
The Group uses interest rate swaps of nominal value Cí169 526 thousand (2002: Cí107 877 thousand), to hedge the
interest rate risk arising as a result of the possible decrease in the fair value of fixed rate bonds classified as available-for-sale
or of fixed interest rate advances. The fair value of these derivatives at 31 December 2003 was Cí7 237 thousand (loss)
(2002: Cí6 353 thousand (loss)) and the change in the fair value of the relevant hedged items was Cí8 280 thousand (gain)
(2002: Cí7 147 thousand (gain)).

Cash flow hedges
The Group uses interest rate swaps of nominal value Cí161 252 thousand (2002: Cí157 620 thousand) to hedge the
future cash flows from the Step-Up floating rate subordinated bonds in Euro, 2006/2011. The net negative fair value of
these derivatives at 31 December 2003 was Cí6 321 thousand (2002: Cí6 904 thousand). 

Hedges of net investments in foreign entities
The Group hedges the currency risk arising on the retranslation into Cyprus pounds of the net assets of the overseas
subsidiaries and branches. Liabilities amounting to Cí181 028 thousand (2002: Cí170 511 thousand) have been
designated as hedges and have given rise to a loss of Cí998 thousand (2002: profit of Cí5 013 thousand) which
was taken to the exchange adjustments reserve, against the profit/loss that arose on the retranslation of the net
assets into Cyprus pounds.
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32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

The nominal amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments are summarised as follows:    

31 December 2003 31 December 2002
Nominal amount Fair value Nominal amount Fair value

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Cí000 Cí000 Cí000 Cí000 Cí000 Cí000

Derivatives held
for trading

Forward exchange 
rate contracts 108 997 3 154 4 357 177 407 3 538 3 285
Currency swaps 494 404 2 672 9 413 835 582 9 890 23 423
Interest rate swaps 512 920 2 018 716 527 107 3 359 1 310
Equity linked swaps 4 161 398 _ 20 204 624 624
Equity options 12 314 538 538 17 166 1 138 1 138

1 132 796 8 780 15 024 1 577 466 18 549 29 780

Derivatives qualifying 
for hedge accounting

Fair value hedges:
Interest rate swaps 169 526 122 7 359 107 877 _ 6 353

Cash flow hedges:
Interest rate swaps 161 252 _ 6 321 157 620 _ 6 904

330 778 122 13 680 265 497 _ 13 257
Total 1 463 574 8 902 28 704 1 842 963 18 549 43 037
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33. NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Loss before tax (17 412) (13 981)

Adjustments for: )
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 110 190) 80 142)
Depreciation of property and equipment 13 124) 12 495)
Amortisation of intangible assets 5 943) 4 916)
Amortisation of discounts and premiums 4 274) 3 252)
Increase in prepayments and accrued income (2 469) (28 338)

(Decrease)/increase in accruals and deferred income (19 696) 20 887)

Profit on disposal of property and equipment and
write-offs of intangible assets (441) (124)

Interest on debt securities (38 383) (58 933)

Dividend income from equity shares (135) (496)

(Profit)/loss on sale of investments in equity shares (22) 10)

Profit on sale of investments in debt securities (1 275) (113)

Fair value adjustment of available-for-sale debt securities  
qualifying for fair value hedge accounting (1 293) (7 147)

Provision for impairment of available-for-sale investments 7 799) 23 562)
Interest on subordinated loan stock 11 575) 9 258)

71 779) 45 390)

Increase in
Amounts due to banks 57 338) _)
Customer deposits 558 762) 560 385)
General insurance business funds 6 023) 491)
Other assets of life assurance business (1 413) (475)

Loans and advances to customers (624 122) (621 653)

Other liabilities _) 32 327)

Debt securities in issue 150 404) _)

Decrease in
Placements with banks 15 957) 7 515)
Amounts due to banks _) (124 741)

Debt securities and equity shares held-for-trading 114 270) 240 401)
Other liabilities (4 697) _)

Other assets 30 783) 12 306)
Debt securities is issue _) (3 462)

375 084) 148 484)
Tax paid (8 155) (12 814)

Net cash flows from operating activities 366 929) 135 670)



BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

118

34. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
2003) 2002)

Cí000) Cí000)

At 1 January 1 642 802) 1 733 257)
Exchange adjustments (374) 70)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents for the year 431 648) (90 525)

At 31 December 2 074 076) 1 642 802)

Cash and balances with central banks 545 602) 570 478)
Treasury bills 261 348) 222 773)
Placements with banks repayable within three months 1 267 126) 849 551)

2 074 076) 1 642 802)

35. OPERATING LEASES

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December, for each of the
following periods are:

2003) 2002)
Cí000) Cí000)

Within one year 1 297) 1 031)
Between one and five years  2 583) 2 323)
After five years 1 870) 2 951)

5 750) 6 305)

36. RISK MANAGEMENT
In the ordinary course of business, the Group is exposed to a variety of risks, the most important of which are credit
risk, exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. 

These risks are identified, measured and monitored through various control mechanisms across the Group in order
to prevent undue risk concentrations and to price facilities and products on a risk adjusted basis.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of default by counterparties to transactions.  The management of specific credit risk is devolved to
individual business units.

The Group credit risk management function ensures that appropriate policies are established and monitors compliance
with the related credit sanction monitoring procedures and controls at the business unit level. Credit exposures from
related accounts are aggregated and are monitored on a consolidated basis. 

Portfolio monitoring is carried out on the basis of the asset quality (credit rating), sector of the economy and country of
operations. As in other parts of the Group’s businesses, regular audits are carried out by Group Internal Audit Division.

The Group’s exposure to risk from its lending activities is diversified both geographically and in the various sectors of
the economy (Note 15).

Market risk
Market risk is the risk of adverse movements in the rates of exchange between currencies, interest rates and the prices
of shares and other securities. Market risk is actively managed at an individual business unit level and is monitored
and reviewed at both individual business and Group level by an independent Group risk management function to
ensure compliance with market risk limits. The Group asset/liability committee has a specific strategy and has set
strict open position limits for managing these risks. 
The position of the Group regarding interest rate risk and currency risk is analysed below.
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk - 2003
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2003, according to their repricing or maturity date:

Up to one) Between one) Between three) Between one) Over five) Non-interest)
month) and three) months and) and five) years) bearing) )

months) one year) years) ) Total

Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000

Assets
Cash and balances with  
central banks 497 086) _) _) _) _) 48 516) 545 602

Treasury bills 81 763) 47 739) 131 846) _) _) _) 261 348

Placements with banks 1 244 196) 26 866) 54 247) _) _) _) 1 325 309
Loans and advances to   
customers 3 985 162) 792 306) 331 103) 146 527) 24 794) _) 5 279 892

Debt securities  186 847) 283 157) 29 321) 464 804) 102 359) _) 1 066 488

Equity shares  _) _) _) _) _) 35 083) 35 083
Property, equipment and   
other assets _) _) _) _) _) 359 036) 359 036

Total assets 5 995 054) 1 150 068) 546 517) 611 331) 127 153) 442 635) 8 872 758

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 142 924) 77 753) 42 557) _) _) _) 263 234
Customer deposits 5 129 574) 787 710) 1 018 011) 104 471) _) 350 293) 7 390 059
Debt securities in issue _) 150 975) _) _) _) 288) 151 263
Accruals, deferred 
income and other
liabilities _) _) _) _) _) 204 144) 204 144

5 272 498) 1 016 438) 1 060 568) 104 471) _) 554 725) 8 008 700

Subordinated loan stock 114 958) 225 816) _) _) _) _) 340 774

Total liabilities 5 387 456) 1 242 254) 1 060 568) 104 471) _) 554 725) 8 349 474

Total position 607 598) (92 186) (514 051) 506 860) 127 153) (112 090) 523 284

Nominal value of interest
rate derivative instruments (33 273) 148 378) 175 348) (189 759) (102 087) 1 393) _

Net position 574 325) 56 192) (338 703) 317 101) 25 066) (110 697) 523 284

Interest rate risk results from the Group’s exposure to adverse movements in interest rates. It arises as a result of timing
differences on the repricing of assets and liabilities. The Group closely monitors interest rate movements and the repricing
or maturity structure of its assets and liabilities. In order to monitor interest rate risk, maximum loss limits have been set
for each business unit. The Group risk management unit has the responsibility for monitoring compliance with these limits.   
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk - 2002
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2002, according to their repricing or maturity date:

Up to one) Between one) Between three) Between one) Over five) Non-interest)
month) and three) months and) and five) years) bearing) )

months) one year) years) ) Total

Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000

Assets
Cash and balances with  
central banks 528 458) _) _) _) _) 42 020) 570 478

Treasury bills 116 663) _) 106 110) _) _) _) 222 773

Placements with banks 715 138) 137 494) 71 002) _) _) 57) 923 691
Loans and advances to    
customers 3 712 885) 651 214) 248 692) 118 023) 35 928) _) 4 766 742

Debt securities  182 160) 374 853) 109 293) 274 753) 115 258) _) 1 056 317

Equity shares  _) _) _) _) _) 45 574) 45 574
Property, equipment and
other assets _) _) _) _) _) 364 197) 364 197

Total assets 5 255 304) 1 163 561) 535 097) 392 776) 151 186) 451 848) 7 949 772

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 116 121) 52 976) 36 799) _) _) _) 205 896
Customer deposits 4 441 333) 967 650) 1 068 923) 137 126) 24 485) 196 751) 6 836 268
Debt securities in issue _) _) _) _) _) 288) 288
Accruals, deferred 
income and other
liabilities _) _) _) _) _) 214 764) 214 764

4 557 454) 1 020 626) 1 105 722) 137 126) 24 485) 411 803) 7 257 216

Subordinated loan stock 17 300) 165 320) 3 916) _) _) _) 186 536

Total liabilities  4 574 754) 1 185 946) 1 109 638) 137 126) 24 485) 411 803) 7 443 752

Total position  680 550) (22 385) (574 541) 255 650) 126 701) 40 045) 506 020

Nominal value of interest
rate derivative instruments (133 595) 134 157) 204 002) (86 281) (118 283) _) _

Net position 546 955) 111 772) (370 539) 169 369) 8 418) 40 045) 506 020



BANK OF CYPRUS GROUP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

121

36. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Currency Risk - 2003
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2003 by currency:

)Cyprus) Euro) US Dollars) British) Other)
)pounds) ) ) pounds) currencies) Total

)Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000

Assets
Cash and balances with 
central banks )307 419) 165 419) 49 370) 19 027) 4 367) 545 602

Treasury bills )261 348) _) _) _) _) 261 348

Placements with banks )123 890) 148 717) 806 114) 180 657) 65 931) 1 325 309
Loans and advances to   
customers )2 259 090) 2 301 322) 85 724) 453 092) 180 664) 5 279 892

Debt securities  )211 619) 416 857) 263 493) 174 519) _) 1 066 488

Equity shares  28 725) 4 301) 1 989) 68) _) 35 083
Property, equipment   
and intangible assets )119 724) 48 659) _)) 9 369) 897) 178 649
Other assets  55 993) 23 878) _)) 2 270) _)) 82 141
Prepayments and   
accrued income )34 776) 50 541) 5 132) 6 013) 1 784) 98 246

Total assets )3 402 584) 3 159 694) 1 211 822) 845 015) 253 643) 8 872 758

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks )69 233) 117 335) 65 202) 294) 11 170) 263 234
Customer deposits 2 645 709) 2 346 951) 1 344 636) 853 079) 199 684) 7 390 059
Debt securities in issue 288) 150 975) _) _) _) 151 263
Other liabilities 60 363) 60 087) 1 590) 5 783) 449) 128 272
Accruals and deferred
income )25 911) 38 338) 1 928) 7 924) 1 771) 75 872

)2 801 504) 2 713 686) 1 413 356) 867 080) 213 074) 8 008 700

Subordinated loan stock )64 121) 276 653) _) _) _) 340 774

Equity )523 284) _) _) _) _) 523 284

Total liabilities   
and equity 3 388 909) 2 990 339) 1 413 356) 867 080) 213 074) 8 872 758

Total position )13 675) )169 355) (201 534) (22 065) 40 569)

Nominal value of 
currency derivatives (44 525) (147 062) 205 363) 25 099) (39 521)

Net currency 
position (30 850) 22 293) 3 829) 3 034) 1 048) )

Currency risk results from adverse movements in the rates of exchange between currencies if there is a net currency
position in one or more currencies. The net position in any currency is monitored on a continuous basis so that it lies
within set limits. Currency risk exposure also arises on the net position of the Group’s investments in overseas branches
and subsidiaries. These investments are hedged by maintaining liabilities for the same amount in the same currency as
the investment.
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Currency Risk - 2002
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2002 by currency:

)Cyprus) Euro) US Dollars) British) Other)
)pounds) ) ) pounds) currencies) Total

)Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000

Assets
Cash and balances with 
central banks )414 408) 67 863) 63 111) 20 198) 4 898) 570 478

Treasury bills )222 773) _) _) _) _) 222 773

Placements with banks )83 627) 130 271) 502 965) 150 060) 56 768) 923 691
Loans and advances to  
customers )2 280 021) 1 715 180) 112 171) 442 286) 217 084) 4 766 742

Debt securities  )181 665) 363 295) 337 734) 173 623) _) 1 056 317

Equity shares  33 121) 10 123) 2 270) 60) _) 45 574
Property, equipment    
and intangible assets )106 690) 40 900) _)) 10 028) 1 141) 158 759
Other assets 50 712) 49 231) 172) 7 467) 2 079) 109 661
Prepayments and 
accrued income )30 254) 48 117) 5 886) 10 002) 1 518) 95 777

Total assets )3 403 271) 2 424 980) 1 024 309) 813 724) 283 488) 7 949 772

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks )14 627) 132 724) 34 930) 5 995) 17 620) 205 896
Customer deposits 2 719 781) 1 731 601) 1 336 392) 858 204) 190 290) 6 836 268
Debt securities in issue 288) _) _) _) _) 288
Other liabilities 44 284) 54 911) 11 476) 7 944) 581) 119 196
Accruals and deferred
income )47 130) 34 709) 2 514) 9 955) 1 260) 95 568

)2 826 110) 1 953 945) 1 385 312) 882 098) 209 751) 7 257 216

Subordinated loan stock )28 916) 157 620) _) _) _) 186 536

Equity )506 020) _) _) _) _) 506 020

Total liabilities   
and equity   3 361 046) 2 111 565) 1 385 312) 882 098) 209 751) 7 949 772

Total position )42 225) )313 415) (361 003) (68 374) 73 737)

Nominal value of   
currency derivatives (66 521) (298 611) 363 906) 75 391) (73 773)

Net currency 
position (24 296) 14 804) 2 903) 7 017) (36) )
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity Risk - 2003
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2003 according to their maturity:

)On demand) Between one) Between three) Between one) Over five)
)and up to) and three) months and) and five) years) )

)one month) months) one year) years) ) )Total

)Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000

Assets
Cash and balances with  
central banks )300 514) _) _) _) 245 088) 545 602
Treasury bills )42 892) )47 739) 131 846) 38 871) _) 261 348
Placements with banks )1 238 955) 28 171) 58 183) _) _) 1 325 309
Loans and advances   
to customers )1 410 176) 271 534) 754 168) 1 536 827) 1 307 187) 5 279 892

Debt securities  )5 543) 16 033) 63 792) 875 655) 105 465) 1 066 488

Equity shares  4 658) _) _) 4 037) 26 388) 35 083
Property, equipment    
and intangible assets )_) _) _) _) 178 649) 178 649
Other assets  16 783) 7 026) 13 860) 3 359) 41 113) 82 141
Prepayments and 
accured income )28 854) 18 389) 35 633) 11 565) 3 805) 98 246

Total assets )3 048 375) 388 892) 1 057 482) 2 470 314) 1 907 695) 8 872 758

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks )142 924) 77 753) 42 557) _) _) 263 234
Customer deposits 3 989 040) 1 771 655) 1 019 835) 592 695) 16 834) 7 390 059
Debt securities in issue _) _) _) 150 975) 288) 151 263
Other liabilities 66 310) 17 015) 16 124) 9 701) 19 122) 128 272
Accruals and deferred 
income )22 592) 19 896) 20 425) 10 893) 2 066) 75 872

)4 220 866) 1 886 319) 1 098 941) 764 264) 38 310) 8 008 700

Subordinated loan stock )_) _) _) _) 340 774) 340 774

Total liabilities )4 220 866) 1 886 319) 1 098 941) 764 264) 379 084) 8 349 474

Net position  (1 172 491) (1 497 427) (41 459) 1 706 050) 1 528 611) 523 284

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet payment obligations and potential payment obligations as
and when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.
The Group’s banking businesses require a stable flow of funds both to replace existing deposits as they mature and
to satisfy demands of customers for additional borrowing. Undrawn borrowing facility commitments and the level of
outstanding contingent obligations are taken into consideration in monitoring the Group’s liquidity position.
A substantial portion of Group assets is funded by core deposits. The distribution of sources and the maturity of
deposits is managed actively in order to avoid a concentration of funding needs at any one time or from a small
number of depositors. To manage this risk, the Group maintains at all times a diversified stock of highly liquid assets
in the principal currencies.
The responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with asset and liability management committees at each
location, subject to overall control by Group treasury. 
The liquidity risk tables have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards which
provide that assets and liabilities are analysed in the time bands above, according to the remaining period to maturity
from the balance sheet date. Regulatory authorities set liquidity ratios for the open liquidity position up to one month
in accordance with their own criteria. 
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity Risk – 2002
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2002 according to their maturity: 

)On demand) Between one) Between three) Between one) Over five)
)and up to) and three) months and) and five) years) )

)one month) months) one year) years) ) )Total

)Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000) Cí000

Assets
Cash and balances with  
central banks )316 358) _) _) _) 254 120) 570 478
Treasury bills )38 896) _) 106 110) 77 767) _) 222 773
Placements with banks )712 057) 137 494) 74 140) _) _) 923 691
Loans and advances   
to customers )1 424 156) 282 447) 812 511) 1 597 848) 649 780) 4 766 742

Debt securities  )113 834) 14 860) 90 050) 540 505) 297 068) 1 056 317

Equity shares  4 232) _) _) 15 867) 25 475) 45 574
Property, equipment  
and intangible assets )_) _) _) _) 158 759) 158 759
Other assets  24 125) 11 340) 18 674) 17 747) 37 775) 109 661
Prepayments and   
accured income )23 881) 24 251) 33 192) 9 350) 5 103) 95 777

Total assets )2 657 539) 470 392) 1 134 677) 2 259 084) 1 428 080) 7 949 772

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks )109 246) 56 687) 39 963) _) _) 205 896
Customer deposits 2 739 192) 1 463 864) 2 071 651) 537 079) 24 482) 6 836 268
Debt securities in issue _) _) _) _) 288) 288
Other liabilties 43 025) 17 876) 13 691) 5 328) 39 276) 119 196
Accruals and deferred
income )24 853) 22 568) 31 001) 14 341) 2 805) 95 568

)2 916 316) 1 560 995) 2 156 306) 556 748) 66 851) 7 257 216

Subordinated loan stock )_) _) 3 916) _) 182 620) 186 536

Total liabilities )2 916 316) 1 560 995) 2 160 222) 556 748) 249 471) 7 443 752

Net position  (258 777) (1 090 603) (1 025 545) 1 702 336) 1 178 609) 506 020
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37. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is generally the amount which an asset could be exchanged for, or a liability settled at an arm’s length
transaction. 

The majority of assets and liabilities are carried at fair value.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers is approximately equal to their book value, net of the related
provisions for bad and doubtful debts. 

Management is of the opinion that the fair value of other financial instruments is approximately equal to their
carrying values.

38. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The beneficial interest in shares of the Company of the Directors, their spouses and minor children and of companies
in which they hold, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting shares, at 31 December 2003 and 24 February 2004
is stated below:

31 December 2003 and 
24 February 2004

%

S. A. Triantafyllides 0,057
Chr. S. Pantzaris 0,100
A. Agathocleous 0,010
D. P. Ioannou 0,374
V. G. Rologis 0,002
C. Z. Severis 0,434
Th. Aristodemou 0,019
D. Z. Pierides 0,001
E. Xenophontos 0,006
Chr. G. Christofides 0,059
A. Pittas 0,037
P. G. Polyviou 0,052
G. A. David -
A. Artemis 0,366
A. Diogenous 0,192
G. M. Georgiades 0,048
∞. Jacovides 0,026
Chr. Mouskis 0,028

1,811

39. SHAREHOLDERS WHICH HOLD MORE THAN 5% OF THE SHARE CAPITAL 

OF THE COMPANY

There are no shareholders holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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40. TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS 

Number of Total
Directors Cí000

Loans and other advances to Directors and connected persons:

More than 1% of the net assets of the Company, per director 6 74 589
Less than 1% of the net assets of the Company, per director 12 7 767

18 82 356

In addition to the above-mentioned loans and other advances, there were contingent liabilities for account of
Directors, in the form of documentary credits, guarantees and commitments to lend, of Cí24 986 thousand. Out
of these Cí24 462 thousand relate to directors and their connected persons, whose total credit facilities exceed an
amount equivalent to 1% of the net assets of the Company per Director.

Connected persons include spouses, minor children and companies in which a director holds, directly or indirectly, at
least 20% of the voting shares. 

All the transactions with the Directors and/or with their connected persons are at arm’s length.

41. GROUP COMPANIES

The Group companies and their activities are:

Cyprus
Bank of Cyprus Ltd Commercial bank
Mortgage Bank of Cyprus Ltd Real estate and industrial development bank
Bank of Cyprus Finance Corporation Ltd Hire purchase and leasing business
Bank of Cyprus (Factors) Ltd Factoring services
JCC Payment Systems Ltd Processing of credit card transactions
The Cyprus Investment and Securities Corporation Ltd (CISCO) Investments and securities house
General Insurance of Cyprus Ltd General insurance business
EuroLife Ltd Life assurance business
Kermia Ltd Property trading and development
Kermia Properties & Investments Ltd Property development
Kermia Hotels Ltd Hotel business
BOC Ventures Ltd Management of venture capital investments
Tefkros Investments Ltd Investments in private companies
Bank of Cyprus Mutual Funds Ltd Sale of investment products
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41. GROUP COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

Greece
Bank of Cyprus Ltd (branch) Commercial bank
Kyprou Leasing SA Leasing business
Kyprou Commercial SA Financing of motor vehicles and other 

consumer products
Kyprou Securities SA Brokerage company
Kyprou Mutual Fund Management Company (Kyprou AEDAK) Sale of investment products
Kyprou Properties SA Property trading
Kyprou Insurance Services Ltd General insurance brokers
Kyprou Zois (branch) Life assurance business
Kyprou Asfalistiki (branch) General insurance business

United Kingdom
Bank of Cyprus (London) Ltd Commercial bank
Bank of Cyprus Ltd (branch) Commercial bank

United Kingdom Channel Islands  
Bank of Cyprus (Channel Islands) Ltd Commercial bank
Tefkros Investments (CI) Ltd Investments in private companies

Australia
Bank of Cyprus Australia Pty Ltd Commercial bank

Ireland
BOC International Fund Management Ltd Management of mutual funds

All the above mentioned companies are wholly owned subsidiaries, except for JCC Payment Systems Ltd in which the
Group holds 45% of the issued share capital of Cí1 million. The company is accounted for as an interest in a jointly
controlled entity.

The Group’s share in key financial statement items of the jointly controlled entity is as follows:
2003 2002

Cí000 Cí000

Turnover 4 635 4 524
Profit before tax 2 002 1 931
Net assets 6 562 4 949
Total assets 7 690 5 991

42. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Issue of Capital Securities Series B
On 11 February 2004, the Company has published a Prospectus and has proceeded with an Initial Public Offering in
Cyprus for the issue and listing on the Cyprus Stock Exchange of up to 200 000 Capital Securities Series B of nominal
value Cí100 each (with the right to extend the issue according to market conditions) and having a floating interest rate
equal to the base rate of the Company at the beginning of each interest period plus 1,00%. The Capital Securities will
be offered to the public from 18 February upto 17 March 2004.

The Capital Securities Series B have no maturity date and may be redeemed in whole at the option of the Company,
subject to the prior consent of the Central Bank of Cyprus, at their principal amount together with any outstanding
interest payments on 20 May 2009, or on any interest payment date thereafter. 
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Report on the financial statements
1  We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank of Cyprus Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (the

Group) on pages 79 to 127, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2003 and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and the related notes. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to the
Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 156 of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

2 We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Board of Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. 

3 In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as
of 31 December 2003 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

Report on other legal requirements
4 Pursuant to the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, we report the following:

ñ We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit.
ñ In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company.
ñ The Company’s financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.
ñ In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated

financial statements give the information required by the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, in the manner so required.
ñ In our opinion, the information given in the report of the Board of Directors on page 78 is consistent with the

financial statements.

Ernst & Young

Nicosia, Cyprus
25 February 2004
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99         00               01               02 03Year

391,7          571,4        541,1       506,0 523,3

33,6 29,5 187,2 186,5 340,8

425,3 600,9 728,3 692,5 864,1

Cí million

Shareholder Category Number Shares Held %

Private individuals 63 470 264 941 745 57,00

Public or private companies 1 383 84 370 495 18,15

Insurance companies, provident funds and trusts 384 79 128 315 17,03

Staff 3 799 15 713 704 3,38

Church 49 12 593 526 2,71

Schools, clubs, public institutions, etc. 65 8 022 810 1,73

69 150 464 770 595 100,00

Shareholder Analysis, 31 December 2003

On 31 December 2003, 401 562 091 Bank of Cyprus shares (86,4% of the total share capital) were registered in the

Central Registry and Central Depository of the Cyprus Stock Exchange (CSE) and 63 208 504 shares (13,6% of the total

share capital) were registered in the Dematerialised Securities System (DSS) of the Athens Central Depository (ACD).

All the above shares are listed on both the CSE and the Athens Exchange (ATHEX).  

Since July 2003, the Share and Bond Registries of Bank of Cyprus form part of the Central Registry and Central

Depository of the CSE, in accordance with the provisions of the relevant Laws and Regulations. The Bank of Cyprus

shares registered in the DSS of the ACD will continue to be governed by the applicable operating and brokerage

transaction clearing rules of the DSS.

In February 2003, Bank of Cyprus issued Cí65 million Series A Capital Securities to a limited number of

investors in Cyprus, through its Capital Securities Programme. The Series A Capital Securities are listed and

traded on the CSE.

In October 2003, Bank of Cyprus issued ú200 million Subordinated Bonds under the Bank’s Euro Medium

Term Note (EMTN) Programme. The Bonds are step-up floating rate notes denominated in Euro and mature in

October 2013 but the Bank has the option to call them in total or in part during or after October 2008. 

During October and November 2003, 25 855 668 Bank of Cyprus Centenary Warrants 1999/2003 (Warrants)

were exercised, representing 76,8% of the total Warrants issued. The proceeds resulting from the exercise of the

Warrants have increased the Bank’s capital base by Cí32,3 million.

On 31 October 2003, Bank of Cyprus repaid in full at their nominal value plus accrued interest, the total

outstanding balance of its 6,75% Convertible Loan Stock 2003, in accordance to its terms of issue.

On 19 December 2003, Bank of Cyprus called the total balance of the Cí25 million Subordinated Floating Rate

Loan Stock 2003/2008. 
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MILESTONES IN THE GROUP HISTORY

1899
Establishment and operation of 'Nicosia Savings Bank',

which was recognised as a limited company in 1912 and

was renamed to 'Bank of Cyprus'.

1930
Registration of Bank of Cyprus as a limited liability

company (Bank of Cyprus Ltd).

1943
Merger of Bank of Cyprus with the banking

institutions of other towns and expansion across

Cyprus.

Adoption of the ancient Cypriot coin bearing the

inscription '∫ÔÈÓfiÓ ∫˘Ú›ˆÓ' (Common to all Cypriots) as

its emblem.

1944-1964
Establishment of Mortgage Bank of Cyprus (1944),

General Insurance of Cyprus (1951), Bank of Cyprus

(London) (1955) and Bank of Cyprus Finance

Corporation (1964).

1973
Group restructuring and establishment of Bank of

Cyprus (Holdings), which took over the shares of Bank

of Cyprus and all its subsidiary companies. 

1980-1990
Acquisition of the operations of the Chartered Bank in

Cyprus and establishment of the Cyprus Investment and

Securities Corporation (CISCO) (1982). 

Acquisition of Kermia (1983), establishment of the

Bank of Cyprus Cultural Foundation (1984) and of

EuroLife (1989).

1991
Commencement of operation of the first Bank of

Cyprus branch in Greece.

1992
Establishment of Bank of Cyprus Factors.

1994
Establishment of ABC Factors, the first factoring

company in Greece, in collaboration with and equal

participation of Alpha Bank.

Acquisition of Karmazi Properties & Investments, which

was renamed Kermia Properties & Investments.

1995
Establishment of a Representative Office in South Africa.

Operation of the BOC Global Equity Fund, the first

international mutual fund established by a Cypriot bank.

Inauguration of the Museum of the History of Cypriot

Coinage.

1996
Establishment of Bank of Cyprus (Channel Islands) and

operation of a Representative Office in Canada.

Completion of the first international bond issue by a

Cypriot institution.

1997
Establishment of Kyprou Leasing in Greece.

1998
Establishment of Representative Offices in Moscow

and New York and of the Mutual Fund Management

Company, Kyprou AEDAK, in Greece.

Operation of the Bank of Cyprus Oncology Centre.

Listing of the Bank’s shares on the London Stock

Exchange in the form of Global Depositary

Receipts (GDRs).

1999
Restructuring of the Group and replacement of Bank of

Cyprus (Holdings) shares with Bank of Cyprus shares.

Establishment of a Representative Office in Bucharest.

2000
Listing of the Group’s shares on the Athens Exchange

(ATHEX) and issue of 39 million shares to the Greek

investing public.

Establishment of Bank of Cyprus Australia and

operation of its first branches. 

Establishment of Bank of Cyprus Mutual Funds and

BOC Ventures.

Introduction of electronic banking for the servicing of

customers through alternative delivery channels (internet,

telephone, WAP).

2001
Establishment of Kyprou Asfalistiki, a branch of General

Insurance of Cyprus in Greece and Kyprou Zois, a branch

of EuroLife in Greece.

Acquisition of Victory Securities, which was renamed

Kyprou Securities.

Successful issue of ú275 million Subordinated Bonds.

Sale of 50% shareholding in ABC Factors to Alpha Bank.

2002
Provision of factoring services in Greece through a unit

of the Bank.

2003
Successful issue of Cí65 million Series A Capital

Securities in Cyprus.

Establishment of a ú750 million Euro Medium Term

Note (EMTN) Programme.

Issue of ú200 million Subordinated Bonds in

October 2003.

Issue of ú258 million Senior Debt in December 2003.
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Banking Services

Bank of Cyprus Ltd (Cyprus-Greece-United Kingdom)

Mortgage Bank of Cyprus Ltd (Cyprus)

Bank of Cyprus (London) Ltd (United Kingdom)

Bank of Cyprus Australia Pty Ltd (Australia)

Bank of Cyprus (Channel Islands) Ltd (Guernsey)

Hire Purchase and Leasing Services

Bank of Cyprus Finance Corporation Ltd (Cyprus)

Kyprou Leasing SA (Greece)

Kyprou Commercial SA (Greece)

Factoring Services

Bank of Cyprus Factors Ltd (Cyprus)

Investment Banking and Related Services

The Cyprus Investment and Securities Corporation Ltd (CISCO) (Cyprus)

Kyprou Securities SA (Greece)

BOC Ventures Ltd (Cyprus)

Asset Management

Bank of Cyprus Mutual Funds Ltd (Cyprus)

Kyprou Mutual Fund Management Company (AEDAK) (Greece)

BOC International Fund Management Ltd (Ireland)

Insurance Services

General Insurance of Cyprus Ltd (Cyprus-Greece)

EuroLife Ltd (Cyprus-Greece)

Kyprou Insurance Services Ltd (Greece)

Property and Hotel Services

Kermia Ltd (Cyprus)

Kermia Hotels Ltd (Cyprus)

Kermia Properties and Investment Ltd (Cyprus)

Kyprou Properties SA (Greece)

Credit Card Processing

JCC Payment Systems Ltd (45% participation) (Cyprus)

BANK OF CYPRUS LTD 
Group Holding Company 
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Bank of Cyprus 
Bank of Cyprus (the Bank) is the Group holding

company. It offers a wide range of financial products

and services to the retail and corporate sectors and

to public institutions. The Bank holds a leading

position in Cyprus, where it operates through 178

branches. Bank of Cyprus has a significant presence

abroad. In 1991 the Bank commenced its rapid

expansion in Greece and has steadily expanded

across the country, where it now offers a full range

of financial services through its 82 branches. The

Bank operates representative offices in the USA,

Canada, South Africa, Russia and Romania. In 1997,

the Bank established a branch in London, which

operates in parallel to Bank of Cyprus (London).

Mortgage Bank of Cyprus
Specialises in the granting of medium and long

term loans for the development of the tourist and

manufacturing industries in Cyprus.

Bank of Cyprus (London) 
A fully licensed commercial bank operating in the

United Kingdom, based in London. It serves primarily

the Cypriot and Greek expatriate community of the

United Kingdom. The Bank offers its banking products

and services through six branches (five in London,

one in Birmingham) and a representative office in

Manchester. The Group intends to transfer the

operations of Bank of Cyprus (London) to the Bank

of Cyprus branch in the United Kingdom.

Bank of Cyprus Australia
Established in 2000 as a wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group for the provision of banking services in

Australia. It is the first bank established in Australia

by a Cypriot or Greek banking institution. It operates

through eight branches, three in Melbourne, three

in Sydney, one in Adelaide and one in Canberra. It

also operates a representative office in Brisbane. The

Bank offers a continuously increasing range of

banking products and services in order to serve the

Cypriot and Greek community of Australia.

Bank of Cyprus (Channel Islands)
Established in 1996 in Guernsey, Channel Islands,

one of the world’s most reputable financial centres,

as a licensed offshore bank regulated by the

Guernsey Financial Services Commission. It offers

specialised deposit and lending products as well as a

wide range of investment products.

Bank of Cyprus Finance Corporation
The largest finance corporation in Cyprus. It provides

hire purchase and leasing products to finance

purchases of vehicles, machinery, electronic and

other equipment. 

Kyprou Leasing 
Kyprou Leasing is a subsidiary of the Bank operating

in Greece. It offers a full range of leasing products,

such as property leasing, leasing of equipment, motor

cars and commercial vehicles.

Kyprou Commercial
Kyprou Commercial was established in 1999 for the

provision of consumer loans in Greece. The

anticipated enactment of legislation for the

liberalisation of consumer credit will enable the

transfer of the largest part of the Company’s

activities to the Bank in Greece. 

Bank of Cyprus Factors
It operates in Cyprus, providing factoring, invoice

and cheque discounting services for domestic and

international transactions. In addition to the

provision of working capital finance, the Company

offers specialised sales ledger administration and

debt collection services, non-recourse factoring, as

well as advisory services covering credit policy and

working capital management.
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The Cyprus Investment and Securities 
Corporation (CISCO)
The Company offers a wide range of specialised

finance and investment services in Cyprus. It

provides brokerage, fund management and capital

market services. The Company is a member of the

Cyprus Stock Exchange. In 2003, the Company

obtained a financial service provider licence from

the Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Kyprou Securities 
The Company operates in Greece. It offers brokerage

services for transactions on the Athens Exchange

and the Derivatives Market of the Athens Exchange,

fund management services, custody, margin

accounts, etc.

BOC Ventures 
BOC Ventures was established in Cyprus. It provides

venture capital finance and advisory services for

mergers, acquisitions and corporate restructuring

projects. The Company operates through two

investment Companies, Tefkros Investments Ltd and

Tefkros Investments (CI) Ltd, both of which are

subsidiaries of the Bank, registered in Cyprus and

the Channel Islands, respectively.

Bank of Cyprus Mutual Funds
The Company was established for the management

of mutual funds in Cyprus and their distribution to

institutional investors and the wider investing public.

Kyprou Mutual Fund Management 
Company (AEDAK)
Kyprou Mutual Fund Management Company

(AEDAK) was established for the management and

distribution of Greek mutual funds to institutional

investors and the wider investing public.

BOC International Fund Management 
Based in Ireland, the Company offers the BOC

International Fund, an umbrella fund, under which a

series of investment funds are operated. These funds

are used in the management of investment portfolios

offered by the Group’s Private Banking Units.

General Insurance of Cyprus
It specialises in the provision of general insurance

services in Cyprus and provides a wide range of

insurance products, which fully cover the personal

and commercial insurance needs of customers. In

2001, the Company established a branch in Greece

which operates under the name Kyprou Asfalistiki,

offering general insurance products.

EuroLife
The Company specialises in life insurance, offering a

wide range of modern and flexible insurance

products in Cyprus. In 2001, the Company

established a branch in Greece which operates

under the name Kyprou Zois, offering bancassurance

products through the Bank’s branch network in Greece.

Kermia and Kermia 
Properties & Investments
These Companies specialise in property

development and trading and in real estate

management in Cyprus. Kermia has constructed and

operates the Kermia Beach Bungalow Hotel in Ayia

Napa, Cyprus, a resort unique in its kind. 
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MORTGAGE BANK OF CYPRUS
Board of Directors
S. A. Triantafyllides, Chairman
Chr. S. Pantzaris, Vice-Chairman
A. Agathocleous
D. P. Ioannou
V. G. Rologis
C. Z. Severis
Th. Aristodemou
D. Z. Pierides
E. Xenophontos
Chr. G. Christofides
P. G. Polyviou
A. Artemis

BANK OF CYPRUS (LONDON)
Board of Directors
Chr. S. Pantzaris, Chairman
S. A. Triantafyllides
G. Chr. Christofides
G. S. Papadopoulos
T. N. Clarke
E. Xenophontos
F. E. Jones
P. D. Willison
S. J. Neophytou

General Manager  S. J. Neophytou

BANK OF CYPRUS AUSTRALIA
Board of Directors
S. A. Triantafyllides, Chairman
Chr. S. Pantzaris
E. Xenophontos
Ch. G. Stavrakis
M. Johnstone
N. Politis
S. Angelodemou
W. S. van der Mye
Chr. Ioannides

General Manager Chr. Ioannides

BANK OF CYPRUS
(CHANNEL ISLANDS)
Board of Directors
E. Xenophontos, Chairman
Ch. G. Stavrakis
A. Eliades
S. J. Neophytou
J. Robinson
Iv. Bisson

General Manager A. J. H. Dempster

BANK OF CYPRUS FINANCE
CORPORATION
Board of Directors
Chr. S. Pantzaris, Chairman
C. Z. Severis, Vice-Chairman
A. Agathocleous
E. Xenophontos
Chr. Mouskis

Manager N. Sparsis

KYPROU LEASING
Board of Directors
S. A. Triantafyllides, Chairman
E. Xenophontos
G. Charalambous
A. Eliades

General Manager M. Der-Krikorian 

BANK OF CYPRUS FACTORS
Board of Directors
Chr. S. Pantzaris, Chairman
A. Artemis, Vice-Chairman
E. Xenophontos
J. Shacallis
G. Charalambous
P. G. Polyviou
V. Shiarly
Ch. C. Charalambides

Manager N. Neokleous

THE CYPRUS INVESTMENT AND
SECURITIES CORPORATION (CISCO)
Board of Directors
S. A. Triantafyllides, Chairman
Chr. S. Pantzaris
E. Xenophontos
P. G. Polyviou
V. G. Rologis
A. Diogenous
C. Z. Severis
G. Charalambous
P. Antoniades
Y. Kypri

General Manager L. Pochanis

KYPROU SECURITIES
Board of Directors
K. Vasilakopoulos, Chairman
D. Damkalides, Vice-Chairman
J. Seiradakis
C. Alikakos
H. Nicolaides
N. Nicolaides
Gr. Karayiannopoulos

General Manager
Gr. Karayiannopoulos

BOC VENTURES
Board of Directors
S. A. Triantafyllides, Chairman
Chr. S. Pantzaris
E. Xenophontos
G. Charalambous
A. Jacouris
Y. Kypri
V. Shiarly
Ch. C. Charalambides
Ch. G. Stavrakis
St. Christodoulou

BANK OF CYPRUS MUTUAL FUNDS
Board of Directors
E. Xenophontos, Chairman
A. Jacouris
Y. Kypri
V. Shiarly
Ch. G. Stavrakis
St. Christodoulou

General Manager L. Pochanis

KYPROU MUTUAL FUND
MANAGEMENT COMPANY (AEDAK)
Board of Directors
E. Xenophontos, Chairman
A. Eliades
Chr. Ioannides
Ch. G. Stavrakis
M. Leventis-Clerides

General Manager G. Talaros

GENERAL INSURANCE OF CYPRUS
Board of Directors
V. G. Rologis, Chairman
E. Xenophontos
Chr. G. Christofides
P. Charalambous
D. P. Ioannou
P. G. Polyviou
M. Pissarides

General Manager A. Stylianou

EUROLIFE
Board of Directors
E. Xenophontos, Chairman
G. Charalambous
A. Jacouris
Y. Kypri

General Manager A. Kritiotis

KERMIA
Board of Directors
Chr. S. Pantzaris, Chairman
E. Xenophontos
A. Agathocleous
A. Artemis
A. Theocharides
Ch. Hadjipanayiotou
P. Antoniades

General Manager St. Stavrinides

BANK OF CYPRUS GREECE
Advisory Committee
V. G. Rologis
G. A. David
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GROUP HEADQUARTERS

Nicosia

51 Stassinos Street, Ayia Paraskevi

P.O. Box 21472, CY-1599 Nicosia

Telephone: 22842100, Fax: 22378111

www.bankofcyprus.com

info@cy.bankofcyprus.com

BANK OF CYPRUS AND

MORTAGE BANK OF CYPRUS

Nicosia Main Branch

86-88-90 Faneromenis Street

P.O. Box 21472, CY-1599 Nicosia

Telephone: 22848100, Fax: 22663633

Limassol Main Branch

1 Saripolos Street

P.O. Box 50215, CY-3699 Limassol

Telephone: 25845000, Fax: 25378249

Larnaca Main Branch

25 King Paul I Square

P.O. Box 40093, CY-6300 Larnaca

Telephone: 24844100, Fax: 24659181

Paphos Main Branch

E. Pallikarides Avenue & 

A. Tselepos Street,

P.O. Box 60034, CY-8123 Paphos

Telephone: 26846200, Fax: 26943603

Paralimni Main Branch 

160 1st April Street

P.O. Box 33091, CY-5310 Paralimni

Telephone: 23843100, Fax: 23825103

BANK OF CYPRUS FINANCE

CORPORATION

Nicosia Head Office & Main Branch

2 Evrou Street, Strovolos

P.O. Box 22010, CY-1516 Nicosia

Telephone: 22474500, Fax: 22340458

info@finance.bankofcyprus.com

nicosia@finance.bankofcyprus.com

Limassol

117 Arch. Makarios III Avenue

P.O. Box 51868, CY-3509 Limassol

Telephone: 25855800, Fax: 25387453

limassol@finance.bankofcyprus.com

Larnaca

81-83 Gen. Timayia Avenue

P.O. Box 40093, CY-6300 Larnaca

Telephone: 24844500, Fax: 24632685

larnaca@finance.bankofcyprus.com

Paphos

43 Eleftherios Venizelos Avenue

P.O. Box 60034, CY-8123 Paphos

Telephone: 26935451, Fax: 26942461

paphos@finance.bankofcyprus.com

Paralimni

160 Ist April Street

P.O. Box 33472, CY-5314 Paralimni

Telephone: 23823444, Fax: 23826346

paralimni@finance.bankofcyprus.com

BANK OF CYPRUS FACTORS

Nicosia

47 Strovolos Avenue

P.O. Box 26555, CY-1640 Nicosia

Telephone: 22847000, Fax: 22511712

info@factors.bankofcyprus.com

THE CYPRUS INVESTMENT AND

SECURITIES CORPORATION (CISCO)

Nicosia

Eurolife House, 4 Evrou Street, Strovolos

P.O. Box 20597, CY-1660 Nicosia

Telephone: 22881700, Fax: 22338488

www.cisco-online.com.cy

info@cisco.bankofcyprus.com

Limassol

31 Thessallonikis Street, Flat 2

P.O. Box 51059, CY-3509 Limassol

Telephone: 25818420, Fax: 25353285

BOC VENTURES

Nicosia

127 Ayiou Procopiou & Posidonos Street

P.O. Box 21472, CY-1599 Nicosia

Telephone: 22791300, Fax: 22777440

bocv@bocv.bankofcyprus.com

BANK OF CYPRUS MUTUAL FUNDS

Nicosia

EuroLife House, 4 Evrou Street

Strovolos, CY-2003 Nicosia

Telephone: 22881884, Fax: 22340015

info@bocmutualfunds.bankofcyprus.com

GENERAL INSURANCE OF CYPRUS

Nicosia Head Office

2-4 Themistoclis Dervis Street

P.O. Box 21668, CY-1511 Nicosia

Telephone: 22848700, Fax: 22676682

www.gic.com.cy

general@gic.bankofcyprus.com

Nicosia

1 Armenias Street

P.O. Box 28933, CY-2084 Nicosia

Telephone: 22473700, Fax: 22332494

lefkosia@gic.bankofcyprus.com

Limassol

240 Arch. Makarios III Avenue

P.O. Box 54026, CY-3720 Limassol

Telephone: 25371163, Fax: 25350418

limassol@gic.bankofcyprus.com

Larnaca

3 Grivas Dhigenis Avenue 

Patsalos Building

P.O. Box 40689, CY-6306 Larnaca

Telephone: 24654258, Fax: 24654004

larnaca@gic.bankofcyprus.com

Paphos

43 Eleftherios Venizelos Avenue

P.O. Box 60034, CY-8123 Paphos

Telephone: 26932517, Fax: 26944041

paphos@gic.bankofcyprus.com

Paralimni

124 1st April Street

P.O. Box 33091, CY-5310 Paralimni

Telephone: 23826345, Fax: 23828345

famagusta@gic.bankofcyprus.com

EUROLIFE

Nicosia Head Office

EuroLife House

4 Evrou Street, Strovolos

P.O. Box 21655, CY-1511 Nicosia

Telephone: 22474000, Fax: 22341090

www.eurolife.com.cy

info@eurolife.bankofcyprus.com

KERMIA

Nicosia

4 Diagoras Street, Kermia Building

P.O. Box 24510, CY-1300 Nicosia

Telephone: 22663692, Fax: 22660938

info@kermia.bankofcyprus.com

Ayia Napa

74 Cavo Greco Avenue

Kermia Beach Bungalow Hotel

P.O. Box 30110, CY-5340 Ayia Napa

Telephone: 23721401, Fax: 23721429

kerbeach@cytanet.com.cy

KERMIA PROPERTIES & INVESTMENTS

Limassol

67 Spyros Araouzos Street

P.O. Box 50212,CY-3602 Limassol

Telephone: 25343658, Fax: 25343716

info@properties.bankofcyprus.com
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BANK OF CYPRUS GREECE

Athens Head Office

170 Alexandras Avenue, 115 21 Athens 

Telephone: +30 210 64 18 000

Fax: +30 210 64 77 809

genmgmt@bankofcyprus.gr

Attica Region 

170 Alexandras Avenue, 115 21 Athens

Telephone: +30 210 64 18 000

Fax: +30 210 64 18 049

North Greece Region 

9 Nikis Avenue, 546 24 Thessaloniki 

Telephone: +30 2310 363 000

Fax: +30 2310 363 010

Central Greece Region 

146 Elefth. Venizelos Street & Alkazar

Bridge Square, 412 22 Larisa

Telephone: +30 2410 562 000

Fax: +30 2410 562 009

Crete Region 

40 Eleftherias Square & Averof Street 

712 01 Heraklion 

Telephone: +30 2810 308 300

Fax: +30 2810 308 310 

Peloponnisos & Western 

Greece Region 

224 Korinthou Street, 262 21 Patra

Telephone: +30 2610 271 020

Fax: +30 2610 271 889

KYPROU LEASING

Athens

170 Alexandras Avenue, 115 21 Athens 

Telephone: +30 210 64 77 030

Fax: +30 210 64 77 029

leasing@bankofcyprus.gr

KYPROU MUTUAL FUND

MANAGEMENT COMPANY (AEDAK)

Athens

170 Alexandras Avenue, 115 21 Athens 

Telephone: +30 210 64 77 301

Fax: +30 210 64 77 309

jtalaros@bankofcyprus.gr

KYPROU SECURITIES

Athens

170 Alexandras Avenue, 115 21 Athens

Telephone: +30 210 87 01 000

Fax: +30 210 87 01 049

infosec@kyprousecurities.gr

KYPROU ASFALISTIKI

Athens General Insurance

of Cyprus Branch 

73 Mesogeion Avenue, 115 26 Athens

Telephone: +30 210 64 77 384-6

Fax: +30 210 64 77 389

insurance@bankofcyprus.gr

KYPROU ZOIS

Athens EuroLife Branch

73 Mesogeion Avenue, 115 26 Athens

Telephone: +30 210 64 77 180-6

Fax: +30 210 64 77 189

kyprouzois@bankofcyprus.gr

BANK OF CYPRUS (LONDON)

London Head Office

27-31 Charlotte Street, London W1T 1RP

Telephone: +20 7304 5830

Fax: +20 7436 4188

www.bankofcyprus.co.uk

Birmingham West Midlands & 

North England Branch 

36-38 Bristol Street, Horsefair

Birmingham B5 7AA

Telephone: +121 622 7004

Fax: +121 622 3687

Manchester Representative Office

8-10 John Dalton Street

Manchester M2 6JP

Telephone: +161 837 6400

Fax: +161 839 8463

BANK OF CYPRUS AUSTRALIA

Melbourne Head Office

Level 21, 459 Collins Street

Melbourne, Vic 3000

Telephone: +3 8627 2727

Fax: +3 8627 2777

www.bankofcyprus.com.au

Sydney Regional Office

Level 3, 17 Castlereagh Street

Sydney, NSW 2000

Telephone: +2 8226 5888

Fax: +2 8226 5858

Adelaide Torrensville Branch

148 Henley Beach Road

Torrensville, SA 5031

Telephone: +8 8152 8200

Fax: +8 8152 8282

Canberra Branch

The Hellenic Club, 1 Maltida Street

Woden Act 2606

Telephone: +2 6211 2222

Fax: +2 6211 2299

BANK OF CYPRUS (CHANNEL ISLANDS)

Guernsey 

Somers House, Rue du Pre

P.O. Box 558, St. Peter Port, Guernsey

Channel Islands GY1 6JF

Telephone: +1481 716 026

Fax: +1481 716 120

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

SOUTH AFRICA 

Johannesburg

13th floor, Sandton City Office Towers

c/o Rivonia and 5th Streets

Sandton, South Africa

Telephone: +2711 784 3941

Fax: +2711 784 3942

pdaniel@bankofcyprus.co.za

Postal Address:

P.O. Box 652176, Benmore Gardens,

2010 Johannesburg, South Africa

CANADA 

Toronto

658 Danforth Avenue, Suite 302

Toronto, Ontario, Canada M4J 5B9

Telephone: +1 416 461 5570

Fax: +1 416 461 6062

info@bankofcyprus.ca

U.S.A. 

New York

80 Broad Street, 27th floor

New York, NY 10004, U.S.A.

Telephone: +1 212 759 7280

Fax: +1 212 759 7327

RUSSIA

Moscow

Olympic Plaza, Prospect Mira 33

Building 1, 6th floor

129110 Moscow, Russia

Telephone: +7095 797 5808

Fax: +7095 797 5810

b@bankofcyprus.stelcom.ru

ROMANIA 

Bucharest

7 Pache Protopopescu Blvd

Sector 2, Bucharest, Romania

Telephone: +4021 313 4743

Fax: +4021 313 4741

bucharest@bankofcyprus.ro



Bank of Cyprus Cultural Foundation

The Bank of Cyprus Cultural Foundation was founded in 1984, as a result of the growing interest of the Bank to
contribute towards the conservation of the cultural heritage of Cyprus, which had been looted and stolen by the
turkish occupation forces and the Bank’s determination to promote internationally the hellenic civilization of Cyprus.
According to its founding act in 1984, all works of art, coins, maps and rare publications belonging to the Bank at the
time, were transferred to the Foundation for protection and conservation. The existing core collections have since
been developed to collections of exceptional cultural significance. 

The Foundation has developed a rich publishing programme and it organises exhibitions and lectures relating to
the content of its collections and other areas of its activity. It also sponsors annual events which contribute to the
literary and theatrical education of young people.

In 1995, the Foundation inaugurated its first museum, the Museum of the History of Cypriot Coinage, in which a
large part of the Foundation’s coin collection is on display. The Museum organises educational programmes for
school children. In 1996 it inaugurated its permanent restored areas in the historic Bank of Cyprus building, located
in Phaneromeni Street in the old part of the city of Nicosia.

In 2000, a branch of the Cultural Foundation was established in Greece, with the aim of strengthening the
Foundation's co-operation with institutions operating in mainland Greece as well as expanding the Foundation's
horizons to cover the wider Hellenic world.

In 2002, the Museum of the George and Nefeli Giabra Pierides Collection (donated by Clio and Solon
Triantafyllides) was inaugurated. The Museum is located at the Foundation’s building in Nicosia. The Collection
includes more than 600 objects and has been described as one of the richest in the world in Mycenaean pottery. 

Bank of Cyprus Medical Foundation

The Bank of Cyprus Medical Foundation was founded in 1991 with the principal objective of managing a significant
donation by Bank of Cyprus to be used in the health sector. In collaboration with the Ministry of Health and other
interested bodies, a decision was taken to establish an independent and autonomous Oncology Centre, offering
diagnostic services and treatment.

The total cost of the Oncology Centre’s construction and equipment amounted to Cí7 million and was entirely
donated by Bank of Cyprus. The Centre began its operation in September 1998. The operating costs of the Centre are
covered by the Government of Cyprus; the Medical Foundation covers the Centre’s capital expenditure. Its aim is to
become a regional medical centre of excellence both in terms of equipment and human resources.

Bank of Cyprus Scholarship Fund

The Bank of Cyprus Scholarship Fund was founded in 1971, in order to provide a limited number of scholarships every
year in the form of non-interest bearing loans to young citizens of the Republic of Cyprus who excel in character and
academic achievement, for the pursuance of undergraduate and graduate studies in Cyprus and abroad. The total
number of scholars since the Fund’s establishment reached 841.

The Fund’s Committee of Trustees consists of Messrs Chr. S. Pantzaris (Chairman), S. A. Triantafyllides, G. Charalambous,
I. Aristidou, C. Hadjistefanou, M. Ioannidou and Th. Polyviou (Members). Secretary: K. Ioakim.

Address: 2 Romanos Street, CY-2237 Latsia, Nicosia. Telephone: 22560000, Fax: 22560005

Members of the Board

S. A. Triantafyllides (Chairman), Chr. S. Pantzaris,

V. G. Rologis, D. P. Ioannou, A. Agathocleous,

C. Z. Severis, E. Xenophontos, G. Charalambous, Y. Kypri,

A. Artemis, P. G. Polyviou

Trustees of the Bank of Cyprus Oncology Centre

A. Vassiliou (Chairwoman), P. Sarris, Chr. Patsalides,

A. Tryfonides, Chr. S. Pantzaris, C. Z. Severis, Y. Kypri,

M. Triantafyllides (ex-officio)
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Members of the Board

Y. Kypri (Chairman), M. Iacovou, S. Ioannou,

V. Karageorghis, C. Colotas, N. Orphanos,

Th. Papadopoulos, D. Z. Pierides, St. Soulioti,

A. Philippou, Chr. Phylactou, G. Charalambous

Director  L. Michaelidou

Honorary Members

Sp. Vryonis, D. Ioannou, Th. Stavrou

Address of the Bank of Cyprus Oncology Centre

32 Acropolis Avenue, CY-2006 Strovolos, Nicosia. Telephone: 22841300, Fax: 22511870

Address

86-88-90 Phaneromeni Street, P.O. Box 21995, CY-1515 Nicosia

Telephone: 22677134, Fax: 22662898

info@cultural.bankofcyprus.com

www.boccf.com

Address in Greece

170 Alexandras Avenue, 115 21 Athens

Telephone: +30 210 64 77 920, Fax: +30 210 64 77 498



BANK OF CYPRUS LTD

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Bank of Cyprus Ltd will be held at the Group

Headquarters, 51 Stassinos Street, Ayia Paraskevi, Strovolos, Nicosia, on Wednesday 19 May 2004 at

4.30 p.m., to transact the following business:

1. To receive and consider the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements of the Company for 2003.

2. To elect members of the Board of Directors.

3. To determine the remuneration of the Directors.

4. To re-appoint the auditors and authorise the Board of Directors to determine their remuneration.

Y. Kypri

Secretary

24 March 2004

Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of Bank of Cyprus Ltd (Company) is entitled to

appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Such proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. The

instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company, 51 Stassinos Street, Ayia

Paraskevi, Strovolos, CY-2002 Nicosia, at least 48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

At its meeting on 25 February 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company decided not to propose the payment of a

dividend for the year 2003.
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SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Shareholders and brokerage houses may contact the Group’s Shares & Bonds Department regarding any matters

relating to the Company’s registered securities, share dividend payments, interest coupons on bonds and capital

securities, pledging of securities and release of pledges on securities, change of shareholder details and transfer of

shares from the Cyprus Share Register to the Dematerialised Securities System of the Athens Central Depository

and vice versa. Copies of the Annual and Interim Reports of the Group in Greek and English are also available

from the Shares & Bonds Department.

Cyprus

Shares & Bonds Department

EuroLife House, 4 Evrou Street, Strovolos

P.O. Box 24884, CY-1398 Nicosia

Telephone: 22842100

Fax: 22336258

shares@zenon.logos.cy.net

Greece

Custody & Share Register Department

170 Alexandras Avenue, 115 21 Athens

Telephone: +30 210 64 77 555

Fax: +30 210 64 77 329

metoxologio@bankofcyprus.gr

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Institutional investors and investment houses in general may direct their enquiries relating to the valuation

and financial strength of the Company to the Investor Relations Department.

Investor Relations Department

51 Stassinos Street, Ayia Paraskevi, Strovolos

P.O. Box 21472, CY-1599 Nicosia

Telephone: 22842594

Fax: 22379655

investors@bankofcyprus.com

ANNUAL BULLETIN

Copies of the Annual Bulletin published in accordance with the provisions set out in Article 16 of the Greek Capital

Market Committee’s "Code of Conduct for companies listed on the Athens Exchange" can be obtained by contacting

the Shares & Bonds Department of the Group in Cyprus or the Custody & Share Register Department in Greece, or by

accessing the Group’s website, www.bankofcyprus.com (under Investor Relations).

Group Headquarters

51 Stassinos Street, Ayia Paraskevi, Strovolos

P.O. Box 21472, CY-1599 Nicosia, Cyprus

Telephone: 22842100 Fax: 22378111

www.bankofcyprus.com

info@cy.bankofcyprus.com

Direct Banking Telephone: 800 00 800


